Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor
Emily Hill, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 1
Anne Weir, Place 2

Maria Amezcua, Place 3

Sonia Wallace, Place 4
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City Council Regular Meeting
Wednesday, December 04, 2024 at 7:00 PM
Manor City Hall, Council Chambers, 105 E. Eggleston St.

AGENDA

This meeting will be live-streamed on Manor's YouTube Channel
You can access the meeting at https://www.cityofmanor.org/page/livestream

CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE A QUORUM IS PRESENT
INVOCATION

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Non-Agenda Item Public Comments (white card): Comments will be taken from the audience on non-
agenda related topics for a length of time, not to exceed three (3) minutes per person.

Agenda Item Public Comments (yellow card): Comments will be taken from the audience on non-agenda
and agenda items combined for a length of time, not to exceed five (5) minutes total per person on all
items, except for Public Hearings. Comments on Public Hearing items must be made when the item
comes before the Council and, not to exceed two (2) minutes per person. No Action or Discussion May
be Taken by the City Council during Public Comments on Non-Agenda Items.

To address the City Council, please complete the white or yellow card and present it to the designated
area prior to the meeting.

CONSENT AGENDA
All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory by the Council and will be

enacted with one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by the Mayor or a
Council Member; in which event, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered separately.

1.  Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes.
Submitted by: Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary
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* October 16, 2024, City Council Regular Meeting;

* October 19, 2024, City Council Workshop;

* November 6, 2024, City Council Workshop;

* November 6, 2024, City Council Regular Meeting;

* November 16, 2024, City Council Workshop;

* November 19, 2024, City Council Called Special Session;
* November 20, 2024, City Council Workshop; and

* November 20, 2024, City Council Regular Meeting

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution of a Joint Election
Agreement with the Travis County Elections Administrator to Conduct the City’s
Runoff Election; Providing for the Notice of Appointment of Early Voting Ballot
Board and Signature Verification Committee.

Submitted by: Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a 0.6399 Wastewater Easement out of
the Greenberry Gates Survey No. 63, Abstract No. 315, and being out of Lot 1, Manor
Addition in Travis County, Texas.

Submitted by: Michael Burrell, Interim Development Services Director

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a 0.088-acre Wastewater Easement
over and across a portion of lots 7C-1B and 7C-1C, Block A, Short Form Final Plat of
Manor Commons SW in Travis County, Texas.

Submitted by: Michael Burrell, Interim Development Services Director

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a 0.029 acre, more or less,
Wastewater Easement out of the Greenbury Gates Survey No. 63, Abstract 315, in
Travis County, Texas.

Submitted by: Michael Burrell, Interim Development Services Director

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the IT Specialist 11 position and Pay
Scale.
Submitted by: Tracey Vasquez, HR Director

REGULAR AGENDA
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Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a change order to the construction
contract for the Cottonwood Creek West Tributary Wastewater Main Extension.
Submitted by: Tyler Shows, E.I.T. City Engineer

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Statement of Work No. 41 to the
Master Services Agreement with George Butler Associates, Inc. for the upgrading and
expansion of the current Geographic Information System (GIS) infrastructure.
Submitted by: Frank T. Phelan, P.E., City Engineer

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Rental Assistance Program for
the new State Farm Insurance agency in Manor, Texas.
Submitted by: Scott Jones, Economic Development Director
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10. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on granting the second six months of the
City’s Rental Assistance Program for E’Styles.
Submitted by: Scott Jones, Economic Development Director

11. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a resolution setting and issuing notice
of a public hearing for the creation of a Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ #2)
containing approximately 927.5 acres of land and directing the preparation of a
preliminary reinvestment zone project and financing plan.

Submitted by: Scott Jones, Economic Development Director

12. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an agreement authorizing the work to
provide Surveying, Mapping, and Ground Penetrating Radar Services for the
Cemetery.

Submitted by: Matthew Woodard, Public Works Director

13. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution Finding Public
Convenience and Necessity and Authorizing the Use of Eminent Domain to Condemn if
Necessary a Public Utility Easement of 20,835 Square Feet (as described in Exhibit
“A”) from a 10.0 Acre Tract of Land Conveyed to Plata Holdings, LL.C in Document
No. 2021219060 of the Official Public Records of Travis County, Texas for the Public
Use and Purpose of Construction of Public Utilities Including Water Lines and
Wastewater Lines.

Submitted by: Scott Moore, City Manager

14. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on installing pedestrian bridges for
public safety and improvement.
Submitted by: Scott Moore, City Manager

EXECUTIVE SESSION

The City Council will now Convene into executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551
Texas Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in:

- Section 551.074 Personnel Matters — Discussion of City Manager’s Employment;

- Sections 551.071 and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to consult
with legal counsel regarding the EntradaGlen PID;

- Section 551.071 Texas Government Code and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of
Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding the Hibbs Lane Parcel; and

- Sections 551.071 and 551.072, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel and to deliberate the purchase of real
property.
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OPEN SESSION

The City Council will now reconvene into Open Session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 Texas
Government Code and take action, if any, on item(s) discussed during Closed Executive Session.

15. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the First Amendment to the City of
Manor, Texas, Deposit Agreement EntradaGlen PID with Las Entradas Development
Corporation.

Submitted by: Scott Moore, City Manager

ADJOURNMENT

In addition to any executive session already listed above, the City Council reserves the right to adjourn into
executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as
authorized by Texas Government Code Section 8551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations
regarding Real Property), §551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts and Donations), 8551.074 (Personnel Matters),
§551.076 (Deliberations regarding Security Devices) and 8§551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic
Development Negotiations).

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

In accordance with Section 12.04 (Conflict of Interest) of the City Charter, “No elected or appointed officer or employee of
the city shall participate in the deliberation or decision on any issue, subject or matter before the council or any board or
commission, if the officer or employee has a personal financial or property interest, direct or indirect, in the issue, subject or
matter that is different from that of the public at large. An interest arising from job duties, compensation or benefits payable
by the city shall not constitute a personal financial interest.”

Further, in accordance with Chapter 171, Texas Local Government Code (Chapter 171), no City Council member and no City
officer may vote or participate in discussion of a matter involving a business entity or real property in which the City Council
member or City officer has a substantial interest (as defined by Chapter 171) and action on the matter will have a special
economic effect on the business entity or real property that is distinguishable from the effect on the general public. An affidavit
disclosing the conflict of interest must be filled out and filed with the City Secretary before the matter is discussed.

POSTING CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned authority do hereby certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted on the bulletin board, at the City Hall of
the City of Manor, Texas, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times and said Notice was posted
on the following date and time: Friday, November 27, 2028, by 5:00 PM and remained so posted continuously for at least 72
hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.

/s/ Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC
City Secretary for the City of Manor, Texas

NOTICE OF ASSISTANCE AT PUBLIC MEETINGS:

The City of Manor is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Manor City Hall and the Council
Chambers are wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive
services must be made 10 days prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary at 512.215.8285 or e-
mail lalmaraz@manortx.gov
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AGENDA ITEM NO.

MANOR

T TEXAS 572

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: December 4, 2024
PREPARED BY: Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary
DEPARTMENT: Administration

Iltem 1.

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:
Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes.

¢ October 16, 2024, City Council Regular Meeting;

¢ October 19, 2024, City Council Workshop;

¢ November 6, 2024, City Council Workshop;

e November 6, 2024, City Council Regular Meeting;

e November 16, 2024, City Council Workshop;

e November 19, 2024, City Council Called Special Session;
e November 20, 2024, City Council Workshop; and

e November 20, 2024, City Council Regular Meeting

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable
FISCAL IMPACT: No
PRESENTATION: No
ATTACHMENTS: Yes

¢ All minutes as listed above

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
The city staff recommends that the City Council approve the meeting minutes as presented.




MANOR

&% TEXAS ©72

CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR SESSION MINUTES
OCTOBER 16, 2024

This meeting was live-streamed on Manor's YouTube Channel
You can access the meeting at https://www.cityofmanor.org/page/livestream

PRESENT:
Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Emily Hill, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 1
Anne Weir, Place 2

Maria Amezcua, Place 3

Sonia Wallace, Place 4

Aaron Moreno, Place 5

Deja Hill, Place 6

CITY STAFF:

Scott Moore, City Manager

Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police

Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary

Scott Jones, Economic Development Director
Tracey Vasquez, HR Director

Yalondra V. Santana, Heritage & Tourism Manager
Michael Burrell, Interim Development Services Director
Mathew Woodard, Public Works Director

Phil Green, IT Director

Pauline Gray, P.E. City Engineer

Frank Phelan, P.E., City Engineer

Veronica Rivera, Assistant City Attorney

REGULAR SESSION - 7:00 P.M.

With a quorum of the Council Members present, the regular session of the Manor City Council
was called to order by Mayor Harvey at 7:06 p.m. on Wednesday, October 16, 2024, in the Council
Chambers of the Manor City Hall, 105 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas.

City of Manor Page 1
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City Council Regular Session Minutes
October 16, 2024

INVOCATION

Mayor Harvey gave the invocation.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Harvey led the Pledge of Allegiance.

PROCLAMATIONS

A. Declaring Friday, November 1, 2024 as “Texas Arbor Day”
Mayor Harvey read and presented the Proclamation to the Public Works Department.
PUBLIC COMMENTS

Fay Carter, 18128 Topsail St., Manor, Texas, submitted a speaker card and spoke about
the community's concerns on 973 and Highway 290 single lanes. She also stated that she is
now on KLBJ on Fridays with Fay and spoke regarding the unity in the United States.

Ruth Taylor Biscoe, with the Manor Heritage Society in Manor, Texas, submitted a speaker
card, spoke about the History of Manor, and asked about additional amenities to be added to
the Art Park.

No one else appeared at this time.
REPORT
A. FY 2024-2025 Special Events Schedule

Yalondra Valderrama Santana, Heritage & Tourism Manager discussed the proposed
FY2024-2025 Special Events Schedule.

A discussion was held regarding specific events that other community members could
sponsor.

A discussion was held regarding the report, which will be brought back to the next council
meeting for discussion and consideration of changes from city staff and council review.

CONSENT
1. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes.

* September 18, 2024, City Council Regular Meeting;
* September 26, 2024, City Council Called Special Session; and
* October 2, 2024, City Council Regular Meeting

City of Manor Page 2
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City Council Regular Session Minutes
October 16, 2024

2. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on accepting the 2024 Fourth Quarter
City Council Committee Reports.

3. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on accepting the September 2024 City
Council Monthly Reports.

4. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on accepting the September 2024
Departmental Reports.

* Finance — Belen Peiia, Finance Director

* Police — Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police

* Travis County ESD No. 12 — Chris McKenzie, Interim Fire Chief

* Economic Development — Scott Jones, Economic Development Director

* Development Services — Michael Burrell, Interim Development Services Director
e Community Development — Yalondra V. Santana, Heritage & Tourism Manager
* Municipal Court — Sofi Duran, Court Administrator

* Public Works — Matt Woodard, Director of Public Works

* Human Resources — Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager

e IT — Phil Green, IT Director

* Administration — Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary

5. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a resolution authorizing the issuance of
Manor Housing Public Facility Corporation Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds
(Tower Road Apartments), Series 2024; approving the form of a trust indenture and loan
agreement; approving the Tower Road Apartment Development; authorizing the
execution of documents and instruments necessary or convenient to carry out the

purposes of this resolution; and containing other provision relating thereto.

Resolution No. 2024-31: Resolution Authorizing The Issuance, Sale and Delivery by
Manor Housing Public Facility Corporation of The Manor Housing Public Facility Corporation
Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds (Tower Road Apartments), Series 2024, in an Aggregate
Principal Amount Not to Exceed $60,815,000; Approving the Tower Road Apartments
Development; Authorizing the Execution of Documents and Instruments Necessary or
Convenient to Carry Out the Purposes of This Resolution; and Containing Other Provisions

Relating Thereto.

6. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a resolution authorizing the issuance of
Manor Housing Public Facility Corporation Subordinate Multifamily Housing Revenue
Bonds (Tower Road Apartments), Series 2024; approving the form of a subordinate trust
indenture and subordinate loan agreement; approving the Tower Road Apartment
Development; authorizing the execution of documents and instruments necessary or
convenient to carry out the purposes of this resolution; and containing other provision

relating thereto.

City of Manor Page 3
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City Council Regular Session Minutes

October 16, 2024

Resolution No. 2024-32: Resolution Authorizing the Issuance, Sale and Delivery by Manor
Housing Public Facility Corporation of the Manor Housing Public Facility Corporation
Subordinate Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds (Tower Road Apartments), Series 2024, In
an Aggregate Principal Amount Not to Exceed $4,000,000; Approving the Tower Road
Apartments Development; Authorizing the Execution of Documents and Instruments
Necessary or Convenient to Carry out the Purposes of This Resolution; and Containing Other
Provisions Relating Thereto.

7. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Conservation Easement for the Blue
Bluff Project.

8. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a resolution making available to
members of the City Council the optional benefit of a deferred compensation plan
administered by Nationwide Retirement Solutions and authorizing payroll deductions
for participating Council members.

Resolution No. 2024-33: A Resolution of The City of Manor, Texas Making Available to
Members of The City Council The Optional Benefit of a Deferred Compensation Plan
Administered by Nationwide Retirement Solutions and Authorizing Payroll Deductions for
Participating Council Members.

9. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a resolution making available to
members of the City Council the services offered by LegalShield and authorizing
payroll deductions for participating Council members.

Resolution No. 2024-34: A Resolution of The City of Manor, Texas Making Available to
Members of The City Council The Services Offered by Legalshield and Authorizing Payroll
Deductions for Participating Council Members.

10. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Donation and Exchange Agreement
with The Shops at Grassdale, LLC.

11. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a 4,399 square foot Waterline
Easement and Temporary Construction Easement.

12. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a 6,589 square foot Waterline
Easement and Temporary Construction Easement.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Council Member
Amezcua to approve the consent agenda.

There was no further discussion.

Motion to approve carried 7-0
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City Council Regular Session Minutes
October 16, 2024

REGULAR AGENDA

13. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Development Agreement Establishing
Development Standards for the Boyce PJT Development (101 Boyce Street).

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the Development Agreement
Establishing Development Standards for the Boyce PJT Development (101 Boyce Street).

Assistant City Attorney Rivera discussed the proposed agreement and explained the three
different tracks that were being proposed.

Sarah Kim with Build Block presented the attached PowerPoint Presentation.
A discussion was held regarding parking concerns.
A discussion was held regarding structure regulations.
MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Council Member
Amezcua to approve the Development Agreement Establishing Development
Standards for the Boyce PJT Development (101 Boyce Street) with revisions
provided by legal counsel.
There was no further discussion.
Motion to approve carried 7-0
14. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Chapter 380 Grant Agreement to
Jiwon Jung owner of the property located at 101 W. Boyce Street to provide development

incentives for the development of the property and employment opportunities.

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve Chapter 380 Grant Agreement
for 101 W. Boyce Street as presented.

Economic Development Director Jones discussed the proposed agreement.

Sarah Kim and Irene Choi with Build Block submitted a speaker card in support of this
item; however, they did not wish to speak but were available to address any questions posed
by the City Council.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Emily Hill to approve Chapter 380 Grant Agreement for 101 W. Boyce Street as

presented with revisions provided by legal counsel.

There was no further discussion.
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City Council Regular Session Minutes
October 16, 2024

Motion to approve carried 7-0

15. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Development Agreement Establishing
Development Standards for the Boyce PJT Development (104 and 108 Boyce Street).

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the Development Agreement
Establishing Development Standards for the Boyce PJT Development (104 and 108 Boyce
Street).

Sarah Kim and Irene Choi with Build Block submitted a speaker card in support of this
item; however, they did not wish to speak but were available to address any questions posed
by the City Council.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Council Member
Amezcua to approve the Development Agreement Establishing Development
Standards for the Boyce PJT Development (104 and 108 Boyce Street).
There was no further discussion.
Motion to approve carried 7-0
16. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Chapter 380 Grant Agreement to
Build Block, Inc. of the properties located at 104 and 108 W. Boyce Street to provide
development incentives for the development of the properties and employment

opportunities.

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve Chapter 380 Grant Agreement
for 104 and 108 Boyce Street as presented.

Economic Development Director Jones discussed the proposed agreement.

Sarah Kim and Irene Choi with Build Block submitted a speaker card in support of this
item; however, they did not wish to speak but were available to address any questions posed
by the City Council.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Council Member
Amezcua to approve Chapter 380 Grant Agreement for 104 and 108 Boyce Street as
presented with revisions provided by legal counsel.

There was no further discussion.

Motion to approve carried 7-0

17. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Development Agreement Establishing
Development Standards for the Boyce PJT Development (107 Boyce Street).
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City Council Regular Session Minutes
October 16, 2024

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the Development Agreement
Establishing Development Standards for the Boyce PJT Development (107 Boyce Street).

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Council Member
Amezcua to approve the Development Agreement Establishing Development
Standards for the Boyce PJT Development (107 Boyce Street).

There was no further discussion.
Motion to approve carried 7-0

18. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Chapter 380 Grant Agreement to
Jiwon Jung owner of the property located at 107 W. Boyce Street to provide development
incentives for the development of the property and employment opportunities.

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve Chapter 380 Grant Agreement
for 107 Boyce Street as presented.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Council Member
Amezcua to approve Chapter 380 Grant Agreement for 107 Boyce Street as presented
with revisions provided by legal counsel.

There was no further discussion.
Motion to approve carried 7-0

19. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance amending Manor Code of
Ordinances Appendix A Fee Schedule by repealing existing sections A5.002 and AS.003
relating to parks and special event rental fees; adopting new section AS5.002 relating to
parks and amenities rental fees; adopting new section AS5.003 relating to special event
rental fees; amending section A5.004 relating to film projects using city property fees;
adopting new section AS.007 relating to equipment rental and fees for staff services;
providing for an effective date, savings, severability, and open meetings clauses; and
providing for related matters.

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve Ordinance No. 762 amending
Manor Code of Ordinances Appendix A, Fee Schedule as presented.

Heritage & Tourism Manager V. Santana discussed the proposed amendment ordinance.

Ordinance No. 762: An Ordinance of The City of Manor, Texas, Amending Manor Code
of Ordinances Appendix A Fee Schedule by Repealing Existing Sections A5.002 and A5.003
Relating to Parks and Special Event Rental Fees; Adopting New Section A5.002 Relating to
Parks and Amenities Rental Fees; Adopting New Section A5.003 Relating to Special Event
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City Council Regular Session Minutes
October 16, 2024

Rental Fees; Amending Section A5.004 Relating to Film Projects Using City Property Fees;
Adopting new Section A5.007 Relating to Equipment Rental and Fees for Staff Services;
Providing for an Effective Date, Savings, Severability, and Open Meetings Clauses; and
Providing for Related Matters.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member
Wallace to approve Ordinance No. 762 amending Manor Code of Ordinances
Appendix A, Fee Schedule as presented with revisions provided by legal counsel.

There was no further discussion.
Motion to approve carried 7-0

20. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the approval to submit the FY2024
Project Improvement List to Capital Metro.

The city staff recommended that the City Council select one of the three proposed options
and approve the submission of the proposed project list for FY2024 to Capital Metro by the
City Manager.

City Engineer Gray discussed the proposed project list for FY2024 to Capital Metro.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Emily Hill to select option 1 and approve the submission of the proposed project list
for FY2024 to Capital Metro by the City Manager.

There was no further discussion.
Motion to approve carried 6-1 (Council Member Amezcua voted against)

21. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Statement of Work No. 35 to the
Master Services Agreement with George Butler Associates, Inc. for the replacement of
the existing 12-inch diameter waterline with a 16-inch diameter waterline between the
intermediate tank to downtown.

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the proposed Statement of Work
No. 35 to the Master Services Agreement with George Butler Associates, Inc. for the Waterline
Upsizing Project in the amount of $541,200.

City Engineer Phelan discussed the proposed statement of work.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Emily Hill to approve the proposed Statement of Work No. 35 to the Master Services
Agreement with George Butler Associates, Inc. for the Waterline Upsizing Project in
the amount of $541,200.
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City Council Regular Session Minutes
October 16, 2024

There was no further discussion.
Motion to approve carried 7-0

22. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Statement of Work No. 37 to the
Master Services Agreement with George Butler Associates, Inc. for the construction of a
waterline necessary to provide adequate conveyance across 290 from the Gregg Manor
Road ground storage tank and pressurization facility to the south side of US 290 that
serves downtown Manor.

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the proposed Statement of Work
No. 37 to the Master Services Agreement with George Butler Associates, Inc. for the Waterline
Upsizing Project in the amount of $68,000.

City Engineer Phelan discussed the proposed Statement of Work.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Emily Hill to approve the proposed Statement of Work No. 37 to the Master Services
Agreement with George Butler Associates, Inc. for the Waterline Upsizing Project in
the amount of $68,000.

There was no further discussion.
Motion to approve carried 7-0
23. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Statement of Work No. 38 to the
Master Services Agreement with George Butler Associates, Inc. for the design and
construction of a waterline that will complete a loop along Bois d’Arc lane to provide
improved water quality, system reliability and enhanced system capacity.
The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the proposed Statement of Work
No. 38 to the Master Services Agreement with George Butler Associates, Inc. for the Waterline
Upsizing Project in the amount of $170,000.
City Engineer Phelan discussed the proposed Statement of Work.
Councilwoman Wallace stepped away from dais.
MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Emily Hill to approve the proposed Statement of Work No. 38 to the Master Services
Agreement with George Butler Associates, Inc. for the Waterline Upsizing Project in

the amount of $170,000.

There was no further discussion.
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City Council Regular Session Minutes
October 16, 2024

Motion to approve carried 6-0

24. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Statement of Work No. 40 to the
Master Services Agreement with George Butler Associates, Inc. for the upgrade/upsizing
of existing gravity relief pipes, with pipe diameters ranging from 18-inches to 36 inches.
The total length of pipe to be installed is 4,060 linear feet.

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the proposed Statement of Work
No. 40 to the Master Services Agreement with George Butler Associates, Inc. for the Waterline
Upsizing Project in the amount of $486,500.

City Engineer Phelan discussed the proposed Statement of Work.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Emily Hill to approve the proposed Statement of Work No. 40 to the Master Services
Agreement with George Butler Associates, Inc. for the Waterline Upsizing Project in
the amount of $486,500.

There was no further discussion.

Motion to approve carried 7-0

Mayor Harvey adjourned the regular session of the Manor City Council into Executive Session
at 10:01 p.m. on Wednesday, October 16, 2024, in accordance with the requirements of the Open
Meetings Law.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

The Manor City Council convened into executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter
551 Texas Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in Section 551.071,
Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to
consult with legal counsel regarding the construction contract for the Bell Farms and Presidential
Glen Lift Station Project;Section 551.071, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding the Interlocal
Agreement with City of Austin regarding the Transfer of the Manor Downs/Dalfen property,
Section 551.071 and 551.072, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding the purchase of the Gildon
property a 0.198 acre tract of land; Section 551.071 Texas Government Code and Section 1.05,
Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding the
Hibbs Lane Parcel;Section 551.071, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding public safety,
Section 551.071, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of
Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding the license agreement with Lennar
Homes; and Sections 551.071 and 551.072, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel and to deliberate the
purchase of real property at 10:01 p.m. on Wednesday, October 16, 2024.
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City Council Regular Session Minutes
October 16, 2024

The Executive Session was adjourned at 12:12 a.m. on Thursday, October 17, 2024.
OPEN SESSION

The City Council reconvened into Open Session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551
Texas Government Code and took action on item(s) discussed during the Closed Executive Session
at 12:12 a.m. on Thursday, October 17, 2024.

25. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve a change order to the
construction contract for the Bell Farms and Presidential Glenn Lift Station Expansion
project.

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve Change Order No. 4 a deduct to
the construction contract for the Bell Farms and Presidential Glenn Lift Station Expansion
project with JM Pipeline in the amount of $10,911.17 and the addition of 54 calendar days to
the final completion of this project.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Emily Hill to approve Change Order No. 4 a deduct to the construction contract for
the Bell Farms and Presidential Glenn Lift Station Expansion project with JM
Pipeline in the amount of $10,911.17 and the addition of 54 calendar days to the final
completion of this project.

There was no further discussion.

Motion to approve carried 7-0

26. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement
with the City of Austin for the release and transfer of property from the City of Austin
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) to the City of Manor ETJ.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Emily Hill to postpone item to the November 6 council meeting.

There was no further discussion.
Motion to postpone carried 7-0

27. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a resolution authorizing the purchase
and closing of a tract of real property consisting of 0.1980 acres, more or less, located in
Travis County, Texas for $169,900, plus closing costs, title insurance cost, providing for
approval of the purchase and sale agreement and an amendment to the agreement; and
providing for related matters.

City of Manor Page 11
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City Council Regular Session Minutes
October 16, 2024

Resolution No. 2024-35: A Resolution of The City of Manor, Texas, Authorizing the Purchase
and Closing of a Tract of Real Property Consisting of 0.1980 Acres, More or Less, Located in
Travis County, Texas For $169,900.00, Plus Closing Costs Title Insurance Cost; Providing for
Approval of the Purchase and Sale Agreement and an Amendment to the Agreement; and
Providing for Related Matters.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Emily Hill to approve Resolution No. 2024-35 authorizing the purchase and closing
of a tract of real property consisting of 0.1980 acres, more or less, located in Travis
County, Texas for $169,900, plus closing costs, title insurance cost, providing for
approval of the purchase and sale agreement and an amendment to the agreement;
and providing for related matters; and authorize the City Manager to execute the
purchase agreement and all necessary documents to close on the purchase of the

property.
There was no further discussion.
Motion to approve carried 7-0
ADJOURNMENT

The Regular Session of the Manor City Council was Adjourned at 12:16 a.m. on Thursday,
October 17, 2024.

The Manor City Council approved these minutes on the 4" day of December 2024.

APPROVED:

Dr. Christopher Harvey
Mayor

ATTEST:

Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC
City Secretary
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Iltem 1.

17




Boyce Street Project

101,107, 104, 108 W Boyce St,
Manor, TX /8653
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OWNER: JIWON JUNG
101 W. BOYCE STREET
MANOR, TEXAS 78653
ACREAGE: 41,662.98 SQ. FT. - 0.96 ACRES
NUMBER OF BLOCKS: 2
NUMBER OF LOTS: 3
SUBMITTAL DATE: 02/22/2024

DATE OF REVISION: -

SURVEYOR: ALL STAR LAND SURVEYING - FIRM: 10135000
9020 ANDERSON MILL ROAD, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78729 LEGEND
(512)249-8149  REF# A0204024

ENGINEER: SOUTHWEST ENGINEERS, INC. —@— 12" RODFOUND

FIRM # F-1909
2631 GATTIS SCHOOL RD., BLDG. 2, STE. 270
ROUND ROCK, TEXAS 78664 COTTON GIN SPINDLE FOUND
"X" SCRIBE FOUND IN CONC.

PROJECT DATUM: NORTH AMERICAN DATUM 1983 (NAD 83)

PROJECTION: TEXAS STATE PLANE - ) RECORD INFORMATION
CENTRAL ZONE (4203)
UNITS: US SURVEY FEET
BL BUILDING SETBACK LINES
PUE PUBLIC UTILITY ESMT
SWE SIDEWALK ESMT

TEMPORARY BENCHMARK (TBM1)
COTTON SPINDLE FOUND

| e / /

ELEVATION = 532.40' ,
NAVD 1988 DATUM / / LOTS 7 &8 /
TEMPORARY BENCHMARK (TBM2) LOT 6 /

"X" FOUND ON CURB /

ELEVATION = 532.60'

NAVD 1988 DATUM

_
_
— /
NORTHING - 10,099,230.199 —

EASTING - 3,171,873.505 @

C;(\. EASTING - 3,172,119.424
~ =
= S 80007v )
) = 37"E
@ = LOT 1A
= 2 / BLOCK 43
(17,214.61 SQ. FT)) &
« LOT 5A o
~ BLOCK 43 4=
~ g (11,501,42 SQ. FT)) 2
R
= s
Q NORTHING - 10,099,116.969
%} EASTING - 3,171,853.567
Z (TBM1) ! . NORTHING - 10,099,074.238
. @ EASTING - 3,172,099.805

B OYCE S (TBM2)
N7 Y TRE
O~ L5615 1 4.0 UROW, ET
NORTHING - 10,099,038.253 / e 84
EASTING - 3,171,839.698 112 50 NORTHING - 10,099,018.986 oo g
EASTING - 3,171,950.536 oS
N Sl
80008'2 " 8’
/ \\\\\é Z =
S
: Oz
2 LOT 20A &~ 3
St BLOCK 29 / / / O
SF (12,946.95 SQ. FT) = b Z
= S — I~
g3 / g X
oy LOT 11, 12,13/ 14 he)
Fa & 1/2 LOT 15 S

NORTHING - 10,098,924.935
EASTING - 3,171,819.829 ©

F 7 - NORTHII\.IG-IO,098,905A594 A# L /
/ T—EASTING - 3,171,930.654 LEY ﬁ

o T
LOT 1 Q0 80°06"0 7w i ———
/ / LOT 2 / 7\ T R%N%VED) 02" w 13750 ?

— O _
LOT 3 & 4 —_ S
/ / \/ —_ S S
/ LOT5-8 — é IS

| LOT 9 & 10 o

I, CAMPBELL KEY, L.V,, AM AUTHORIZED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS TO PRACTICE THE PROFESSION OF ENGINEERING AND
HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT IS FEASIBLE FROM AN ENGINEERING STANDPOINT AND COMPLIES WITH THE ENGINEERING RELATED
PORTIONS OF THE CITY OF MANOR LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE AND IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

s\\\\\\\
: %.. ........ \P "

P )
CAMPBELL KEY, LV., PE. § A CAMPBELL KEY V3 DATE
LICENSE NO. 147977 (“ - i d
SOUTHWEST ENGINNERS FIRM # F-1909 'l.’oo'a., (1 /47975“ _,.;é;':
2631 GATTIS SCHOOL RD., BLDG. 2, STE. 270 |\\"2~§§-‘:‘.€H§---'\'\s\:
ROUND ROCK, TEXAS 78664 WO/ONAL £

N

I, EDWARD C. RUMSEY, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I PREPARED THIS PLAT FROM AN ACTUAL AND ACCURATE ON THE GROUND SURVEY OF
THE LAND AND THAT ALL CORNERS MONUMENTS SHOWN THEREON, WERE PROPERLY PLACED UNDER MY PERSONAL SUPERVISION, IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS CODES AND ORDINANCES, INCLUDING SECTION 131.25(e), AND CHAPTER 482 OF THE
TRAVIS COUNTY, CODE, AND THAT ALL KNOWN EASEMENTS WITHIN THE BOUNDARY OF THE PLAT ARE SHOWN OR DESCRIBED HEREON. I
HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE THAT ANY MISREPRESENTATION REGARDING THIS CERTIFICATION CONSTITUTES A VIOLATION OF THE ACT AND

EDWARD RUMSEY

0'0...0..0...0.':):0.

EDWARD C. RUMSEY R.P.L.S. #5729 DATE

REF# A0204024

1/2" ROD W/CAP SET "ALLSTAR 5729"

NORTHING - 10,099,187.681

AMENDED PLAT OF LOTS 1-5 BLOCK 43
& LOTS 16-20 BLOCK 29 TOWN OF MANOR

STATE OF TEXAS §
§ KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

THAT I, JIWON JUNG, BEING THE OWNER OF 0.96 ACRE OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, OUT OF THE JAMES
MANOR SURVEY NO. 40, ABSTRACT NO. 546, BEING CONVEYED TO ME IN WARRANTY DEED RECORDED IN
DOCUMENT NO(S). 2021131120, 2021121545, 2021184718 & 2023050595, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS
COUNTY, TEXAS, DO HEREBY PLAT SAID 1 ACRES, PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 212 & 232 OF THE TEXAS
LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MAP OR PLAT ATTACHED HERETO, TO BE
KNOWN AS:

"AMENDED PLAT OF LOTS 1-5 BLOCK 43 & LOTS 16-20 BLOCK 29, TOWN OF MANOR"

AND DO HEREBY DEDICATE TO THE PUBLIC THE USE OF ALL STREETS AND EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREON,
SUBJECT TO ANY AND ALL EASEMENTS OR RESTRICTIONS HERETOFORE GRANTED AND NOT RELEASED.

WITNESS MY HAND THIS THE DAY OF ,20  AD.

JIWON JUNG
101 W BOYCE STREET
MANOR, TEXAS 78653

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF TRAVIS

BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, ON THIS DAY PERSONALLY APPEARED JIWON JUNG,
KNOWN TO ME TO BE THE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AND
HE ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME FOR THE PURPOSES AND CONSIDERATIONS
THEREIN EXPRESSED AND IN THE CAPACITY THEREIN STATED.

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEALED IN MY OFFICE, THIS THE DAY OF ,20_ AD.

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS

PRINTED NAME MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

NOTES:
1) WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICE SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF MANOR.

2) ALL PRIVATE STREET RIGHTS-OF-WAY ARE ALSO DRAINAGE EASEMENTS AND PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENTS. A VARIANCE HAS BEEN REQUESTED FOR DRAINAGE.

3) PUBLIC SIDEWALKS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITHIN THE FOLLOWING RIGHTS-OF-WAY:
BOYCE STREET, N. CALDWELL STREET & LEXINGTON STREET

4) AFRONT AND STREETSIDE YARD SETBACK TO BE FIVE (5') FOOT, AND REAR, AND EXTERIOR SIDE
SETBACK AND REAR SETBACK FOLLOWS THE STANDARDS. A VARIANCE HAS BEEN REQUESTED FOR
SETBACKS.

5) LOTS 5A, 1A AND 20A ARE EXEMPT FROM DETENTION REQUIREMENTS.

6) BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHALL BE IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE CITY OF MANOR REGULATIONS AT
THE TIME OF THE BUILDING PERMIT APPLICATION. A VARIANCE HAS BEEN REQUESTED FOR SETBACKS.

7) ZONING FOR THIS SUBDIVISION IS (DB) DISTRICT.
8) THE PROPOSED USE OF THIS SUBDIVISION IS DOWNTOWN BUSINESS.
9) PERFORMANCE AND MAINTENANCE GUARANTEES AS REQUIRED BY THE CITY.

10) THE BEARINGS, DISTANCES, AREAS AND COORDINATES SHOWN HEREON ARE TEXAS COORDINATE
SYSTEM GRID, CENTRAL ZONE (FIPS 4203) (NAD’83), AS DETERMINED BY THE GLOBAL POSITIONING
SYSTEM (GPS). THE UNIT OF LINEAR MEASUREMENT IS U.S. SURVEY FEET.

11) PROPERTY OWNERS OF THE LOTS ON WHICH THE (INSERT EASEMENT TYPE) EASEMENTS ARE
LOCATED AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT SHALL PROVIDE ACCESS TO THE CITY OF MANOR IN ORDER FOR THE
CITY OF MANOR TO INSPECT AND MAINTAIN THE UNDERGROUND FACILITIES LOCATED WITHIN ANY OF
SUCH EASEMENTS.

12) A5’ PUBLIC UTILITY AND SIDEWALK EASEMENT IS HEREBY DEDICATED ALONG AND ADJACENT TO
ALL STREET RIGHTS OF WAY.

13) PUBLIC SIDEWALKS BUILT TO CITY OF MANOR STANDARDS, ARE REQUIRED ALONG ALL STREETS
WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION, THESE SIDEWALKS SHALL BE IN PLACE PRIOR TO THE ADJOINING LOT BEING
OCCUPIED, FAILURE TO CONSTRUCT THE REQUIRED SIDEWALKS MAY RESULT IN THE WITHHOLDING OF
CERTIFICATES OF OCCUPANCY, BUILDING PERMITS, OR UTILITY CONNECTIONS BY THE COVERING BODY
OR UTILITY COMPANY.

14) DRIVEWAY AND DRAINAGE CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
REQUIREMENT OF THE CITY OF MANOR STANDARDS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED AND APPROVE BY
THE CITY OF MANOR.

15) NO LOT IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO THE CITY OF
MANOR WATER AND WASTEWATER SYSTEM.

16) NO BUILDINGS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OR MAINTAINED WITHIN EASEMENTS OR THE
UNDERGROUND STORM WATER FACILITIES EASEMENTS WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN APPROVAL OF
THE CITY OF MANOR. THE CITY OF MANOR IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DAMAGE TO OR REPLACING
ANY PORTIONS OF ANY FENCING, LANDSCAPING OR OTHER IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED WITHIN ANY
OF SUCH THREE EASEMENTS WHICH WERE NOT APPROVED BY THE CITY OF MANOR BEFORE THEIR
CONSTRUCTION DUE TO THE NECESSARY AND CUSTOMARY WORK BY THE CITY OF MANOR IN
REPAIRING, MAINTAINING, OR REPLACING THE UNDERGROUND PIPES AND RELATED FACILITIES WITHIN
SUCH EASENIENTS.

17) ALL STREETS, DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS, SIDEWALKS, WATER AND WASTEWATER LINES, AND
EROSION CONTROLS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED AND INSTALLED TO CITY OF MANOR STANDARDS.

18) EROSION CONTROLS ARE REQUIRED FOR ALL CONSTRUCTION ON INDIVIDUAL LOTS, INCLUDING
DETACHED SINGLE FAMILY IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 1.4.0 OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL MANUAL.

19) ALL STREETS IN THE SUBDIVISION SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO CITY OF MANOR URBAN STREET
STANDARDS. ALL STREETS WILL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH CURB AND GUTTER.

20) PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, EXCEPT DETACHED SINGLE FAMILY ON ANY LOT IN THIS SUBDIVISION, A
SITE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT MUST BE OBTAINED FROM THE CITY OF MANOR.

21) ANY STRUCTURE CONSTRUCTED WITHIN THE 10' BUILDING SETBACK LINE ALONG THE EAST SIDE OF
LOT 20A, BLOCK 29, HAS TO MEET THE ADOPTED FIRE AND BUILDING CODES IN ORDER TO ENCROACH.

CASE NUMBER - 2024-P-1637-SF

N

NW NE
N\ D/
SCALE
\K]'P 1" =50 —_— E
SW/ \SE
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50 0 25 50 100 200

GRAPHIC SCALE

BEARING BASIS:
BEARINGS ARE GRID NORTH BASED ON THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM
CENTRAL TEXAS ZONE (4203) NAD83 HARN HORIZONTAL CONTROL.

THIS SUBDIVISION IS LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF MANOR CORPORATE CITY LIMITS AS OF THIS DATE
THE 3RD DAY OF JUNE, 2024.

ACCEPTED AND AUTHORIZED FOR RECORD BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISION OF THE CITY OF
MANOR, TEXAS, ON THIS THE OF 20 AD.

APPROVED: ATTEST:

FELIZ PAIZ, CHAIRPERSON LLUVIAT. ALMARAZ, CITY SECRETARY

ACCEPTED AND AUTHORIZED FOR RECORD BY THE CITY COUNCIL, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, ON THIS THE
OF ,20  AD.

APPROVED: ATTEST:

LLUVIA T. ALMARAZ
CITY SECRETARY

DR. CHRISTOPHER HARVEY,
MAYOR OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

STATE OF TEXAS §
§ KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

I, DYANA LIMON-MERCADO, COUNTY CLERK OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE
FOREGOING INSTRUMENT OF WRITING AND ITS CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION WAS FILED FOR
RECORD IN MY OFFICE ON THE DAY OF ,20_ ,AD.AT O'CLOCK
___.M., IN THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, UNDER

DOCUMENT NUMBER

FILED FOR RECORD ON THE

DAY OF ,20 L AD.

DYANA LIMON-MERCADO DEPUTY
COUNTY CLERK

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS
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LEGEND

EXISTING CONTOURS

TREE TO BE KEPT

TREE TO BE REMOVED

DEMOLITION AREA

TREE LIST

NO. DESCIPTION

87 |18" (M)(R)

HACKBERRY

88 |10"(R)

HACKBERRY

89 |[27.75" (H)(M)R)

ELM

90 |38" (H)R)

ELM

91 [155" (R)

ELM

92 |10"(R)

HACKBERRY

432 (145" (M)R)

HACKBERRY

433 [195" (P)(R)

TEXAS PECAN

434 [7"(R)

HACKBERRY

435 | 14" (M)(R)

CHINABERRY

436 | 12" (M)(R)

CHINABERRY

437 145" (R)

UNKNOWN TREE

438 18" (R)

LIVE OAK

439 16" (R)

TALLOW

440 |[11.5"(R)

TALLOW

441 [12.75" (M)(R)

AMERICAN ELM

442 [10.5" (M)R)

CATALPAS

443 |9.5"(R)

TEXAS PECAN

444 (135" (M)R)

CATALPAS

445 [7.5" (M)(R)

CATALPAS

446 |17" (R)

CATALPAS

10000 [16.75" (M)(R)

CREPE MYRTLE

10001 [6.75" (M)(R)

CREPE MYRTLE

10002 [11.5" (M)(R)

LIGUSTRUM

(M) =MULTI-STEMMED TREE

(P) =PROTECTED TREE (OVER 19")
(H) =HERITAGE TREE (OVER 24")
(R) =TREES TO BE REMOVED

TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM

1-800-245-4545

NOTE: ALL RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ADEQUACY OF THESE PLANS REMAINS
WITH THE ENGINEER WHO PREPARES THEM. IN APPROVING THESE PLANS, THE
CITY OF MANOR MUST RELY UPON THE ADEQUACY OF THE WORK OF THE

DESIGN ENGINEER.

UNDER PENALTY OF LAW, THE CONTRACTOR IS
REQUIRED TO CONTACT THE TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM
AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE STARTING EXCAVATION.

/CAUTION - ELECTRICITY PRESENT)

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR AND ALL SUBCONTRACTORS THAT ENTER OR

WORK ON THIS PROJECT ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING, USING

ONE-CALL OR THE ELECTRIC UTILITIES THEMSELVES, ALL OVERHEAD AND
UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL OF ANY NATURE AND FOR SAFEGUARDING

ALL PERSONNEL ON THIS PROJECT, INCLUDING ANY OFF-SITE WORK
AREAS SHOWN ON THE PLAN, FROM ANY INTERFERENCE WITH THE

ELECTRIC LINES OR FROM DAMAGING, DIGGING UP OR UNCOVERING THE

ELECTRIC LINES, GETTING A LADDER IN HARMS WAY OR ANY OTHER
ACTIVITY OF ANY NATURE THAT COULD HARM ANY INDIVIDUAL IN ANY

THE OWNER FROM ANY LIABILITY OF ANY NATURE.

kMANNER. THIS RESPONSIBILITY HEREBY REMOVES THE ENGINEER AND

/
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EROSION & SEDIMENTATION CONTROL PLAN

SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION

IF AN ADDITIONAL CONCRETE WASHOUT IS NEEDED, THE LOCATION WILL BE
DETERMINED ONCE CONSTRUCTION HAS BEGUN AND WILL BE PROPERLY INSTALL EROSION CONTROLS PER APPROVED PLAN.
NOTED ON THE ESC PLAN SHEET AND SWP3 AT THAT TIME. 2. TEMPORARY CONTROLS TO BE INSPECTED AND

MAINTAINED WEEKLY AND PRIOR TO ANTICIPATED
ALL REQUIRED NOTICES AND PERMITS MUST BE PLACED IN A HIGHLY RAINFALL EVENTS. AND AFTER RAINFALL EVENTS. AS

—_

VISIBLE LOCATION ONSITE BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF NEEDED. CONTRACTOR/OWNER SHALL PROVIDE A
CONSTRUCTION. CONTACT NAME AND NUMBER FOR EROSION CONTROL
ALL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROLS (ESC) MUST BE INSTALLED ISSUES.
PRIOR TO ANY DISTURBANCE TO THE PROJECT SITE. 3. CONDUCT DEMOLITION ACTIVITIES, IF APPLICABLE.

4. CONSTRUCT DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS, IF APPLICABLE.
INSTALL SILT FENCE ACCORDINGLY FOR RUN-ON DIVERSION OR OFFSITE £ {oNSTRUGT CURB INLET PROTECTION AT THE TIME OF
SEDIMENT CONTROL DEPENDING ON UP OR DOWN SLOPE, FACING POST CURB INLET INSTALLATION.
SIDE ON THE DOWN GRADIENT SIDE. 6. CONSTRUCT DEVELOPMENT PER APPROVED PLANS.
ALL ESC USED ONSITE MUST BE REGULARLY MONITORED AND MAINTAINED 7. INSTALL  STREETSCAPE ~ AND/OR  LANDSCAPING
AS NEEDED. 8 l(gAgNR'I%\,/A\EC'\AT%'\Il?TS:I'O VEGETATE ANY DISTURBED AREAS
MUD AND OR DIRT TRACKED INTO THE ROADWAY MUST BE IMMEDIATELY " ONCE FINAL GRADING IS COMPLETE, AND ESTABLISH A
REMOVED UPON DISCOVERY. MIN OF 70% VEGETATION PRIOR TO COMPLETION.
EXCESS MATERIALS THAT WILL BE TRANSPORTED TO AN OFFSITE LOCATION PER TPDES REQUIREMENTS, DISTURBED AREAS ON
MUST HAVE THE LOCATION CLEARED BY COUNTY INSPECTORS. \(,\!I'I—I!er\(/:IEOR,A(\:RC’)ITETRUSIl—lON PE’Q&EL’ELETSLY) A ALLEASER
LOOSE TRASH AND DEBRIS MUST BE DISPOSED OF PROPERLY ONSITE. STABILIZED  WITHIN 14  DAYS UNLESS  ACTIVITY
CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN AND UTILIZE DUST CONTROL FOR THE RESUMES WITHIN 21 DAYS. SEEDING DOES NOT

CONSTITUTE AS STABILIZATION.
9. REMOVE ALL  TEMPORARY  EROSION CONTROL
MEASURES.

DURATION OF THE PROJECT.

THE STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A
CONDITION THAT PREVENTS TRACKING ONTO THE PUBLIC ROADWAY ON AN
ONGOING/REGULAR BASIS.

INLET PROTECTION SHALL BE INSTALLED IMMEDIATELY UPON INLET NOTE

INSTALLATION.
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL DISTURBED
INITIATE TEMPORARY STABILIZATION WHEN CONSTRUCTION CEASES IN A AREAS ON WHICH CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES HAVE CEASED

DISTURBED AREA FOR 14 DAYS. (TEMPORARILY OR PERMANENT) AND SHALL BE STABILIZED
INITIATE PERMANENT STABILIZATION IMMEDIATELY ONCE WORK HAS  WITHIN 14 DAYS UNLESS ACTIVITY RESUMES IN 21 DAYS,
CEASED AND FINAL GRADE HAS BEEN ACHIEVED. PER TPDES REQUIREMENTS.

ALL DISTURBED/BARE AREAS WILL REQUIRE PERMANENT STABILIZATION
BEFORE FINAL ACCEPTANCE CAN BE ACHIEVED. AVOID DISTURBING AREAS
OF THE PROJECT THAT ARE NOT NECESSARY FOR CONSTRUCTION.

COUNTY INSPECTOR MAY REQUEST ADDITIONAL CONTROLS BE INSTALLED
ONSITE AS NEEDED.

TEMPORARY ESC MEASURES SHALL REMAIN IN PLACE IN ALL DISTURBED
AREAS UNTIL ADEQUATE STABILIZATION HAS BEEN ACHIEVED.
CONTRACTOR MUST REMOVE SEDIMENT FROM ALL STORM SEWER INLET
BOXES, LINES, PIPES, AND CULVERT BEFORE LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION:
CONDITIONAL/FINALACCEPTANCE CAN OBTAINED. £74,062 SF = +1.70 AC
TRAVIS COUNTY REQUIRES CERTIFIED SWP3 INSPECTORS TO CONDUCT
SWP3 INSPECTIONS AND REPORTING ON ALL PROJECTS WITH ONE ACRE OF
DISTURBANCE LAGER.

PERMITTEE SHALL INSPECT ALL INLET PROTECTION DEVICES AS PART OF
THE WEEKLY SWP3 REPORT, UPON RECEIVING A FORECAST CALLING FOR A
RAIN EVENT FOR AN EXTENDED PERIOD, MODIFICATION OF INLET
PROTECTION SHOULD BE MADE TO PREVENT FLOODING OR PONDING OF
WATER IF TRAFFIC OR PROPERTY CONCERNS ARISE.

TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM
1-800-245-4545

UNDER PENALTY OF LAW, THE CONTRACTOR IS
REQUIRED TO CONTACT THE TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM
AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE STARTING EXCAVATION.

NOTE: ALL RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ADEQUACY OF THESE PLANS REMAINS
WITH THE ENGINEER WHO PREPARES THEM. IN APPROVING THESE PLANS, THE
CITY OF MANOR MUST RELY UPON THE ADEQUACY OF THE WORK OF THE
DESIGN ENGINEER.

/CAUTION - ELECTRICITY PRESENT)

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR AND ALL SUBCONTRACTORS THAT ENTER OR
WORK ON THIS PROJECT ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING, USING
ONE-CALL OR THE ELECTRIC UTILITIES THEMSELVES, ALL OVERHEAD AND
UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL OF ANY NATURE AND FOR SAFEGUARDING
ALL PERSONNEL ON THIS PROJECT, INCLUDING ANY OFF-SITE WORK
AREAS SHOWN ON THE PLAN, FROM ANY INTERFERENCE WITH THE
ELECTRIC LINES OR FROM DAMAGING, DIGGING UP OR UNCOVERING THE
ELECTRIC LINES, GETTING A LADDER IN HARMS WAY OR ANY OTHER
ACTIVITY OF ANY NATURE THAT COULD HARM ANY INDIVIDUAL IN ANY
MANNER. THIS RESPONSIBILITY HEREBY REMOVES THE ENGINEER AND
k THE OWNER FROM ANY LIABILITY OF ANY NATURE. /

PROJECT No. _1168-001-24
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s mms mms == DRAINAGE AREA

@ 3 ’ — ¢ —— T¢ —— TIME OF CONCENTRATION

POINT OF ANALYSIS

DRAINAGE FLOW DIRECTION

o)

DRAINAGE AREA LABEL

INLET LABEL

NOTES:
1. ON—SITE SURVEY TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

PROVIDED BY ALL STAR LAND SURVEYING
OBTAINED ON SEPTEMBER 14, 2023.

[Ny
Ty

2. OFF—=SITE TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
OBTAINED FROM TNRIS.

EXISTING DRAINAGE SUMMARY TABLE

(NRCS METHOD)
AREA NAME A OSA POAA B 0SB POA B
— ‘\ J Drainage Area (ac.) 0.66 1.39 - 0.30 0.65 -
—y -~ CN# 80 80 - 80 80 -
\\ / ' % Impervious 23% 20% - 13% 85% -
\ \ J Tc (hrs) 0.222 0.242 - 0.249 0.083 -
— ’ , = 2 year Discharge (cfs) 1.6 5.5 6.5 0.7 3.3 3.8
\ — - 10 Disch cf 2.9 9.5 11.4 1.4 5 6
o N - year Discharge (cfs) . . . .
/ v — 25 year Discharge (cfs) 3.8 12.2 14.6 1.8 6.2 7.5
v 100 year Discharge (cfs) 5.2 16.7 20.2 2.5 8.2 10.1
/ ~ < 20QYC
=~ <LSTR
I (80F ~— EET TIME OF CONCENTRATION -EXISTING
— O.w. — —y SHEET FLOW SHALLOW CONCENTRATED FLOW CHANNEL FLOW (GUTTER)
— . Total Tc Total Tc | Total Tlag
— —y DRAINAGE AREA L SLOPE n Tc sheet L SLOPE Paved? |Tc Shallow L Vavg |Tc Channel
M= 0L — —~— ~ (MIN.) (HRS.) (MIN.)
— _— — g~ ~ FT FTIFT) (MIN.) FT (FT/FT) Y or N (MIN.) FT (FT/S) (MIN.)
\ — 0 i o) " — LU
/ — or l A 100.000 0.010 0.24 16.6 190 0.011 N 1.9 0 4.00 0.00 18.5 0.309 11.129
' j Q-/v OS A 100.000 0.015 0.011 1.2 89 0.028 Y 0.4 0 4.00 0.00 5.0 0.083 3.000
[ B 100.000 0.015 0.24 14.1 66 0.008 N 0.8 0 4.00 0.00 14.9 0.249 8.957
m OS B 100.000 0.015 0.011 1.2 78 0.010 Y 0.7 0 4.00 0.00 5.0 0.083 3.000

TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM
1-800-245-4545

UNDER PENALTY OF LAW, THE CONTRACTOR IS
REQUIRED TO CONTACT THE TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM
AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE STARTING EXCAVATION.

: -~ / / _
(B) Gm _—
\~ — NOTE: ALL RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ADEQUACY OF THESE PLANS REMAINS

—
—
— — — WITH THE ENGINEER WHO PREPARES THEM. IN APPROVING THESE PLANS, THE
Ty — _— — CITY OF MANOR MUST RELY UPON THE ADEQUACY OF THE WORK OF THE
DESIGN ENGINEER.

O ROW e, /CAUTION - ELECTRICITY PRESENT

- THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR AND ALL SUBCONTRACTORS THAT ENTER OR
WORK ON THIS PROJECT ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING, USING
ONE-CALL OR THE ELECTRIC UTILITIES THEMSELVES, ALL OVERHEAD AND
UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL OF ANY NATURE AND FOR SAFEGUARDING
ALL PERSONNEL ON THIS PROJECT, INCLUDING ANY OFF-SITE WORK
AREAS SHOWN ON THE PLAN, FROM ANY INTERFERENCE WITH THE
ELECTRIC LINES OR FROM DAMAGING, DIGGING UP OR UNCOVERING THE
ELECTRIC LINES, GETTING A LADDER IN HARMS WAY OR ANY OTHER
ACTIVITY OF ANY NATURE THAT COULD HARM ANY INDIVIDUAL IN ANY
MANNER. THIS RESPONSIBILITY HEREBY REMOVES THE ENGINEER AND
k THE OWNER FROM ANY LIABILITY OF ANY NATURE. /

DATE “~?B?\T\‘ . 9/4/2024 WARNING
2L OF Tedw THE SEAL APPEARING ON THIS —_— |
£ ¢;\‘* "'ff&'i. DOCUMENT WAS AUTHORIZED BY HEADQUARTERS IF THIS BAR DOES NOT MEASURE 1", EXISTING DRAINAGE AREA MAP PROJECT NO 1168-001-24
F 2 7 ", * 0, A. CAMPBELL KEY IV, PE X THE DRAWING IS NOT TO SCALE :
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THE SEAL APPEARING ON THIS
DOCUMENT WAS AUTHORIZED BY
A. CAMPBELL KEY IV, PE
#147977 ON
THE DATE INDICATED. ANY
ALTERATIONS OF THIS SEALED
DOCUMENT WITHOUT PROPER
NOTIFICATION TO THE
RESPONSIBLE ENGINEER IS AN
OFFENSE UNDER THE TEXAS
ENGINEERING PRACTICE ACT.
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Iltem 1.

0 15 30 60
= " —

HORIZONTAL SCALE: 1"=30'

LEGEND
EXISTING CONTOURS

{700) PROPOSED CONTOURS
mees e =ms =mmm DRAINAGE AREA
— 7¢ —— TC¢ —— TIME OF CONCENTRATION

POINT OF ANALYSIS

DRAINAGE FLOW DIRECTION

o)

W DRAINAGE AREA LABEL

NOTES:

INLET LABEL

1. ON—SITE SURVEY TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
PROVIDED BY ALL STAR LAND SURVEYING
OBTAINED ON SEPTEMBER 14, 2023.

2. OFF—=SITE TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
OBTAINED FROM TNRIS.

PROPOSED DRAINAGE SUMMARY TABLE

(NRCS METHOD)
AREA NAME A OSA POAA B OSB POA B
Drainage Area (ac.) 0.66 1.39 - 0.30 0.65 -
CN # 80 80 - 80 80 -
% Impervious 89% 20% - 83% 85% -
Tc (hrs) 0.083 0.083 - 0.083 0.083 -
2 year Discharge (cfs) 3.4 5.5 8.9 1.5 3.3 4.7
10 year Discharge (cfs) 5.2 9.5 14.7 2.3 5 7.4
25 year Discharge (cfs) 6.3 12.2 18.5 2.9 6.2 9.1
100 year Discharge (cfs) 8.4 16.7 25.1 3.8 8.2 12
TIME OF CONCENTRATION - PROPOSED
SHEET FLOW SHALLOW CONCENTRATED FLOW CHANNEL FLOW (GUTTER)
Total Tc Total Tc | Total Tlag
DRAINAGE AREA L SLOPE n Tc sheet L SLOPE Paved? |Tc Shallow L Vavg Tc Channel (MIN.) (HRS.) (MIN.)
FT (FT/FT) (MIN.) FT (FT/FT) Y orN (MIN.) FT (FT/S) (MIN.)
A 100.000 0.010 0.011 1.4 190 0.011 Y 1.5 0 4.00 0.00 5.0 0.083 3.000
OS A 100.000 0.015 0.011 1.2 89 0.028 Y 0.4 0 4.00 0.00 5.0 0.083 3.000
B 100.000 0.015 0.011 1.2 66 0.008 Y 0.6 0 4.00 0.00 5.0 0.083 3.000
0SB 100.000 0.015 0.011 1.2 78 0.010 Y 0.7 0 4.00 0.00 5.0 0.083 3.000

WARNING

— — |

IF THIS BAR DOES NOT MEASURE 1",

THE DRAWING IS NOT TO SCALE

PROPOSED DRAINAGE AREA MAP

TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM
1-800-245-4545

UNDER PENALTY OF LAW, THE CONTRACTOR IS
REQUIRED TO CONTACT THE TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM
AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE STARTING EXCAVATION.

NOTE: ALL RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ADEQUACY OF THESE PLANS REMAINS
WITH THE ENGINEER WHO PREPARES THEM. IN APPROVING THESE PLANS, THE
CITY OF MANOR MUST RELY UPON THE ADEQUACY OF THE WORK OF THE
DESIGN ENGINEER.

/CAUTION - ELECTRICITY PRESENT)

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR AND ALL SUBCONTRACTORS THAT ENTER OR
WORK ON THIS PROJECT ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING, USING
ONE-CALL OR THE ELECTRIC UTILITIES THEMSELVES, ALL OVERHEAD AND
UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL OF ANY NATURE AND FOR SAFEGUARDING
ALL PERSONNEL ON THIS PROJECT, INCLUDING ANY OFF-SITE WORK
AREAS SHOWN ON THE PLAN, FROM ANY INTERFERENCE WITH THE
ELECTRIC LINES OR FROM DAMAGING, DIGGING UP OR UNCOVERING THE
ELECTRIC LINES, GETTING A LADDER IN HARMS WAY OR ANY OTHER
ACTIVITY OF ANY NATURE THAT COULD HARM ANY INDIVIDUAL IN ANY
kMANNER. THIS RESPONSIBILITY HEREBY REMOVES THE ENGINEER AND/

THE OWNER FROM ANY LIABILITY OF ANY NATURE.

PROJECT No. _1168-001-24

DRAWN BY: APCG /BS
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Channel Report

Hydraflow Express Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. Monday, Apr 1 2024

Existing Roadside Ditch at POA-C1

User-defined Highlighted ,‘/

Invert Elev (ft) = 530.00 Depth (ft) =142

Slope (%) = 1.66 Q (cfs) = 92.00

N-Value = 0.030 Area (sqft) = 18.53

Velocity (ft/s) = 497

Calculations Wetted Perim (ft) = 27.02

Compute by: Known Q Crit Depth, Yc (ft) =145

Known Q (cfs) = 92.00 Top Width (ft) = 26.49

EGL (ft) = 1.80
(Sta, EI, n)-(Sta, El, n)...
(0.00, 533.00)-(10.70, 532.00, 0.030)-(14.40, 531.00, 0.030)-(17.80, 530.00, 0.030)-(25.70, 530.00, 0.030)-(27.10, 531.00, 0.030)-(56.23, 532.00, 0.030)
0 50 100 200
I
Elev (ft) Section Depth (ft) " ,
HORIZONTAL SCALE: 1"=100
534.00 4.00
533.00 3.00
532.00 \‘ 1 2.00 m
\ ~ |
S EXISTING CONTOURS
\ —
531.00 1.00 P
{700) PROPOSED CONTOURS
s mes =ms =mmm DRAINAGE AREA
530.00 0.00
— ¢ —— Tc — TIME OF CONCENTRATION

529.00 -1.00
-5 0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 2 1

POINT OF ANALYSIS

Sta (ft)

DRAINAGE FLOW DIRECTION
Channel Report

Hydraflow Express Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. Monday, Apr 1 2024

o)

Roadside Ditch at POA-C2

User-defined Highlighted
Invert Elev (ft) = 527.00 Depth (ft) =134
Slope (%) = 1.66 Q (cfs) = 98.30
N-Value = 0.030 Area (sqft) = 19.87
Velocity (ft/s) =495
=2
[#]

DRAINAGE AREA LABEL

Calculations Wetted Perim (ft)

Compute by: Known Q Crit Depth, Yc (ft)

Known Q (cfs) = 98.30 Top Width (ft)
EGL (ft) =172

INLET LABEL

(Sta, El, n)(Sta, El, n)...
(0.00, 530.00)-(8.50, 529.00, 0.030)-(12.10, 528.00, 0.030)-(15.80, 527.00, 0.030)-(23.40, 527.00, 0.030)-(28.80, 528.00, 0.030)-(60.50, 529.00, 0.030)

NOTES:

1. ON—SITE SURVEY TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
PROVIDED BY ALL STAR LAND SURVEYING
OBTAINED ON SEPTEMBER 14, 2023.

Elev (ft) Depth (ft)

Section
531.00 4.00

2. OFF—=SITE TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
OBTAINED FROM TNRIS.

530.00 3.00

529.00 \ 2.00

L
4

528.00

1.00

527.00 0.00

526.00 -1.00
-5 0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 5 60 65 70

11:31am, By: ana.cantu

"CONVEYANCE DRAINAGE AREA MAP” ~ Wed, Sep 04, 2024,

DRNG.dwg ~ Layout:

Sta (ft)

CONVEYANCE DRAINAGE SUMMARY TABLE

(NRCS METHOD) TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM
1-800-245-4545
AREA NAME 0s-C POA C1 C POA C2
; i i UNDER PENALTY OF LAW, THE CONTRACTOR IS
Drainage Area (ac.) 13.43 1.81 REQUIRED TO CONTACT THE TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM
CN # 80 - 80 - AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE STARTING EXCAVATION.
% Impervious 95% - 88% -
Tc (hrs) 0.529 - 0.083 - NOTE: ALL RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ADEQUACY OF THESE PLANS REMAINS
2 year Discharge (cfs) 37.4 37.4 9.2 39.9 WITH THE ENGINEER WHO PREPARES THEM. IN APPROVING THESE PLANS, THE
10 year Discharge (cfs) 56.7 56.7 14.1 60.5 CITY OF MANOR MUST RELY UPON THE ADEQUACY OF THE WORK OF THE
: DESIGN ENGINEER.
25 year Discharge (cfs) 69.8 69.8 17.4 74.6
100 year Discharge (cfs) 92.0 92.0 23.0 98.3 /CAUT'ON ELECTRICITY PRESENT\
/ TIME OF CONCENTRATION - CONVEYANCE THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR AND ALL SUBCONTRACTORS THAT ENTER OR
WORK ON THIS PROJECT ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING, USING
SHEET FLOW SHALLOW CONCENTRATED FLOW CHANNEL FLOW (GUTTER) Total Tc Total Tc | Total Tlag ONE-CALL OR THE ELECTRIC UTILITIES THEMSELVES, ALL OVERHEAD AND
DRAINAGE AREA L SLOPE n Tc sheet L SLOPE Paved? |Tc Shallow L Vavg  |Tc Channell gy (HRS.) (MIN.) UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL OF ANY NATURE AND FOR SAFEGUARDING
' ' ' ALL PERSONNEL ON THIS PROJECT, INCLUDING ANY OFF-SITE WORK
FT (FT/FT) (MIN.) FT (FT/FT) YorN (MIN.) FT (FT7S) (MIN.) AREAS SHOWN ON THE PLAN, FROM ANY INTERFERENCE WITH THE
ELECTRIC LINES OR FROM DAMAGING, DIGGING UP OR UNCOVERING THE
ELECTRIC LINES, GETTING A LADDER IN HARMS WAY OR ANY OTHER
C 100.000 0.010 0.011 14 214 0.010 Y 1.8 0 4.00 0.00 50 0.083 3.000 MANNER. THIS RESPONSIBILITY HEREBY REMOVES THE ENGINEER AND
- - - - - - - - - - - k THE OWNER FROM ANY LIABILITY OF ANY NATURE. /
REVISION DATE SNV 9/4/2024 WARNING

SRR OF Tew THE SEAL APPEARING ON THIS —_— |

2 ‘;\‘* "'{f&". DOCUMENT WAS AUTHORIZED BY HEADQUARTERS IF THIS BAR DOES NOT MEASURE 1", CONVEYANCE DRAINAGE AREA MAP PROJECT NO. _1168-001-24
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Iltem 1.

~ Wed, Sep 04, 2024, 4:08pm, By: ana.cantu

"SITE DIMENSIONS CONTROL PLAN"

R1O ; N
0
Rl SITE DATA TRACTS 1 & 3
EDGE OF 20' PAVED ALLEY = PROPOSED IC — BUILDING 10,320 SF
REFER TO GEOTECHNICAL REPORT DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE A I I EY PROPOSED 16 — PARKING,/SIDEWALK 14816 oF
FOR PAVEMENT DESIGN 0 SEE DETAIL ON SHEET 23 , DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE EDGE OF 20' PAVED ALLEY PROPOSED IC — PARKING/SIDEWALK (ROW) 7,941 SF
‘RO PAVED SEE DETAIL ON SHEET 23 REFER TO GEOTECHNICAL REPORT
) ’ ) FOR PAVEMENT DESIGN
R10 R3 (20 W UNPAVED) R3 R3 oo TOTAL PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS COVER 33,077 SF
H RS / \ - /7 \viom -—
m dumpste 24 @ Hdumpste /< 0 10 20 40
(1) p" / R3 7T i SITE DATA TRACTS 2 & 4 e
< PROPOSED IC — BUILDING 4,917 SF MORIZONTAL SCALE: =20
m R3 A 8 I<—24' PROPOSED IC — PARKING/SIDEWALK 6,336 SF
R | R I PROPOSED IC — PARKING/SIDEWALK (ROW) 4,974 SF
N [ p 2ND STORY
| ‘ a N CURB INLET 24' BUILDING OVERHANG LEGEND
m ” TOTAL PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS COVER 16,227 SF
. \(/RS ——— @ - /, = == == ———  PROPERTY BOUNDARY
A | | | |4 Ool——1T— - —Er-l _—— —  EASEMENT LINE
| (4) BICYCLE PARKING | | '
2 , , FIRE FIRE LANE
- : SPACES 19 © ‘:P ‘:P 0 | (3) | ©) | BUILDING DATA TRACTS 1, 2, 3 & 4
| | CURB AND GUTTER
m 4 I % | | TOTAL EXISTING BUILDINGS 6,734 SF
S = - - - _ . | LOC LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION
/ AT AN T > . : A = 2 L IR T ‘ BLDG 101 & 107 33,036 SF
) A [t (- P N < g (1. AN 1 ) BLDG 104 & 108 14.100 SF cesesessesaase  ACCESSIBLE ROUTE
I ! L _—{EXISTING SIDEWALK
Q l I ADA RAMP oy G ACCESS ' TOTAL GROSS BUILDING AREA 47,136 SF - SIGN
~ 145’ - 95’ -— / BUILDING HEIGHT 3 STORIES 100
l | — STEPS (TYP.) | BLDG 2 BLDG 1 ] TREE TO BE KEPT
107 BOYCE ST. , 101 BOYCE ST.
< B 6,200 SF 43.85 4,100 SF | _
M E FFE = 534.00 I FFE = 534.00
< 4 [ ° <1/
S ~—{ouRa e ' Z -
~ 7 LCURB INLET STEPS (TYP) STEPS (TYP) STEPS (TYP)] [STEPS (TYP) 100 /
[}
z Y - = M\J /_{ STEPS (TYP')| 49 ; [ ° PROTECTED TREE TO BE KEPT
497' hd % - == _ﬁ‘ — - STEPS (TYP) L -_— — V\’/\J > e o W L -_— . —J 4.37’ \ /
N TR ; S CUI%B_lNLET| . Jacureout] T ) A/‘[:l'—'sl CURB cuT - f ~—
AN S 3’ CURB CUT] ) « e, B Ta e . ; R
M < = S | = i < — = : < _\\
DA RAMP \\ \\ ‘= — EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT
, , | (4) BICYCLE PARKING
S 24 24 = SPACES
R10’ : ’ , -
) \ 8 ®) \ 8 R10 PARKING CALCULATIONS (BUILDINGS 1 & 2)
DETECTABLE WARNING ’ RS’ F I . . . Parking | Parking
(PER DETAIL 432S-2A SHEET 16) Area (ac.) Building No. Units Number of Units Requirement Required | Provided
. — B O I ( E I i, S I I z I i, I / I ADA RAMP m One bedroom 5 bedrooms 1.5 spaces for 1 bedroom 8 8
PROPOSED CROSSWALK Two bedroom 2 bedrooms 2 spaces for 2 bedroom 4 4
(PER DETAIL ON SHEET 16) PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT| m 1(101 Boyce) , P
(80' ROW) Retail (Sales)(SF) 2883 SF 1 space for each 350 SF 8 10
DETECTABLE WARNING o @ ' m 0.660 Retail (Restaurant)(SF) 1500 SF 1space for each 250 SF 6 6
(PER DETAIL 432S-2A SHEET 16) R3 One bedroom 8 bedrooms 1.5 spaces for 1 bedroom 12 12
R10’ 7 F Two bedroom 2 bedrooms 2 spaces for 2 bedroom 4 4
m 2 (107 Boyce) -
O\ A @ m Retail (Sales)(SF) 3878 SF 1 space for each 350 SF 11 12
ADA RAMP “ . \ 2 1 Y — Retail (Restaurant)(SF) 1500 SF 1 space for each 250 SF 6 6
_ _ / B Subtotal (Bedrooms) + 10% Guest 30.3 -
1 ., T ICURBINLET| * ] P 5, . Subtotal (Retail) - 10% Reduction 28.2 -
a m
k N - 4 VN B O 2 TOTAL (Bedrooms + Retail) 59 62
5 - | \ ] /] =
“ Ao rave) —
o]
F ‘ ADA RAMP / Z PARKING CALCULATIONS (BUILDING 3)
) (4) BICYCLE PARKING U Parking | Parking
‘ —- 104.52’ -1, s - - -
I I | SPACES Area (ac.) Building No. Units Number of Units Requirement Required | Provided
| BLDG 3' 1y Z One Bedroom 4 1.5 spaces for 1 bedroom 6 8
, 104/108 BOYCE ST. Two Bedroom 4 2 spaces for 2 bedroom 8 6
45.78 H 0.300 3(104+108 B
4,900 SF ” ( oyce) Retail (Sales) (SF) 4,013 1 space for each 350 SF 11 12
FFE = 532'l50 T >< Retail (Restaurant)(SF) - - - -
/_'_[ Subtotal (Bedrooms) + 10% Guest 15.4 -
CURB INLET i) - 109 i -
| STEPS (TYP) STEPS (TYP.)| m Subtotal (Retail) - 10% Reduction 10.3
SOMPSTER ENCLOSURE l TOTAL (Bedrooms + Retail) 26 26
— SEE DETAIL ON SHEET 23
ADA RAMP PARKING PROVIDED
{ fumpste Standard: 84
Compact: 0
R3
N ELEC';'RIIé ACCESS Perallel 0
ONLY Accessible: 4
29.71° ) Total: 88
. | Accessible Spaces Required: 4
R3’ . ) N
R12 Bicycle Spaces Provided: 12 TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM
| ] 1-800-245-4545
UNDER PENALTY OF LAW, THE CONTRACTOR IS
REQUIRED TO CONTACT THE TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM
/|- AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE STARTING EXCAVATION.
18’_> a
R3’ \ |5 WIDE CURB CUT — ,A NOTE: ALL RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ADEQUACY OF THESE PLANS REMAINS
(REFER TO GRADING A WITH THE ENGINEER WHO PREPARES THEM. IN APPROVING THESE PLANS, THE

AND DRAINAGE PLAN) CITY OF MANOR MUST RELY UPON THE ADEQUACY OF THE WORK OF THE

DESIGN ENGINEER.

(20' ROW UNPAVED)

/CAUTION - ELECTRICITY PRESENT)

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR AND ALL SUBCONTRACTORS THAT ENTER OR
WORK ON THIS PROJECT ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING, USING
ONE-CALL OR THE ELECTRIC UTILITIES THEMSELVES, ALL OVERHEAD AND
UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL OF ANY NATURE AND FOR SAFEGUARDING
ALL PERSONNEL ON THIS PROJECT, INCLUDING ANY OFF-SITE WORK
AREAS SHOWN ON THE PLAN, FROM ANY INTERFERENCE WITH THE
ELECTRIC LINES OR FROM DAMAGING, DIGGING UP OR UNCOVERING THE
ELECTRIC LINES, GETTING A LADDER IN HARMS WAY OR ANY OTHER
ACTIVITY OF ANY NATURE THAT COULD HARM ANY INDIVIDUAL IN ANY
Q/IANNER. THIS RESPONSIBILITY HEREBY REMOVES THE ENGINEER AND/

CONTRACTOR TO TIE IN TO ALLEY
(FUTURE IMPROVEMENTS BY OTHERS)

THE OWNER FROM ANY LIABILITY OF ANY NATURE.
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— WwW

Iltem 1.

= = TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12 SITE PLAN NOTES N
caR 1) THE OWNER AND/OR DEVELOPER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTACTING TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12 TO
ca = . ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH ALL CODES,
o . . . L . ORDINANCES, STATUTES AND PERMITTING REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.
W —SF— Wl W —— G —<"C 7w S —&—ww—S—mw C oGS T - e - o . . . . . 2)  PRIOR TO BEGINNING ANY CONSTRUCTION, THE APPROPRIATE TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12 PERMIT/APPROVAL
e " e g W " - “& ¢ C SHALL BE OBTAINED. THE APPROVED
—G— ww ww —<—— ww ww ww ww W ——— W ——— ey L ww ww » JI\NG i = PERMIT SHALL BE READILY AVAILABLE ON SITE TO TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12.
® ( ﬁY) ROW UN W ﬁ ) E = 3) PHASED OCCUPANCY SHALL BE PERMITTED ONLY WITH PRIOR APPROVAL FROM TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12,
F = — — - J——— P by W 4 MY — e e—— @ THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT, AND OTHER
2 RELATED AGENCIES, AS APPLICABLE. REQUESTS FOR PHASED OCCUPANCY SHALL BE MADE PRIOR TO START
Lumpste ’ . = - OF CONSTRUCTION ONLY. 0 10 20 40
P umpste 4)  PHASED INSTALLATION OF FIRE ACCESS ROADS SHALL REQUIRE AN ACCESS PHASING PLAN APPROVED BY |
- TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12. h!—_!;_h;!—_é—
l I l = = 5) PHASED CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDINGS SHALL REQUIRE A CONSTRUCTION PHASING PLAN APPROVED TRAVIS HORIZONTAL SCALE: 1"=20"
| | = - COUNTY ESD NO. 12. '
| . ’ 6) AN ALL-WEATHER FIRE LANE/FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROAD SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO SUPPORT THE
m MAIN EXTERIOR I I IMPOSED LOAD OF A FIRE APPARATUS WEIGHING
4| GAS SHUT-OFF | = = MAIN EXTERIOR 75,000 POUNDS.
H i GAS SHUT-OFF | = 7)  THE FIRE LANE/FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROAD SHALL PROVIDE FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS TO ALL PARTS OF
s L COMBUSTIBLE STRUCTURES WITHIN 150 FEET
m a | ELECTRIC ACCESS ONLY OF THE FIRE LANE. THE APPROVED FIRE LANE/FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROAD MUST BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO LEGEND
i 3 - i AND MAINTAINED DURING CONSTRUCTION
3 = = OF ANY COMBUSTIBLE STRUCTURE, UNLESS OTHERWISE APPROVED BY TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12. - PROPERTY BOUNDARY
S 2 8) WHERE A FIRE HYDRANT IS LOCATED ON A FIRE LANE/FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROAD, THE MINIMUM ROAD
A —~ \ v O T 1" "I % “ WIDTH SHALL BE 26 FEET, EXCLUSIVE OF - _ EASEMENT LINE
B | - | b - SHOULDERS. IF NO FIRE HYDRANT IS PROVIDED, THE MINIMUM FIRE LANE/FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROAD
A 4 = ‘\%) ‘\%) I I = WIDTH SHALL BE 25 FEET. FIRE FIRE LANE
)J ®) 9)  FIRE LANE WIDTH IS MEASURED FROM TOP FACE OF CURB TO TOP FACE OF CURB FOR FIRE LANES WITH
. | | STANDARD CURBS AND GUTTERS AND FROM FLOW( LINE TO FLOW-LINE FOR FIRE LANES WITH MODIFIED CURB CURB AND GUTTER
a4 p [ [ - DESIGNS (E.G. ROLLED, RAMPED).
= e b — = — 5 = — — = - — 11 = 10) THE DEVELOPER IS RESPONSIBLE TO VERIFY THAT ALL APPROVED PUBLIC WORKS, STREET IMPROVEMENT AND LOC LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION
Ea a “ p z < . . ~ PRECISE GRADING PLANS CONFORM TO
B x M [ il A o] < R < . A [ L] i THE MINIMUM STREET WIDTH REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH BY THE FIRE CODE AND ADOPTED BY TRAVIS R R ACCESSIBLE ROUTE
l \ MAIN EXTERIOR 1 = 11 i(;AL:SHUTAS\[/)E':%éf\L CLEARANCE OF 14’ SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR ALL FIRE LANES/FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS — — — — HOSE LAY
D . ELECTRICAL DISCONNECT A
12)  INSIDE TURNING RADIUS OF FIRE LANES/FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROADS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 25 FEET. - SIGN
1 a BLDG 2 5LDG 1 _ = i THE OUTSIDE RADIUS SHALL BE 50 FEET.
p 13) DEAD-END FIRE LANES/FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROADS IN EXCESS OF 150 FEET SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH 100
] 107 BOYCE ST. 101 BOYCE ST. APPROVED TURNAROUND PER 2015 IFC
< 0 ] 6,200 SF 4,100 SF | APPENDIX D, TABLE D103.4. TREE TO BE KEPT
Rl E FFE = 534.00' FFE = 534.00' = . 14) THE DIAMETER OF A CUL-DE-SAC SHALL BE 100 FEET MINIMUM PER CITY OF MANOR SPECIFICATIONS.
AP / ‘ | 15) ACCESS GATES SHALL BE APPROVED BY TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12 PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.
{ 1 FIRE RISER ROOM | 16) ALL GATES IN CONSTRUCTION FENCING SHALL BE EQUIPPED WITH A KNOX OR BREAKAWAY PADLOCK
] +296 LF HOSE LAY | EXISTING 17)  IF BUILDING EXCEEDS 30 FEET IN HEIGHT FROM GRADE PLANE, AN AERIAL FIRE APPARATUS ROAD, 15-30 FEET
. i I " |FIRE HYDRANT PARALLEL TO ONE ENTIRE SIDE OF THE - -
%N 7 BUILDING SHALL BE IN PLACE. (2015 IFC, APPENDIX D105) 100
s |- . 18) FIRE LANES SHALL BE MARKED WITH FIRE LANE - TOW AWAY ZONE. THE CURBS SHALL BE PAINTED RED AND
——— e ] —7 PN 7 T THE LETTERING SHALL BE 4” IN
L] — — | —— — — e |o— — = —— — — — — - = - — — — R—— Wia = = HEIGHT AND PAINTED WHITE. THE STENCIL SHALL BE PLACED AT INTERVALS OF 35 FEET. | ° PROTECTED TREE TO BE KEPT
PR B v Y, 7 < A A a /g . T dTA " z =5 5 : " 19) THE MINIMUM REQUIRED FIRE FLOW SHALL MEET OR EXCEED THE REQUIREMENTS OF APPENDIX B OF THE 2015 \ )
// ) — B} A - P ! < ) A 9 . - b < T, . 4 . N INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE.
p N W 20) THE MAXIMUM FIRE FLOW REDUCTION FOR A PROJECT SHALL BE BASED ON THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN <
= = THE FIRE FLOW REDUCTION TABLE PROVIDED
i . IN TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12 DESIGN DOCUMENTS. NOTE:
X = o 21) ALL FIRE HYDRANTS THAT ARE APPROVED AND INSTALLED AS A PART OF THE PROPOSED PROJECT SHALL BE :
= PART OF A FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEM.
/ N = 22) THE UTILITY CONTRACTOR SHALL CONSULT TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12 REGARDING ANY REQUIREMENTS FOR 1. FIRE PROTECTION ACCESS TO BE
K K K AT 49\ TV /@‘ W W Vi W =W W W W UTILITY CONTRACTORS. PROVIDED VIA N. CALDWELL
p p p p p ) ) ) ‘M | ) ) ) F 23) ;:EAP_I\_PEFE)R_I(_)PRIATE INDIVIDUAL SHALL CONSULT WITH TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12 FOR REQUIREMENTS STREET AND BOYCE STREET.
O THE UNDERGROUND WATER MAIN
LINE AND SUBSEQUENT INSTALLATION OF THE WATER MAIN/FIRE HYDRANT LINE.
.42’ 24) THE SUBMISSION OF AN UNDERGROUND WATER LINE (UTILITY) PLAN SHEET WITH THE SITE PLAN DOES NOT
ALLEVIATE THE NEED TO HAVE A SEPARATE
PROPOSED 20'R.O.W - I | l grl_\fr\llzggggli:\lo? zlg;\rl\lsiﬁmgﬁ% AND APPROVED BY TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12. THE APPROVAL OF A SITE
FIRE HYDRANT ( T ) APPROVAL OF AN UNDERGROUND SYSTEM.
25) UNDERGROUND MAINS FEEDING HYDRANTS SHALL BE INSTALLED AND TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH NFPA 24,
- THE FIRE CODE AND TRAVIS COUNTY
= F ESD NO. 12 ADOPTED AMENDMENTS, BY A CONTRACTOR LICENSED TO PERFORM THE INSTALLATION. THE
W W » 5 W W W W W W W W W & W W W W " W W W W W W W W W W W ENTIRE MAIN MUST BE HYDROSTATICALLY
s m TESTED AT ONE TIME UNLESS ISOLATION VALVES ARE PROVIDED BETWEEN TESTED SECTIONS.
< = 26) TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12 CONSIDERS THE PIPING FROM THE POINT OF CONNECTION AT THE MUNICIPAL
I ~ WATER SUPPLY TO THE FIRE HYDRANTS AND
/ A |— - - B THE BASE OF ANY FIRE SPRINKLER RISER PART OF A FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEM.
ro s QA . s s . . L s - 27) THE PRESENCE OF DOMESTIC WATER SUPPLY TAPS OFF OF THE MAIN WATER LINE OR A SHARED SUPPLY LINE
A ay 2 = WITH FIRE SPRINKLER RISER DOES NOT
/ 2 \ % I - - / -I FIRE RISER ROOM O OVERRIDE ANY REQUIREMENTS OF TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12 OR NFPA 24. NFPA 24 SHALL APPLY TO ALL
'/ ( 2 N /7[ 4 a7 UNDERGROUND INSTALLATIONS AND
| [V > INSTALLATIONS SHALL BE PERMITTED AND INSPECTED BY TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12.
/ = E B 28) FIRE HYDRANTS SHALL MEET THE MINIMUM STANDARD OF THE CITY OF MANOR AND TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO.
| 1 N 12. (M511S-17A) AND PAINTED RED.
\ 1 ( D 29) THE 4.5” FIRE HYDRANT OUTLET MUST FACE THE FIRE LANE.
1) | 1 ! 30) THE HYDRANTS SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH THE CENTER OF THE 4.5” OPENING AT LEAST 18” ABOVE FINISHED
ls GRADE.
| \ 2 |" z 31) HYDRANTS SHALL BE PLACED WITHIN 100 FEET OF AN FDC.
) BLDG 3 B 32) HYDRANTS SHALL BE LOCATED SO THAT A HOSE LINE RUNNING BETWEEN THE HYDRANT AND THE FIRE
104/108 BOYCE ST. DEPARTMENT CONNECTION(S) WILL NOT CROSS
L] \ 4.900 SF +171 LF HOSE LAY = P DRIVEWAYS, OBSTRUCT ROADS OR FIRE LANES, OR OTHERWISE INTERFERE WITH EMERGENCY VEHICLE
Ax \ FFE = 532 50° >< RESPONSE AND EVACUATION OF A SITE.
: < 33) ALL FIRE HYDRANTS SHALL HAVE A “BLUE REFLECTIVE PAVEMENT MARKER’ INDICATING THEIR LOCATION.
< I MAIN EXTERIOR 34) HYDRANTS SHALL BE PLACED AT NO MORE THAN 500 FEET APART, UNLESS OTHERWISE APPROVED BY TRAVIS
1 \ | //_ ELECTRICAL DISCONNECT = m COUNTY ESD NO. 12. (2015 IFC, TABLE
L] C102.1)
] | | / | 35) HYDRANTS AND FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTIONS SHALL NOT BE LOCATED BEHIND PARKING STALLS OR IN
2 . OTHER LOCATIONS WHERE THEY ARE LIKELY TO
\\M — L }L/ b BE BLOCKED BY VEHICLES OR OTHER OBJECTS. WHENEVER POSSIBLE, HYDRANTS SHALL BE PLACED IN
1 = — LANDSCAPE ISLANDS/PENINSULAS, STREET AND
‘ DRIVE AISLE INTERSECTIONS IN PREFERENCE TO MID-BLOCK LOCATIONS.
Y - 36) HYDRANTS MUST BE LOCATED WITHIN THREE TO SIX FEET OF THE EDGE OF A FIRE ACCESS ROADWAY.
RE Humpster  |[] 37) HYDRANTS SHALL NOT BE LOCATED IN AREAS WHERE THEY WILL BE VISUALLY OR OPERATIONALLY
| | OBSTRUCTED (BEHIND FENCES OR WALLS, IN BUSHES,
- z BEHIND PARKING SPACES, ETC).
= | 1L - 38) A MINIMUM 3-FOOT CLEARANCE SHALL BE PROVIDED AROUND THE CIRCUMFERENCE OF THE HYDRANT.
y 39) APPROVED FIRE HYDRANTS ARE TO BE CONSIDERED PART OF A FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEM AND SHALL NOT BE
| REMOVED OR TAMPERED WITH UNLESS
APPROVED BY TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12. TAMPERING SHALL INCLUDE, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, PAINTING,
ELECTRIC ACCESS ONLY = MODIFYING, AND OBSTRUCTING ACCESS.
| 40) FIRE SPRINKLER RISER ROOMS SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH EXTERIOR ACCESS. NO INTERIOR ACCESS SHALL BE
PROVIDED. THE EXTERIOR ACCESS DOOR
| | | SHALL FACE A DESIGNATED FIRE LANE, UNLESS OTHERWISE APPROVED BY TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12.
S = 41) ANY FIRE HYDRANTS THAT HAVE NOT PASSED AN ACCEPTANCE TEST IN THE PRESENCE OF A TRAVIS COUNTY TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM
MAIN EXTERIOR | ] ESD NO. 12 INSPECTOR OR TEMPORARILY 1-800-245-4545
GAS SHUT-OFF MAIN EXTERIOR INOPERATIVE SHOULD BE WRAPPED WITH A BLACK BAG. UNDER PENALTY OF LAW. THE CONTRACTOR IS
42) THE BUILDING ADDRESS SHALL BE CLEARLY VISIBLE FROM THE STREET TO WHICH IT IS ADDRESSED. FINAL :
- GAS SHUT-OFF y REQUIRED TO CONTACT THE TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM
= T NUMBERS HAVE TO BE AT LEAST & IN HEIGHT AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE STARTING EXCAVATION
« AND OF CONTRASTING COLOR WITH THE BACKGROUND UPON WHICH THEY ARE PLACED. :
| \ ) 43) TEMPORARY FUEL TANKS OF 60 OR MORE GALLONS SHALL BE INSPECTED BY TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12 TO
) ENSURE THE APPROPRIATE REQUIREMENTS
=" A h ARE MET. NOTE: ALL RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ADEQUACY OF THESE PLANS REMAINS
G G G e G G G G G G G G G %G G 4 G 44) PRIOR TO OCCUPANCY, A CLOSE OUT INSPECTION TEST OF FIRE HYDRANT FLOW IS REQUIRED BY TRAVIS WITH THE ENGINEER WHO PREPARES THEM. IN APPROVING THESE PLANS, THE
ﬁ‘ G G G G G G G c G c—+—o¢ COUNTY ESD NO. 12. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CITY OF MANOR MUST RELY UPON THE ADEQUACY OF THE WORK OF THE
ww Building1 Building2 Building3 CONTACT TRAVIS COUNTY ESD NO. 12 TO SCHEDULE THE ACCEPTANCE TEST. IF ANY HYDRANT FAILS THE FIRE DESIGN ENGINEER.
FLOW TEST, THE ENTIRE SYSTEM FAILS
ww ww ww ww ww ww ww ww ww ww ww WWWW?AV@W o —<— (101 Boyce St) | (107 Boyce St) | (104/108 Boyce St) THE FIRE FLOW TEST.
’ di - 2 2 2 45) APPROVAL OF THIS PLAN SUBMITTAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A VERIFICATION OF ALL DATA, CODES, / \
Building Construction Type \-B \-B \-B INFORMATION, AND CALCULATIONS SUPPLIED BY THE CAUTION - ELECTRICITY PRESENT
Occupanccy Type R2&M R2 R2 APPLICANT. THE LICENSED DESIGNER AND/OR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER OF RECORD IS SOLELY RESPONSIBLE TE GENERAL CONTRACTOR AND ALL SUBCONTRACTORS THAT ENTER OR
Total Gross Hoor Area (includingall floors) 12,300 18,600 ¢ 14,700 ¢ FOR THE COMPLETENESS, ACCURACY, AND WORK ON THIS PROJECT ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING, USING
Required Fire Flow 5000 5000 5000 égg(é%%cgp?:;\mi ?Bl\J(BTl\gZ;r/g_(\ZA(I)HUEI\-ITYER OR NOT THE PLAN SUBMITTAL 1S REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR ONE-CALL OR THE ELECTRIC UTILITIES THEMSELVES, ALL OVERHEAD AND
. UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL OF ANY NATURE AND FOR SAFEGUARDING
Available Fire How based on Fire How Test 1592 1592 1592 EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT NO. 12. ALL PERSONNEL ON THIS PROJECT, INCLUDING ANY OFF-SITE WORK
: T : - - AREAS SHOWN ON THE PLAN, FROM ANY INTERFERENCE WITH THE
AlIgwed Fire How for a Sorinklered Building of this Occupancy Qassification 1500 1500 1500 ELECTRIC LINES OR FROM DAMAGING, DIGGING UP OR UNGOVERING THE
Sorinkler System to be Installed 13R& 13 18R 13R ELECTRIC LINES, GETTING A LADDER IN HARMS WAY OR ANY OTHER
ACTIVITY OF ANY NATURE THAT COULD HARM ANY INDIVIDUAL IN ANY
Number of Apartments 7 10 8 MANNER. THIS RESPONSIBILITY HEREBY REMOVES THE ENGINEER AND
Building Height 441t 441t 441t k THE OWNER FROM ANY LIABILITY OF ANY NATURE. /
Number of Stories 3 3 3
NO. REVISION DATE ..Q-E\B?\T\\ x 9/4/2024 WARNING
S L OF Te W THE SEAL APPEARING ON THIS — — |
p’ﬁé\v "'{f&". DOCUMENT WAS AUTHORIZED BY HEADQUARTERS IF THIS BAR DOES NOT MEASURE 1*, FIRE PROTECTION PLAN PROJECT NO. _1168-001-24
£ %l A. CAMPBELL KEY IV, PE : THE DRAWING IS NOT TO SCALE :
r & S % 307 Saint Lawrence Street, Gonzales TX 78629
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/ 2 SO uthwest P: 830.672.7546 F:830.672.2034
A CAMPBELL KEY IV § THE DATE INDICATED. ANY
".'°' ALTERATIONS OF THIS SEALED o -
W2, 147977 ‘55; DOCUMENT WITHOUT PROPER En I nee rs DRAWN BY: APCG /BS DRAWING NO.
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530.25' .
5'CURB CUT | 530.50
\ (SEE CROSS SECTION
SHEET 13)
\\ 530.50'
HEAD WALL

WARNING

— — |

LEXINGTON STREET
(80' R.O.W.)

GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN

Iltem 1.

0 10 20 40
= " —

HORIZONTAL SCALE: 1"=20'

LEGEND

EXISTING CONTOURS

(700} PROPOSED CONTOURS
700.00’|o PROPOSED SPOT ELEVATION

PROPOSED STORM DRAIN

TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM
1-800-245-4545

UNDER PENALTY OF LAW, THE CONTRACTOR IS
REQUIRED TO CONTACT THE TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM
AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE STARTING EXCAVATION.

NOTE: ALL RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ADEQUACY OF THESE PLANS REMAINS
WITH THE ENGINEER WHO PREPARES THEM. IN APPROVING THESE PLANS, THE
CITY OF MANOR MUST RELY UPON THE ADEQUACY OF THE WORK OF THE
DESIGN ENGINEER.

/CAUTION - ELECTRICITY PRESENT)

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR AND ALL SUBCONTRACTORS THAT ENTER OR
WORK ON THIS PROJECT ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING, USING
ONE-CALL OR THE ELECTRIC UTILITIES THEMSELVES, ALL OVERHEAD AND
UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL OF ANY NATURE AND FOR SAFEGUARDING
ALL PERSONNEL ON THIS PROJECT, INCLUDING ANY OFF-SITE WORK
AREAS SHOWN ON THE PLAN, FROM ANY INTERFERENCE WITH THE
ELECTRIC LINES OR FROM DAMAGING, DIGGING UP OR UNCOVERING THE
ELECTRIC LINES, GETTING A LADDER IN HARMS WAY OR ANY OTHER
ACTIVITY OF ANY NATURE THAT COULD HARM ANY INDIVIDUAL IN ANY

MANNER. THIS RESPONSIBILITY HEREBY REMOVES THE ENGINEER AND
THE OWNER FROM ANY LIABILITY OF ANY NATURE. J
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1+65.27 CONNECT TO PROPOSED
6" PVC WASTEWATER MAIN

2+96.80 WASTEWATER LINE
INSTALL:

EXISTING SERVICE CLEANOUT

TO BE ABANDONED

PROPOSED #256 LF 6" PVC

3+40.79 WASTEWATER LINE

EXISTING 6" CI
WATER LINE

EXISTING 6" PVC
WATER LINE

BUILDING 1

WATER SUPPLY FIXTURE UNITS = 175.5
DEMAND = 60 GPM

BUILDING 2

WATER SUPPLY FIXTURE UNITS = 289

1-6" SERVICE
) 1-6" CLEANOUT )
1+00.00 BEGIN PROPOSED INSTALL: WASTEWATER LINE INSTALL:
8" PVC WASTEWATER LINE 1+07.05 WASTEWATER LINE 1-6"X6"TEE EXISTING SERVICE CLEANOUT 1-6" SERVICE -
CONNECT TO EXISTING MANHOLE INSTALL: TO BE ABANDONED 1-6" CLEANOUT
1-6" 45° BEND CONTRACTOR TO CONNECT TO
/~ | EXISTING CLEANOUT. 3+49.27 WASTEWATER LINE
—Q INSTALL:
EXISTING MANHOLE GAD 1 - 6" 45° BEND -
o C
. s - TO REMAIN [ > (G ” i P ‘
wW — Gw—= G ﬁ; -
=" W — W= A ww- ww M ww ij —1= > ¢ —|3+56.33 END PROPOSED 8" PVC ||
ww ww [;w ww ww ww T e Wit W T — 0 WASTEWATER LINE
WW
o C w w oy —< (ﬁb ROW UNW ﬁﬁ CONNECT TO EXISTING MANHOLE =
EXISTING 6" CLAY © O l
WASTEWATER LINE P s — e
T /- EXISTING MANHOLE pe——
’ 2 Hutapste CONNECT TO PROPOSED bumpster  [LTO.REMAIN h
‘ EXISTING 6" CLAY 6" PVC WASTEWATER MAIN
s 74 LF OF PROPOSED WASTEWATER LINE INSTALL:
: I l l 6" WW PVC SDR-26 TO BE ABANDONED 1-6"X 6" TEE £
I LINE @ 1% MIN. 72 LF OF PROPOSED I MAIN EXTERIOR | =
y 6" WW PVC SDR-26 B 2
MAIN EXTERIOR CONTRACTOR TO CONNECT TO LINE @ 1% MIN GAS SHUT-OFF
NH GAS SHUT-OFF EXISTING CLEANOUT. b MIN. | |
@] 1 1 § =
- L | =
! 09 |
< ]
— = Y i e 7 |
© |
;J > Dk 2 Q) ) | | ! [
@) | END 6" WW LINE 5' FROM BUILDING.
l I l ; REFER TO MEP PLAN FOR
© a2 & CONTINUATION. = i
_O ) 7 ) / ] P - R A . S i 7 . B R - R B2 ; < T, A < < l
B‘” e i . . Dl N Ml A . A3 /] A
l I
O
END 6" WW LINE 5' FROM BUILDING. MAIN EXTERIOR h =
- REFER TO MEP PLAN FOR SPRINKLER RISER ROOM ELECTRICAL DISCONNECT
CONTINUATION BACKFLOW PREVENTER FOR | &
. : DOMESTIC AND FIRE LINES TO
| BLDG 2 BE LOCATED WITHIN RISER BLDG 1 N = .
ROOM FOR SERVICE
107 BOYCE ST. 101 BOYCE ST.
. < 4 | 6,200 SF 4,100 SF L
: I E FFE = 534.00' END 4" FIRE LINE 5' FROM FFE = 534.00' = -
R BUILDING. REFER TO MEP
» i PLAN FOR CONTINUATION.
< ] ‘ FIRE DEPARTMENT | EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT | !
CONNECTION -
[ ]
N a 2
. z : PN EN AT ] | |
\ —— | — | C—— — — _? -— e = -— eas coEEESEEEE——— e = — END 4" FIRE LINE 5' FROM  [r J—, -— — e cm— = =
U Y 7 y 7 T X AT 7 - “ BUILDING REFER TO MEP P a > 2
: /] 2 s T : a a N ‘e PLAN FOR CONTINUATION. X s 4 g } A
EXISTING 4" PVC < P .
WATER LINE 1+00.00 BEGIN PROPOSED & END 2" DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE EG(A%'QEISEPVC
' 6" PVC WATER LINE < L LINE 5' FROM BUILDING. REFER
‘ WATER VALVE 6" PVC WATER LINE \v—) VALVE TO REMAIN -
—— =
w w ’ w w w w w w w g = = \ W w Ui W Eow W
o M M M M M M M M M M M M F
\ 1+5.89 WATER LINE
INSTALL: 3+27.12 END PROPOSED
. 1-6" 45° BEND EXISTING 4" PVC 6" PVC WATER LINE
- WATER LINE TO CONNECT TO EXISTING VALVE =
EXISTING 8" PVC INSTALL: CONNECT TO EXISTING (80' R.O. BE ABANDONED
WATER LINE 1-8"X 6" C900 TEE 8" WATER LINE
. 1-51/4" FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY INSTALL: CONNECT TO EXISTING 3+21.26 WATER LINE
1- 6" GATE VALVE 1-8"X 2" SERVICE CLAMP 8" WATER LINE INSTALL. -
7 LF D.I. LEAD 1-11/2" METER W/ BFP INSTALL: 1-6" 457 BEND H
W W @ W o \ W B 1-8" X 4" SERVICE CLAMP W/ BFP W W W W W W " W W W W W W

MAIN EXTERIOR

EXISTING 8" CLAY

WASTEWATER LINE

G 7Z?
ww ww

ww

NO.

ww

ww

ww

EXISTING
T

MANHOLE
O REMAIN

1+00.00 BEGIN PROPOSED
8" PVC WASTEWATER LINE
CONNECT TO EXISTING MANHOLE

REVISION

NG

END 4" FIRE LINE &'

P : FROM BUILDING. REFER TO
< MEP PLAN FOR CONTINUATION.

pAY
—

/
<

Y1

END 2" DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE

LINE 5' FROM BUILDING.
REFER TO MEP PLAN FOR
CONTINUATION.

BLDG 3
104/108 BOYCE ST.
4,900 SF
FFE = 532.50'

|
END 6" WW LINE 5' FROM BUILDING.

REFER TO MEP PLAN FOR
CONTINUATION. ‘\

GAS SHUT- o#ﬁ

DATE

|
I \ CONTRACTOR TO CONNECT TO
EXISTING CLEANOUT. .

MAIN EXTERIOR
ELECTRICAL DISCONNECT
LJ

|
|
= El

dumpste

6" WW PVC SDR-26 ———_

LINE @ 1% MIN.

|
I

K
| 71 LF OF PROPOSED §
|

ww
-G o

G G G G % G G G
GAS -
2+44.29 CONNECT TO PROPOSED
8" PVC WASTEWATER MAIN
107,05 WASTEWATER LINE ER MAN
1-8" 45° BEND 1-8"X6"TEE
S, 9/4/2024
S EOF TEMW, THE SEAL APPEARING ON THIS
o e, DOCUMENT WAS AUTHORIZED BY
£rs % ) A. CAMPBELL KEY IV, PE
£ 1. k%) #147977 ON
%'A. CAMPBELL KEY IV 4 THE DATE INDICATED. ANY
"u-'..-u-uuno- uu..-::n.l ALTERATIONS OF THIS SEALED
W, 147977 &3 DOCUMENT WITHOUT PROPER
WO bleens NS NOTIFICATION TO THE
WOS/ONAL DN RESPONSIBLE ENGINEER IS AN
'a Ve o1 OFFENSE UNDER THE TEXAS
N s ENGINEERING PRACTICE ACT,

INSTALL:
1-8"X4"SE

2+55.61 CONNECT TO EXISTING

Y/ w W w w
\__| 8" FIRE LINE

RVICE CLAMP W/ BFP

INSTALL:

2-11/2" MET

2+50.61 CONNECT TO
EXISTING 8" WATER LINE

1-8"X 2" SERVICE CLAMP

ERS W/ BFP

8" FIRE LINE
INSTALL:

SPRINKLER RISER ROOM

BE LOCATED WITHIN RISER
ROOM FOR SERVICE

BACKFLOW PREVENTER FOR
DOMESTIC AND FIRE LINES TO

2+45.61 CONNECT TO EXISTING

1-8" X 4" SERVICE CLAMP W/ BFP

MAIN EXTERIOR
GAS SHUT-OFF

Southwest
Engineers

TBPE NO. F-1909
www.swengineers.com

=
EXISTING 6" CI /

WATER LINE

LEXINGTON S

EXISTING MANHOLE
TO REMAIN

ww

PROP

WASTEWATER LINE

OSED #289 LF 8" PVC

EXISTING 8" CLAY
WASTEWATER LINE
TO BE ABANDONED

HEADQUARTERS

307 Saint Lawrence Street, Gonzales TX 78629
P: 830.672.7546 F:830.672.2034

CENTRAL TEXAS

G b"‘G
ww T ww

w w DEMAND = 83 GPM
BUILDING 2
WATER SUPPLY FIXTURE UNITS = 261
DEMAND = 77 GPM

Y Y CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY LOCATION

OF EXISTING WASTEWATER SERVICE
CONNECTIONS AND RE-CONNECT OLD

< SERVICES TO NEW WASTEWATER MAIN AS
= NECESSARY.

<

=4

o

o0

~ NOTES:

Iltem 1.

0 10 20 40
e = ——

HORIZONTAL SCALE: 1"=20'

LEGEND

w w w EXISTING WATER LINE

w w w PROPOSED WATER LINE
ww ww ww EXISTING WASTEWATER LINE
ww ww ww PROPOSED WASTEWATER LINE
SD SD SD EXISTING STORM DRAIN LINE
SD SD SD PROPOSED STORM DRAIN LINE

¢ G G EXISTING GAS LINE

OF OE OE EXISTING OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINE

UE UE UE EXISTING UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC LINE
T T T EXISTING UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE LINE

EXISTING WATER VALVE
PROPOSED WATER VALVE
EXISTING WATER METER
PROPOSED WATER METER
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT
PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WASTEWATER MANHOLE

PROPOSED WASTEWATER MANHOLE

EXISTING LIGHT POLE

EXISTING LIGHT POLE W/ARM

EXISTING UTILITY POLE

og%@@@ymgm

EXISTING SIGN

EXISTING CLEANOUT

ey

1.  THE LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE SHOWN IN AN APPROXIMATE WAY ONLY. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES BEFORE COMMENCING
WORK. THE CONTRACTOR AGREES TO BE FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT BE
OCCASIONED BY HIS FAILURE TO EXACTLY LOCATE AND RESERVE ANY AND ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

2. METERS CANNOT BE LOCATED BEHIND FENCES.

3. UNDERGROUND MAINS SUPPLYING NFPA 13 SPRINKLER SYSTEMS MUST BE INSTALLED AND TESTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH NFPA 13, AND THE FIRE CODE, BY A LICENSED SPRINKLER CONTRACTOR WITH A
PLUMBING PERMIT. THE ENTIRE MAIN MUST BE HYDROSTATICALLY TESTED AT ONE TIME, UNLESS ISOLATION
VALVES ARE PROVIDED BETWEEN TESTED SECTIONS.

4. UNDERGROUND MAINS SUPPLYING PRIVATE HYDRANTS MUST BE INSTALLED AND TESTED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH NFPA 24, AND THE FIRE CODE, BY A LICENSED CONTRACTOR WITH A PLUMBING PERMIT. THE ENTIRE
MAIN MUST BE HYDROSTATICALLY TESTED AT ONE TIME, UNLESS ISOLATION VALVES ARE PROVIDED

BETWEEN TESTED SECTIONS.

5. ALL UTILITIES INSIDE THE PROPERTY LINES WILL BE PRIVATELY OWNED AND MAINTAINED.

ww ww

ww
=

3+88.60 END PROPOSED 8" PVC
WASTEWATER LINE
CONNECT TO EXISTING MANHOLE

3+81.53 WASTEWATER LINE
INSTALL:
1-8" 45° BEND

WARNING

— — |

WATER & WASTEWATER PLAN

TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM
1-800-245-4545

UNDER PENALTY OF LAW, THE CONTRACTOR IS
REQUIRED TO CONTACT THE TEXAS ONE CALL SYSTEM
AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE STARTING EXCAVATION.

NOTE: ALL RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ADEQUACY OF THESE PLANS REMAINS
WITH THE ENGINEER WHO PREPARES THEM. IN APPROVING THESE PLANS, THE
CITY OF MANOR MUST RELY UPON THE ADEQUACY OF THE WORK OF THE
DESIGN ENGINEER.

/CAUTION - ELECTRICITY PRESENT)

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR AND ALL SUBCONTRACTORS THAT ENTER OR
WORK ON THIS PROJECT ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING, USING
ONE-CALL OR THE ELECTRIC UTILITIES THEMSELVES, ALL OVERHEAD AND
UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL OF ANY NATURE AND FOR SAFEGUARDING
ALL PERSONNEL ON THIS PROJECT, INCLUDING ANY OFF-SITE WORK
AREAS SHOWN ON THE PLAN, FROM ANY INTERFERENCE WITH THE
ELECTRIC LINES OR FROM DAMAGING, DIGGING UP OR UNCOVERING THE
ELECTRIC LINES, GETTING A LADDER IN HARMS WAY OR ANY OTHER
ACTIVITY OF ANY NATURE THAT COULD HARM ANY INDIVIDUAL IN ANY
kMANNER. THIS RESPONSIBILITY HEREBY REMOVES THE ENGINEER AND/

THE OWNER FROM ANY LIABILITY OF ANY NATURE.
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MANOR

&% TEXAS ©72

CITY COUNCIL
WORKSHOP SESSION MINUTES
OCTOBER 19, 2024

PRESENT:
Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Emily Hill, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 1
Anne Weir, Place 2 (Absent)

Maria Amezcua, Place 3

Sonia Wallace, Place 4

Aaron Moreno, Place 5

Deja Hill, Place 6

CITY STAFF:

Scott Moore, City Manager
Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary
Tracey Vasquez, HR Director

WORKSHOP SESSION - 9:00 A.M.

With a quorum of the Council Members present, the workshop session of the Manor City
Council was called to order by Mayor Harvey at 9:09 a.m. on Saturday, October 19, 2024, in the
Manor City Hall, 105 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas.

A. Discussion of the City of Manor Policies and Procedures Handbook

HR Director Vasquez discussed the following proposed policies.

* Section 1 - Equal Opportunity and Commitment to Diversity
1.3 Commitment to Diversity and Inclusion
1.4 Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Reasonable Accommodations
1.6 Pregnant Workers Fairness Act

* Section 2 - Conflict of Interest and Confidentiality
2.3 Employee Privacy
2.4 Privacy-Social Security Numbers

City of Manor Page 1
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City Council Workshop Minutes
October 19, 2024

* Section 3 - Employment Relationship
3.4 Workweek and Hours of Work
3.5 Hybrid Working
3.10 Deductions from Pay/Safe Harbor
3.13 Access to Personnel Files
3.16 Certification Pay
3.17 Promotion, Demotion, and Transfers
3.18 Sign-on and Retention Bonus

» Section 4 - Workplace Safety
4.1 Drug-Free and Alcohol-Free Workplace
4.6 Visitors
4.7 Continuity of Operations

* Section 5 — Workplace Guidelines
5.5 Social Media Acceptable Use

There was no action taken.
ADJOURNMENT

The Manor City Council Workshop Session Adjourned at 10:50 a.m. on Saturday, October
19, 2024.

The Manor City Council approved these minutes on November 6, 2024.

APPROVED:

Dr. Christopher Harvey
Mayor

ATTEST:

Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC
City Secretary

City of Manor Page 2
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City of Manor
History

The City of Manor, founded in 1872, was located on the Houston and Texas Central Railway,
giving residents easy access to markets. The City was named for James B. Manor who settled on
Gilleland Creek, west of present-day downtown Manor. By the mid-1880s Manor had a district
school, three churches, six general stores, and a population of 125. Cotton, cottonseed, and grain
were the principal commodities shipped from the area. The community grew rapidly in the late
nineteenth and early centuries, with population estimates reaching 500 by 1892 and 900 by 1914.
In the late 1920s, Manor had 1,000 residents but the onset of the Great Depression led to a
decline. Manor continued to serve as a commercial center for area farmers, many of whom used
the railroad to ship livestock and dairy products. Based on the Decennial Census, the 2000
population was 1,200 persons. Today, the City of Manor’s population exceeds an estimate of
12,000 residents.

Over the next decade, the City of Manor is poised to see explosive growth as its proximity
to Austin, its affordable land, and its location at an interchange of the SH130 toll-road set the
stage for this growth. Many new subdivisions offer a variety of housing types for first-time home
buyers to retirees. In addition, the possibility that the still-active rail line might be used for

commuter rail has increases Manor’s growth prospects.

In conjunction with the current boom in residential growth, commercial retail and service
providers are discovering that the City of Manor has affordable land, along with streamlined
development processes created to welcome new development.

Your City Government

The City of Manor is a "Home-Rule" city which operates as Council-Manager form of
government. Manor's governing body is made up of six Council Members and the Mayor, all of
whom have an equal vote in making decisions for the City. The Mayor and the Council Members
are elected at-large, by Place. Each seat on the council, except for the position of mayor, are
numbered as Place 1 through Place 6. The Council Member occupying a particular seat is
identified by the Place number assigned to that council seat.
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Welcome

Welcome to City of Manor! We are delighted that you have chosen to join our organization and
hope that you will enjoy a long and successful career with us. As you become familiar with our
culture and mission, we hope you will take advantage of opportunities to enhance your career
and further the City’s goals.

You are joining an organization that has a reputation for outstanding leadership, innovation,
sustainability, and diversity. Our team uses their creativity and talent to invent new solutions,
meet new demands, and provide quality services. With your active involvement, creativity, and
support, the City will continue to achieve its goals. We sincerely hope you will take pride in being
an important part of City's success.

Please take time to review the policies contained in this handbook. If you have questions, feel
free to ask your supervisor or to contact the Human Resources (HR) department.
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Workplace Safety

4.1 Drug-Free and Alcohol-Free Workplace
4.2 Smoke-Free Workplace

4.3 Workplace Violence Prevention

4.4 Commitment to Safety

4.5 Emergency Closings

4.6 Visitors

4.7 Continuity of Operations*

Workplace Guidelines

5.1 Attendance

5.2 Job Performance

5.3 Outside Employment

5.4 Dress and Grooming

5.5 Social Media Acceptable Use

5.6 Solicitation

5.7 Computers, Internet, E-Mail, and Other Resources
5.8 Conduct and Workplace Rules

5.9 Social Media

Time Off and Leaves of Absence

6.1 Holidays

6.2 Vacation

6.3 Sick Leave

6.4 Family and Medical Leave**
6.5 Military Leave

6.6 Bereavement Leave

6.7 Jury Duty/Court Appearance
6.8 Time Off for Voting

6.9 Mental Health Leave*

6.10 Compensatory Time

Employee Benefits

7.1 Medical, Dental, and Vision Insurance
7.2 Group Life Insurance

7.3 COBRA*

7.4 Short-Term Disability

7.5 Long-Term Disability

7.6 Retirement

7.7 Workers” Compensation

7.8 Employee Assistance Program

7.9 Light Duty

7.10 Unemployment Compensation
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7.11 Travel
7.12 Education Reimbursement
7.13 Car Allowance/ Take Home Vehicle

Employee Acknowledgment and Receipt of Employee Handbook
Employee Acknowledgment and Receipt of Harassment Policy

Employee Acknowledgement and Receipt of Worker’s Compensation and On Call/Call Back
Policies

Acknowledgement and Receipt of Essential/Non-Essential Status

**This personnel policy should not be considered all-inclusive. The absence of a specific
policy covering any act of the employee of the City of Manor does not mean that act is
condoned, permissible, or would not call for disciplinary action.

**This Personnel Policies & Procedures Handbook does not constitute a contract of
employment. Nothing in this handbook is intended to alter the continuing at-will status of
employment with the City.
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Equal Opportunity and Commitment to Diversity

1.1 Employment at Will
Employment in the City is on an at-will basis unless otherwise stated in a written individual
employment agreement signed by the City Manager.

This means that the employee or the City may terminate the employment relationship at any
time, for any reason, with or without notice.

Nothing in this employee handbook creates or is intended to create an employment agreement,
express or implied. Nothing contained in this, or any other document provided to the employee,
is intended to be, nor should it be, construed as a contract that employment or any benefit will
be continued for any period. In addition, no City representative is authorized to modify this policy
for any employee or to enter into any agreement, oral or written, that changes the at-will
relationship.

Any salary figures provided to an employee in annual or hourly terms are stated for convenience
or to facilitate comparisons and are not intended to and do not create an employment contract
for any specific period.

Nothing in this statement is intended to interfere with, restrain, or prevent concerted activity as
protected by the National Labor Relations Act (NLRA). Such activity includes employee
communications regarding wages, hours, or other terms or conditions of employment. City
employees have the right to engage in or refrain from such activities.

City Council must approve amendments and additions to the Personnel Policies & Procedures
Handbook. The Human Resource Department produces all personnel policies, while the City
Manager is responsible for the implementation of the policies.

1.2 Equal Opportunity

The City provides equal employment opportunities to all employees and applicants for
employment without regard to race, color, creed, ancestry, national origin, citizenship, sex or
gender (including pregnancy, childbirth, and pregnancy-related conditions), gender identity or
expression (including transgender status), sexual orientation, marital status, religion, age,
disability, genetic information, service in the military, or any other characteristic protected by
applicable federal, state, or local laws and ordinances. Equal employment opportunity applies
to all terms and conditions of employment, including hiring, placement, promotion,
termination, layoff, recall, transfer, leave of absence, compensation, and training.

Iltem 1.
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The City expressly prohibits any form of unlawful employee harassment or discrimination based
on any of the characteristics mentioned above. Improper interference with the ability of other
employees to perform their expected job duties is not tolerated.

Any employees with questions or concerns about equal employment opportunities in the
workplace are encouraged to bring these issues to the attention of the Human Resources
Department. The City will not allow any form of retaliation against individuals who raise issues of
equal employment opportunity. Employees who feel they have been subjected to any such
retaliation should bring it to the attention of their direct Supervisor and the Human resources
Director.

1.3 Commitment to Diversity and Inclusion

The City of Manor is committed to creating, fostering, cultivating, and preserving a workplace
culture in which all employees can participate and contribute to the success of the operations
and are valued for their skills, experience, and unique perspectives. This commitment is
embodied in the City’s policy and how we do business and is an essential principle of sound
management.

The City’s diversity initiatives are applicable—but not limited—to our practices and policies on
recruitment and selection, compensation and benefits, professional development and training,
promotions, transfers, social and recreational programs, layoffs; terminations, and the ongoing
development of a work environment built on the premise of gender and diversity equity that
encourages and enforces:

e Promoting open, effective communication, as well as clear channels for feedback for all
employees.

e Establish clear written employment policies and guidelines that address penalties for
discriminatory treatment or behavior, harassment, and retaliation.

o Established a transparent process for reporting behaviors that violate these policies.

e Provide training opportunities for all personnel to ensure their commitment to
recognizing and avoiding conscious and unconscious bias towards any persons with
whom they have contact.

e Establish and maintain staff resources committed to the implementation and
coordination of the City of Manor strategic initiatives.

e Employees who believe they have been subjected to discrimination that conflicts with
the company’s diversity policy and initiatives should seek assistance from a supervisor
or the Human Resources Director.
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1.4 Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Reasonable

Accommodation

The City of Manor is committed to the fair and equal employment of individuals with disabilities
under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and the Americans with Disabilities Act as
Amended (ADAAA). It is the City’s policy to provide reasonable accommodation to qualified
individuals with disabilities unless the accommodation imposes an undue hardship on the City.
The City of Manor prohibits any harassment of, or discriminatory treatment of, employees or
applicants based on a disability or because an employee has requested reasonable
accommodation.

Under the ADA and ADAAA, reasonable accommodations will be provided to qualified individuals
with disabilities to enable them to perform the essential functions of their jobs or to enjoy equal
benefits and privileges of employment. An employee or applicant with a disability may request
accommodation from the HR department and should specify in writing what accommodation is
needed to perform the job and submit supporting documentation explaining the basis for the
requested accommodation to the extent permitted and under applicable law. The Human
Resources Director then will review and analyze the request within a reasonable amount of time,
including engaging in an interactive process with the employee or applicant, to identify if such an
accommodation can be made or if any other possible accommodations are appropriate. If
requested, the employee is responsible for providing medical documentation regarding the
disability and possible accommodation. All information obtained concerning the medical
condition or history of an applicant or employee will be treated as confidential, maintained in
separate medical files, and disclosed only as permitted by law.

It is the policy of the City to prohibit harassment or discrimination based on disability or because
an employee has requested reasonable accommodation. The City of Manor prohibits retaliation
against employees for exercising their rights under the ADA and ADAAA or other applicable civil
rights laws. Employees should use the procedures described in the Harassment and Complaint
Procedure to report any harassment, discrimination, or retaliation they have experienced or
witnessed.

The City will endeavor to make a reasonable accommodation of an otherwise qualified applicant
or employee related to an individual’s physical or mental disability, sincerely held religious beliefs
and practices, and/or any other reason required by applicable law, unless doing so would impose
an undue hardship upon The City’s continuity of operations.

1.5 Harassment and Complaint Procedure

It is the City’s policy to prohibit intentional and unintentional harassment of or against job
applicants, contractors, interns, volunteers, or employees by another employee, supervisor,
vendor, customer, or third party based on actual or perceived characteristics including, but not
limited to, race, color, creed, religion, national origin, ancestry, citizenship status, age, sex or
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gender (including pregnancy, childbirth, and pregnancy-related conditions), gender identity or
expression (including transgender status), sexual orientation, marital status, military service and
veteran status, physical or mental disability, genetic information, or any other characteristic
protected by applicable federal, state, or local laws. The City of Manor will not tolerate such
conduct.

Furthermore, retaliation against an individual who has complained about sexual or other
harassment or retaliation against individuals for cooperating with an investigation of a
harassment complaint is similarly unlawful and will not be tolerated. The City will take all
reasonable steps to prevent and eliminate unlawful harassment and retaliation.

Definition of “unlawful harassment.” “Unlawful harassment” is conduct that has the purpose or
effect of creating an intimidating, hostile, or an offensive work environment; has the purpose or
effect of substantially and unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work performance; or
otherwise adversely affects an individual’s employment opportunities because of the individual’s
membership in a protected class.

Unlawful harassment includes, but is not limited to, epithets; slurs; jokes; pranks; innuendo;
comments; written or graphic material; stereotyping; or other threatening, hostile, or
intimidating acts based on actual or perceived characteristics including, but not limited race,
color, ancestry, national origin, gender, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, religion, age,
disability, veteran status, or another characteristic protected by state or federal law.

Definition of “sexual harassment.” While all forms of harassment are prohibited, special
attention should be paid to sexual harassment. “Sexual harassment” can include all the above
actions, as well as other unwelcome conduct, and is generally defined under both state and
federal law as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or
physical conduct of a sexual nature whereby:
e Submission to or rejection of such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly as a term
or condition of any individual’s employment or as a basis for employment decisions.
e Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s
work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment.

Other sexually oriented conduct, whether intended or not, that is unwelcome and has the effect
of creating a work environment that is hostile, offensive, intimidating, or humiliating to workers
may also constitute sexual harassment.

While it is not possible to list all those additional circumstances that may constitute sexual
harassment, the following are some examples of conduct that, if unwelcome, may constitute

sexual harassment depending on the totality of the circumstances, including the severity of the
conduct and its pervasiveness:

e Unwanted sexual advances, whether they involve physical touching or not.

10
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e Sexual epithets; jokes; written or oral references to sexual conduct; gossip regarding
one’s sex life; comments about an individual’s body; and comments about an individual’s
sexual activity, deficiencies, or prowess.

e Displaying sexually suggestive objects, pictures, or cartoons.

e Unwelcome leering, whistling, brushing up against the body, sexual gestures, or
suggestive or insulting comments.

e Inquiries into one’s sexual experiences; and

e Discussion of one’s sexual activities.

All employees should note that, as stated above, retaliation against an individual who has
complained about sexual or other harassment and retaliation against individuals for cooperating
with an investigation of sexual or other harassment complaints violate the City’s policy.

Retaliation means adverse conduct taken because an individual reported an actual or a perceived
violation of this policy, opposed practices prohibited by this policy, or participated in the
reporting and investigation process described below. “Adverse conduct” includes but is not
limited to:

(1) Shunning and avoiding an individual who reports harassment, discrimination, or retaliation.
(2) Express or implied threats or intimidation intended to prevent an individual from reporting
harassment, discrimination, or retaliation; or

(3) Denying employment benefits because an applicant or employee reported harassment,
discrimination, or retaliation or participated in the reporting and investigation process.

Other examples of retaliation include firing, demotion, denial of promotion, unjustified negative
evaluations, increased surveillance, harassment, and assault.

Complaints of discrimination should be filed according to the procedures described in the
Harassment and Complaint Procedure.

Complaint procedure. If you believe you have been subject to or have witnessed unlawful
discrimination, including sexual or other forms of unlawful harassment or other inappropriate
conduct, you are requested and encouraged to make a complaint. You may complain directly to
your immediate supervisor or department manager, the HR director, or any other member of
management with whom you feel comfortable bringing such a complaint. Similarly, if you observe
acts of discrimination toward or harassment of another employee, you are requested and
encouraged to report this to one of the individuals listed above.

All complaints will be investigated promptly, and confidentiality will be protected to the extent
possible. A timely resolution of each complaint should be reached and communicated to the
parties involved.

If the investigation confirms conduct that violates this policy, the City will take immediate,
appropriate, corrective action, including discipline, up to and including immediate termination.

11
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No reprisal, retaliation, or other adverse action will be taken against an employee for making a
complaint or report of discrimination or harassment or for assisting in the investigation of any
such complaint or report, whether a finding of harassment is made after an investigation. Any
suspected retaliation or intimidation should be reported immediately to one of the persons
identified above.

The City encourages all employees to attempt to resolve complaints informally through
discussions with the employee’s immediate supervisor or other member of management the
employee is comfortable with. If an employee cannot resolve a complaint subject to this policy
with his or her immediate supervisor, the employee shall submit a written complaint to the
employee’s Department Director. A written complaint to a Department Director for actions
other than sexual harassment must be made within 30 days of the event or action complained
of or the latest event or action if the complaint is regarding a series of actions. If an employee’s
complaint is not resolved to his or her satisfaction within ten days of filing a written complaint
with the Department Director, the employee may present his or her written complaint to the
Human Resources Department, who will forward the written complaint to the City Manager.
The decision of the City Manager may be conveyed to the employee orally or in writing and is
final.

1.6 Pregnant Workers Fairness Act

The U.S. Senate passed two acts that help working moms who are pregnant or breastfeeding.
The Pregnant Workers Fairness Act and the Providing Urgent Maternal Protections for Nursing
Mothers Act (the PUMP Act) were added to the 2023 omnibus spending bill, which has now
passed the Senate and is headed for a House vote.

The PUMP Act: The PUMP Act for nursing mothers requires organizations to provide time and
space for breastfeeding parents. The Affordable Care Act of 2010 already requires that
employers provide reasonable time to express breast milk and provide a place for pumping,
other than the bathroom, that is shielded from view and private.

Pregnant Workers Fairness Act: The second bill that helps mothers is the Pregnant Workers
Fairness Act which requires employers to provide reasonable accommodations for medical
conditions related to pregnancy and childbirth. The law states that employers can’t deny
employment opportunities based on these pregnancy accommodations, and they can’t “require
employees to take paid or unpaid leave if another reasonable accommodation can be
provided.”

The Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) requires employers to provide reasonable break time for an
employee to express breast milk for their nursing child for one year after the child's birth each
time such employee has need to express the milk. Employees are entitled to a place to pump at
work, other than a bathroom, that is shielded from view and free from intrusion from co-
workers and the public.

12
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Specifically, the PWFA guarantees workers the affirmative right to receive reasonable
accommodations for known limitations stemming from pregnancy, childbirth, and related
medical conditions

Reasonable accommodations are changes in the work environment or how things are usually
done.

Some examples of possible reasonable accommodations under the PWFA include:

e Additional, longer, or more flexible breaks to drink water, eat, rest, or use the restroom.
e Changing food or drink policies to allow for water bottles or food.

e Changing equipment, devices, or workstations, such as providing a stool or a way to do
work while standing.

e Change uniforms or dress codes or provide safety equipment that fits.

e Changing a work schedule, such as having shorter hours, part-time work, or a later start
time.

e Telework.

e Temporary reassignment.

e Temporary suspension of one or more essential functions of a job.
e Leave for health care appointments.

e Light duty or help with lifting or other manual labor or

e Leave to recover from childbirth or other medical conditions related to pregnancy or
childbirth.

This list provides some examples; many other reasonable accommodations may exist. Also, a
worker may need different accommodation at different times during the pregnancy or after
childbirth.
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Conflict of Interest and Confidential Information

2.1 Conflicts of Interest

The City of Manor expects all employees to conduct themselves in a manner that reflects the
highest standards of ethical conduct and in accordance with all federal, state, and local laws and
regulations. This includes avoiding actual and potential conflicts of interest.

What constitutes a conflict of interest, or an unethical business practice is both a moral and a
legal question. The City recognizes and respects the individual employee’s right to engage in
private activities outside of employment that do not in any way conflict with or reflect poorly on
the City.

Defining all the circumstances and relationships that might create a conflict of interest is
impossible. If a situation arises with a potential conflict of interest, the employee should discuss
this with a manager for advice and guidance on how to proceed. The list below suggests some of
the types of activities that indicate improper behavior, unacceptable personal integrity, or
unacceptable ethics:

1. Holding a substantial interest in, or participating in the management of, a firm to which
the City makes sales or from which it makes purchases.

2. Accepting substantial gifts or excessive entertainment from an outside organization or
agency (value of over $50).

3. Speculating or dealing in materials, equipment, supplies, services, or property purchased
by the City.

4. Participating in civic or professional organization activities in a manner that divulges
confidential City information.

5. Misusing privileged information or revealing confidential data to outside vendors,
organizations, agencies, citizens, and/or contractors.

6. Using one’s position in the City or knowledge of its affairs for personal gains; and

7. Have any financial or other interest, directly or indirectly, in any proposed or existing
contract, purchase, work, sale or service to, for, with or by the City.

8. Use City employment, authority, or influence in any manner for his/her personal
betterment, financial or otherwise.

9. Have any financial interest, directly or indirectly, in the sale to the City of any land,
materials, supplies or services.

10. Discussions or participate in decisions of any City agency, board, commission, or
instrumentality if the employee has any personal economic interest or is employed,
directly or indirectly, by the person or entity that is the subject of the discussion or
decision.

11. Accept other employment or engage in outside activities incompatible with the
performance of duties and responsibilities as a City employee or that might impair
independent judgment in performing duties to the City.
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*For additional information regarding outside employment, refer to the Outside
Employment section of this Handbook.

12. Accept remuneration or provide services for compensation, directly or indirectly, to a
person or organization requesting an approval, investigation, or determination from the
City.

Any potential conflicts of interest must be disclosed to the City Manager immediately and the
potential or conflicted employee must be isolated from the transaction. An employee may
not knowingly participate in a decision of any matter involving a business entity or real
property with which he/she has substantial interest if the decision on the matter will have a
special economic effect on the business entity or real property which is distinguishable from
the general public or that may be controlled by Chapter 171, Regulation Of Conflicts Of
Interest Of Officers Of Municipalities, Counties, And Certain Other Local Governments, Texas
Local Government Code as may be amended from time to time. A “substantial interest in a
business entity” is defined as an employee owning 10% or more of the voting stocks or shares
of the business entity, the employee owns either 10% or more or $15,000 or more of the fair
market value of the business entity or the funds received by the employee exceeds 10% of
the employee’s gross income for the previous year. A “substantial interest in real property”
is defined as an employee owning $2,500 or more in real property and/or if a person related
to the employee in the first degree has a substantial interest.

Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of
employment. Employees should direct questions regarding the prohibitions imposed by this
policy to your Department Director, the Human Resources Department, or the City Manager’s
office.

2.2 Confidential Information

Confidential information is all information disclosed to or known by you because of
employment with the City that is not generally known to people outside the City about its
business.

An employee who improperly uses or discloses confidential information will be subject to
disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment and legal action, even if
the employee does not actually benefit from the disclosed information.

Federal law requires that the City maintain all employee medical information in separate,
confidential files. Therefore, in addition to personnel files, the City maintains a separate
medical file for each employee. The Human Resources Department maintains these
confidential medical files. Examples of information that may be provided to the City by an
employee’s health care provider, and maintained in the confidential medical file, include:

A note to justify an absence.

A note to request leave.

A note to verify the employee’s ability to return to work.
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e Medical records to support a claim for sick pay or disability benefits.
e Insurance records and Workers’ compensation records.

It is essential that employees understand that the records are confidential, but that
confidentiality may be waived when the employee provides medical information to his/her
supervisor or the Human Resources Department. When an employee provides information to
his/her supervisor, the supervisor is expected to share the information only on an “as needed”
basis with other members of management.

In addition to protecting their own confidential medical information, employees must also
respect the privacy and confidentiality of their coworkers’ medical information. Employees are
expected to use discretion and judgment when dealing with such information and are to refrain
from passing along information, gossip, rumors, or anything else that may constitute an invasion
of a coworker’s privacy or breach of confidence.

Any employee who is subpoenaed or otherwise potentially legally compelled to provide is
encouraged to notify the human resources department prior to providing any information.

2.3 Employee Privacy

It is the City’s goal to respect the individual privacy of its employees and at the same time
maintain a safe and secure workplace. When issues of safety and security arise or reasonable
suspicion, you may be requested to cooperate with an investigation. The investigation may
include the following procedures to safeguard the City and its employees: searches of personal
belongings, searches of work areas, searches of private vehicles on company premises, medical
examinations, drug testing, breathalyzer testing, and of the like. Failure to cooperate with an
investigation is grounds for termination. Providing false information during any investigation may
lead to discipline, including termination.

Employees are expected to make use of city facilities only for the business purposes of the City
of Manor. Accordingly, materials that appear on city hardware or networks are presumed to be
for business purposes, and all such materials are subject to review by the IT Department at any
time without notice to the employees. Employees do not have to have any expectation of privacy
with respect to any material on city property. The City of Manor regularly monitors its
communications systems and networks as allowed by law. Monitored activity may include voice,
e-mail, and text communications, as well as Internet search and browsing history. Employees
who make excessive use of the communications system for personal matters are subject to
discipline. Employees are expected to keep personal communication to a minimum and to
emergency situations.

Video surveillance. As part of its security measures and to help ensure a safe workplace, the City
has positioned video cameras to monitor various areas of its facilities. Video cameras will not be
used in private areas, such as break rooms, restrooms, locker/dressing rooms, etc. Video
equipment will not include an audio component.
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2.4 Privacy—Social Security Numbers

It is the City’s policy that Social Security numbers obtained from employees, vendors, contractors,
customers, or others are confidential information. Social Security numbers will be obtained, retained,
used, and disposed of only for legitimate business reasons and in accordance with the law and this policy.

Documents or other records containing employee Social Security numbers generally will be
requested, obtained, or created only for legitimate business reasons consistent with this policy.
For example, Social Security numbers may be requested from employees for tax reporting
purposes (i.e., Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-4), for new hire reporting, background
investigations or for purposes of enrollment in the City’s employee benefit plans.

All records containing Social Security numbers (whether partial or complete) will be maintained
in secure, confidential files with limited access.

Any employee who obtains, uses, or discloses Social Security numbers for unauthorized purposes
or contrary to the requirements of this policy and procedure may be disciplined, up to and
including discharge. The City will cooperate with government investigations of any person alleged
to have obtained, used, or disclosed Social Security numbers for unlawful purposes.
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Employment Relationship

3.1 Employment Classification

The City of Manor classifies its employees as shown below to determine eligibility for benefits
and overtime status and ensure compliance with federal and state laws and regulations. The
City may review or change employee classifications at any time.

Exempt. Exempt employees are typically paid on a salary basis and are not eligible for overtime pay. The
average exempt employee, however, normally does not often exceed 40 to 45 hours per week.

Nonexempt. Nonexempt employees are paid hourly and are eligible to receive overtime pay for
overtime hours worked after forty hours per week.

Regular, full-time. Employees not in a temporary status work a minimum of 36 hours weekly and
maintain continuous employment status. Generally, these employees are eligible for the full-time
benefits package and are subject to the terms, conditions, and limitations of each benefits
program.

Regular, part-time. Employees who are not in temporary status and who are regularly scheduled
to work less than 30 hours weekly but at least 20 hours weekly and who maintain continuous
employment status. Part-time employees are not eligible for the benefits offered by the City.

Temporary, full-time. Employees who are hired as an interim replacement or, participating in an
internship program, or is required to pass a specialized instruction course to proceed to a regular,
full-time position, or a position to assist in the completion of a specific project and who are
temporarily scheduled to work the company’s full-time schedule for a limited duration.
Employment beyond any initially stated period does not in any way imply a change in
employment status unless notified by the Human Resources Department. Temporary, full-time
employees are not eligible for the benefits offered by the City.

Temporary, part-time/seasonal- Employees who are hired as an interim replacement or
participating in an internship program or a position to assist in the completion of a specific project
and who are temporarily scheduled to work the company’s full-time schedule for a limited
duration. Employment beyond any initially stated period does not in any way imply a change in
employment status unless notified by the Human Resources Department. Temporary, part-time,
and seasonal employees are not eligible for the benefits offered by the City.

Reserve personnel. The City of Manor may hire reserve personnel for specific positions that
require identifiable staffing requirements to maintain service levels. Reserve personnel are
employees of the City of Manor and, as such, are subject to all the same recruitment, hiring, and
personnel policies as all other City employees, including, without limitation, criminal background
checks and drug screenings. The services of Reserve Personnel are performed on an “as-needed”
basis as determined by the Department Director.

18

Iltem 1.

55




Volunteers. Volunteers are not employed by the City in any capacity. Volunteers elect to donate
their time and services as a volunteer for the City without any expectation of compensation.
Volunteers are not paid and are not entitled to any benefits.

Interns: Unpaid- Are considered volunteers and are not employed by the City in any capacity.

Paid (By the City)- These are considered part-time employees and are not eligible for any
benefits offered by the City but may represent the City in an official capacity.

3.2 Compensation

Compensation. The City strives to provide exemplary service to the community by being a model
for Municipal Government. Recognizing the centrality of our workforce of dedicated and talented
professional staff, the City of Manor is committed to promoting organizational and community
values that include exceptional service to the public, consistent and excellent performance,
innovation, good fiscal, social, and environmental stewardship, and ethical behavior. The
compensation program is aimed to retain and attract high-skilled, high-performing staff capable
of delivering the highest standards of public service to our community. The City will expect all
staff to consistently perform to those high standards in their work performance, customer
service, ethics, and passion for public service. The City will also strive to administer pay and
benefits in a way that is fair and transparent to all, that provides equal pay for equal work, and
that does not take into consideration race, ethnicity, religion, sex, gender, sexual orientation,
gender identity or expression, or other factors unrelated to work performance. To provide
competitive, sustainable, and responsible compensation, the City will consider the following:

Total compensation consists of, but is not limited to, direct compensation, such as salary; and
indirect compensation such as certification pay, health insurance, retirement, professional
development, and time-off benefits.

In evaluating competitive compensation, the City will consider financial sustainability, relevant
labor market, internal relationships, transparency, and other relevant factors.

Pay Scale. Subject to approval by the City Council, the Human Resources department shall
prepare and administer a written compensation plan for City employees. City employees shall be
paid hourly wages or salaries in accordance with the matrix formula of such said compensation
plan. Along with a competitive compensation plan a Compensation System policy has been
adopted by Resolution of the City Council for a consistent and formatted process across all
departments.

3.3 Introductory Period

Introduction period. The city policy is that all new, presently transferred, or promoted
employees' work be carefully monitored and evaluated for an initial introductory period of six (6)
months; City of Manor Police Officers will be required to complete an introductory period of one
(1) year.
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An employee may be discharged at any time during the introductory period for any reason, and
no reason need be assigned by the City.

Purpose. Department supervisors shall use the introductory period to observe and evaluate the
work and fitness of employees closely and to encourage adjustment to their jobs and the City
service. Only those employees who meet acceptable standards during their introductory period
shall be retained. In the case of appointing or promoting a department supervisor, the
introductory period shall be evaluated by the department director.

Failure to complete the introductory period. An employee shall fail the introductory period
when, in the judgment of the department director and the Human Resources department, the
employee’s fitness and/or quality of work is not such as to merit continuation. Termination
during the introductory period may occur at any time and shall not be considered part of the
disciplinary process.

If desirable and feasible, the employee may be administratively transferred to a more suitable
position. A newly promoted or transferred employee who fails in the introductory period may be
returned to his/her former classification if a position is available and will be eligible for future
advancement. Documentation is required regarding the failure of the introductory period.

3.4 Workweek and Hours of Work

Regular work hours. Non-exempt employees of the City typically work 40 hours in a seven-day
work week. Exempt employees may be required to work more than 40 hours in certain weeks.
The work week begins at 12:00 a.m. (midnight) on Sunday and ends at 11:59 p.m. the following
Saturday. The regular workday normally begins at 8:00 a.m. and ends at 5:00 p.m. although
employees in some departments may have different work hours. (For example, most non-exempt
police officers work a 12-hour shift.) In times of disaster or emergency, work hours shall be
determined by the City Manager. A workday as defined by the City is eight (8) hours for most
positions.

Adjustment to work hours. - To ensure the continuity of City services, it may be necessary for
Department Directors to establish other operating hours for their departments with
consideration by the City Manager and Human Resources Director. Work hours and work shifts
must be arranged to provide continuous service to the public. Employees are expected to
cooperate when asked to work overtime or a different schedule. Acceptance of work with the
City includes the employee’s acknowledgment that changing shifts or work schedules may be
required and includes that he/she will be available to do such work.

3.5 Hybrid Working

When possible, the City of Manor supports alternate work schedules to promote and support a high-
quality work-life balance while maintaining the continuity of operations with the highest expectation of
customer services for the public. The City’s core business hours are Monday through Friday from 8:00
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., a forty (40) hour work week.
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Each City Department wishing to establish a Hybrid Schedule must develop a “Hybrid Staffing Plan”
Directive that the Human Resources Director and the City Manager must approve. Each plan must
adhere to all factions of the City’s policy. The Schedule will not require the City to expand extra
unbudgeted funds. The Hybrid schedule CANNOT be used in place of leave time. All employees' leave
accrual will be charged according to the leave policies of the City, i.e., vacation, sick leave, personal,
comp. time, FMLA, etc.

The Department Director or the City Manager may terminate the Hybrid Staffing Plan for any reason and
at any time. The City will provide the impacted employee(s) with advance notice of termination of the
Hybrid Staffing Schedule. Failure to adhere to the policy may provide cause for discipline.

Working remotely may be determined by the approval of the Department Director, Human Resources
Director, and the City Manager on a case-by-case basis. This will be a temporary, short-term, hybrid plan
to adhere to ADA and EEOC requirements. The ad-hoc telework can allow telework-ready employees to
work from a pre-determined location, with VPN and other safeguards to ensure the integrity of the
City’s networks.

3.6 Meal and Rest Breaks

Meal periods. Full-time, non-exempt employees (excluding most non-exempt police officers) are
provided a one-hour unpaid meal break near the middle of the workday. The department
Director may stagger meal periods to minimize departmental interruption. Supervisors will
provide employees with the starting and ending times of their specific meal periods. Employees
will be relieved from work responsibilities during unpaid meal breaks. Employees may not extend
meal breaks beyond their assigned period. The supervisor must approve missed meal periods.

3.7 Time Records

All exempt and nonexempt employees are required to complete accurate weekly time reports
showing all time worked. Time will be calculated on the hour and rounded to the nearest quarter,
i.e., 10:42 10.75. These records are required by governmental regulations and are used to
calculate regular and overtime pay. At the end of each week, you and your supervisor must sign
the time sheet attesting to its correctness before forwarding it to the HR department.

Attendance and punctuality. Employees shall attend to their work in accordance with the rules
regarding hours of work, holidays, and leaves. If an employee has an unexpected absence, the
employee shall call or notify his/her supervisor within the hour prior to when the employee is to
report to work. Failure to notify the supervisor may result in disciplinary action. Excessive
tardiness, neglect of duties, or unauthorized absences will be grounds for dismissal. If the
immediate supervisor is not available to report an unexpected absence, the employee shall
report to the Human Resources Director or designee directly. All Department Directors shall
report all expected absences for training, vacation, and other planned leave as soon as known
but not later than two weeks prior to such leave, unless good cause exists for less notice. All
Department Directors shall report to the Human Resources Department, or designee, any sick
leave to be taken as soon as such is known. The Human Resources Department and Department
Director shall ensure adequate supervision of the department in the absence of the Department
Director. If no other supervisor exists in the department, the Human Resources Director shall
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supervise the department's attendance in the Department Director’s absence and designate a
supervisor for such department. All Department Directors shall keep daily attendance records of
employees and all absences shall be reported on a leave form and turned in with the department
time sheets each pay period. Department Directors shall report personal, vacation time and sick
time used each pay period to the City Manager and Human Resources Director. Department
Directors shall be responsible for keeping true and accurate attendance records for each
employee and ensuring each employee’s attendance complies with this policy manual. The
Human Resources Department, or designee, may check time sheets for any department for
accuracy. In most cases, an employee who fails to properly notify his/her supervisor in advance
of an absence or tardy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of
employment. An employee who fails to notify the City of an absence of five days or more will
have voluntarily resigned his/her employment.

Absent from work for more than 180 days. Any employee who is absent from work on a leave
of absence for a period of 180 calendar days, regardless of the reason, and is unable to return to
work after 180 calendar days will be terminated. This policy will be administered consistently
with the City’s obligations under the Americans with Disabilities Act, USERRA, and FMLA.

3.8 Overtime

Non-exempt employees. Due to the City's needs, you may be asked to work overtime when required.
Overtime is actual hours worked more than 40 in a single workweek. Nonexempt employees will be paid
overtime compensation at the rate of one and one-half their regular pay rate for all hours over 40 worked
in a single workweek. Paid leave, such as holiday, sick time, bereavement time, and jury duty, does not
apply toward work time. All overtime work must be approved in advance by a supervisor or manager.
Police officers are paid overtime based on the work cycle adopted by their Department under Chapter
142 of the Texas Local Government Code.

3.9 On-Call and Call-Back Compensation

On-Call. The City provides for after-hour service needs by allowing some departmental
operations to designate certain non-exempt employees to be on-call. Employees designated to
be on-call are expected to respond to departmental after-hour service needs as required by
procedures established by their Department.

For a non-exempt employee to be designated as officially on-call:

e The employee must have completed the training and certification required for
their position.

e The employee must have a city cell phone for City communication purposes.

e The employee must respond within 30 minutes to their department or scene.

e The employee must be the designated on-call personnel on a schedule approved
by their department supervisor.
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e The employee cannot be on any leave for the assigned day to be eligible for on-
call pay, i.e.... Sick leave, vacation, administrative leave, Worker’s Compensation,
etc.

After regularly scheduled working hours, on-call employees are free to pursue personal activities
but must respond to a callback (via paging, telephone, or radio) within designated guidelines set
by their Department. Employees designated as on-call must be fit, both mentally and physically,
to provide on-call services needed within the required time frame. Any employee scheduled to
be on call who is called out is governed by this policy.

On-Call Compensation. On-call status is not considered time worked, a daily stipend of
$25.00 per day shall be paid to those employees designated as on-call employees.

On-call employees called out to the workplace will be paid at their regular rate of pay for actual
hours worked. Time worked immediately after regularly scheduled working hours at the request
or approval of the supervisor will not be considered on-call and is paid at the employee’s regular
rate of pay until overtime requirements are met. Continuing work on a call-out that extends
beyond the one-hour minimum and into a day off does not entitle the employee to additional
premium pay. Travel time to and from a call-out is compensable under this policy if the call-out
is due to a situation that requires immediate attention and is unscheduled. Travel time to and
from the work site performing regularly scheduled rounds is not compensable. On-call
procedures will be conducted in accordance with departmental policy and such a policy must be
approved by the City Manager. In all cases, employees must report their actual hours worked on
their time sheets. Employees exempt from overtime are not eligible for compensation under the
provisions of this policy. The City will pay overtime as required by the Fair Labor Standards Act or
other City policies regulating overtime.

Call-Back Compensation. Some instances require an employee to be “called back” to assist with
the needs of the City, this is not for regularly scheduled working hours, on-call schedules, or
events, this pay guarantees the individual a two (2) hour minimum worked time at the
employee’s regular rate of pay until overtime requirements have been met, even if the work was
less than two (2) hours.

3.10 Deductions from Pay/Safe Harbor Exempt Employees

The City of Manor complies with the salary basis requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act
(FLSA). Employees classified as exempt from the overtime pay requirements of the FLSA will be
notified of this classification at the time of hire or change in position.

Permitted deductions. The FLSA limits the types of deductions that may be made from the pay
of an exempt employee. Deductions that are permitted include:

e Deductions that are required by law, e.g., income taxes.
e Deductions for employee benefits when authorized by the employee.
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* Absence from work for one or more full days for personal reasons other than sickness
or disability.

e Absence from work for one or more full days due to sickness or disability if the
deduction is made in accordance with a bona fide plan, policy, or practice of providing
compensation for salary lost due to illness.

e Offset for amounts received as witness or jury fees or for military pay.

e Unpaid disciplinary suspensions of 1 or more full days imposed in good faith for
workplace conduct rule infractions and

e Any full workweek in which the employee does not perform any work.

During the first week, an exempt employee begins work for the City or during the last week of
employment, the employee will only be paid for actual hours worked. In addition, an employee
may be paid only for hours worked during a period when the employee is using unpaid leave
under the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA). Exempt, salaried employees are required to use
vacation, sick leave, or compensation time when away from their specified facilities on personal
business, more than two (2) hours, as this does not change their total monetary compensation
or exempt status.

Compensatory time off may be granted to exempt positions. There is no legal requirement or
obligation of the City of Manor to grant compensatory time to exempt employees. The City
Manager may choose to grant compensatory time off to exempt employees who are required
to work more than forty- four (44) hours per week for special projects i.e., unscheduled
meetings requiring attendance past four (4) hours beyond their regular daily schedule, or
during weekends, or any other normally scheduled time off, such as the city observed holiday.
As with non-exempt employees, working during lunch only constitutes workable hours if it is a
working luncheon and must be pre-approved. As with flexible hours, coming early and staying
late does not allow for unused leave time; this is considered regular attendance.

Improper deductions. If an employee classified as exempt believes that an improper deduction
has been taken from the employee’s pay, the employee should immediately report the deduction
to the HR department. The report will be promptly investigated, and if it is found that an
improper deduction has been made, the City will reimburse the employee for the improper
deduction.

3.11 Paychecks

All City employees will be paid bi-weekly (every two weeks) on Wednesday by the end of regular
business hours. Pay dates falling on an observed holiday will be scheduled for the preceding day.
Paychecks are directly deposited into your checking and/or savings accounts.

3.12 Longevity Pay

The City provides regular full-time employees with longevity pay. All regular full-time employees
who have been continuously employed for two (2) years or more each calendar year shall be
eligible for additional compensation at a rate of one hundred (5100.00) per year for each full year
of continuous service with the City up to a maximum of twenty-five (25) years. Longevity pay
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will be awarded annually, as a lump sum, on the anniversary of the hire date. Longevity pay is not
an accrued benefit payable upon termination of employment.

Police Department Members- per Texas Government Code 141.032, in a municipality with a
population of 10,000 or more, each member of the police department is entitled to receive, in
addition to all other monies paid for services rendered in the department, longevity pay of $4 a
month for each year of service in the department, not to exceed twenty-five (25) years.

3.13 Access to Personnel Files

Employee files are maintained by the HR department and are considered confidential. Managers
and supervisors may only have access to personnel file information on a need-to-know basis.
Employees may inspect their own personnel files and may copy them but may not remove
documents from their files. Inspections by employees must be requested in writing to the HR
department and will be scheduled at a mutually convenient time or as required under state law.
Personnel files are to be reviewed in the HR department. Representatives of government or law
enforcement agencies, in the course of their duties, may be allowed access to file information.

3.14 Employment of Relatives and Domestic Partners

Relatives and domestic partners may be hired by the City if (1) the persons concerned will not
work in a direct supervisory relationship, (2) the employment will not pose difficulties for
supervision, security, safety, or morale, and (3) it is recommended relatives work in different City
departments for absence and conflict of interest purposes. For the purposes of this policy,
“relatives” are defined as spouses, children, siblings, parents, or grandparents. A “domestic
partnership” is generally defined as a committed relationship between two individuals who are
sharing a home or living arrangements.

Relatives and domestic partners may not be hired by the City if related to a current City Manager
or active City council member.

Current employees who marry each other or become involved in a domestic partnership will be
permitted to continue employment with the company provided they don’t work in a direct
supervisory relationship with each other or otherwise pose difficulties as mentioned above.
Suppose employees who marry or live together do work in a direct supervisory relationship with
each other. In that case, the Human Resources Department will attempt to reassign one of the
employees to another position for which the employee is qualified if such a position is available.
If no such position is available, the employees will be permitted to determine which one of them
will resign from the City.

3.15 Separation from Employment

Resignation. In all cases of voluntary resignation (one initiated by the employee); employees are
asked to provide a written notice to their supervisors at least two (2) weeks in advance of the last
day of work. Holidays and PTO will not be counted toward the two (2) weeks’ notice. Employees
who provide the requested amount of notice will be considered to have resigned in good standing
and generally will be eligible for rehire. Employees who fail to give or complete the two (2) weeks’
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notice are typically not eligible for rehire. Once the resignation notification is given NO sick leave
or floating holiday leave (personal) time will be allowed to be used.

Retirement. An employee who intends to retire must notify his/her immediate supervisor,
Department Director, and the Human Resources Department in writing, thirty (30) days prior to
the date of retirement. This 30-day requirement is necessary to ensure that the required
paperwork is submitted to Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). The City shall offer
employees retiring with the City the option to purchase continued health benefits coverage, as
outlined in Texas Local Government Code §§ 175.001 et seq., as amended. Once the retirement
notification is given, NO sick leave or floating holiday leave (personal) time will be allowed.

Dismissal/ Termination. City employees are at-will employees. Employment may be terminated
by the employee or by the City for any reason or no reason. At its discretion, the City may
terminate an employee’s employment because of unsatisfactory attendance, unsatisfactory
performance, or conduct, and/or violation of City policies or procedures. City employees who are
terminated or who resign in lieu of termination due to unsatisfactory performance or conduct
and /or violation of City policies or procedures are not eligible for rehire without approval of the
City Manager.

Job abandonment. If an employee fails to properly notify the City of his/her absence from work
or if an employee is absent without authorization and/or notification for five (5) consecutive
days, the City will consider the employee to have abandoned his/her employment, and he/she
will be terminated.

In most cases, HR will conduct an exit meeting on or before the last day of employment to collect
all company property and to discuss final pay and applicable benefits continuation. If applicable,
information regarding benefits continuation through the Consolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act (COBRA) will be sent to the employee’s home address.

Should it become necessary because of business conditions to reduce the number of employees
or work hours, this will be done at the discretion of the City.

3.16 Certification Pay

Certification pay is paid as additional compensation for those employees who receive a
certification issued by an accredited agency that directly relates to their jobs. The certification
will be needed to meet regulatory requirements within the department’s operations. The Human
Resources Director and Department Director will make any recommendations to add or remove
certifications to the list of eligible certifications as needed. These recommendations will be
presented for Council consideration. Certification payment will not be paid until approved or
removed from the list by City Council Action and within the approved budget.

Specific certifications that are required for a position are not eligible for certification pay as it is
considered in the matrix of the compensation scale.
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3.17 Promotion, Demotion, and Transfers
Promotions. A promotion is the movement of an employee from a position in one Pay Grade to
a different position in a higher Pay Grade.

Employment notices will be posted internally for three (3) days for qualified employees.
Employees will follow the City’s application process and a goals and expectations interview.

A promoted employee may be placed within the new Pay Grade at the rate of pay that provides
up to a 3% increase or the Minimum Rate, whichever is greater. The Human Resources Director
may authorize up to a 10% increase if necessary for compression purposes. However, other
salary ranges and Classifications of employees must also be considered to avoid in-range
compression.

The first work date in the new position shall be the effective date for pay increases due to
promotion.

Demotions. Demotion is the movement of an employee from one Pay Grade to a lower Pay
Grade resulting from a disciplinary measure, as a request for voluntary demotion, or in
response to position/department changes.

For demotions that occur because of position changes, position consolidations, or an
administrative reason (not based on the performance of the employee), the salary will be
placed at the rate closest to their current rate in the new Salary Range for a maximum of one
(1) year.

For demotions that occur because the employee voluntarily applied for and accepted a position
in a lower Pay Grade, the salary will be reduced within the new Salary Range to the current
placement (For example, a Pay Grade 55, moving to a Pay Grade 45) and place at the rate
closest to their current rate in the new Salary Range, based on qualifications and service time.
The salary shall be “red circled” and frozen at that level until the Salary Range of the ne Pay
Grade catches up to the employee’s salary.

For demotions that is a result of the employee’s performance or discipline, the employee’s
salary is decreased to within the Salary Range of the new Pay Grade, as determined by the
Human Resources Director.

Transfers. A transfer is the movement of an employee from one position to another in the
same Pay Grade. There shall be no salary adjustment whenever an employee transfers to
another position.

3.18 Sign-on and Retention Bonus
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Workplace Safety
4.1 Drug-Free and Alcohol-Free Workplace

The City of Manor's policy is to maintain a drug—and alcohol-free work environment that is safe
and productive for employees and others doing business with the City.

The unlawful use, possession, purchase, sale, or distribution of or being under the influence of
any illegal drug or controlled substance (including medical marijuana) while on City premises or
performing services for the City is strictly prohibited. The City of Manor also prohibits reporting
to work or performing services under the influence of alcohol or consuming alcohol while on duty
or during work hours. In addition, the City prohibits off-premises abuse of alcohol and controlled
substances (including medical marijuana) and the possession, use, or sale of illegal drugs when
these activities adversely affect job performance, job safety, or the City of Manor’s reputation in
the community.

To ensure compliance with this policy, substance abuse screening may be conducted in the
following situations:

Pre-employment: as required by the City for all prospective employees who receive a conditional
offer of employment. The applicant will be given seven (7) business days to complete the drug
screen; if not done in the allotted time, the conditional offer of employment will be rescinded,
with no exceptions.

For cause: upon reasonable suspicion that the employee is under the influence of alcohol or
drugs that could affect or have adversely affected the employee’s job performance.

Random: as authorized or required by federal or state law.

Compliance with this policy is a condition of employment. Employees who test positive or refuse
to submit to substance abuse screening will be subject to termination. Notwithstanding any
provision, this policy will consistently be enforced per applicable state and local law.

Any employee violating this policy is subject to discipline for the first offense, up to and including
termination.

4.2 Smoke-Free Workplace

Smoking is not allowed in City buildings or work areas at any time. In compliance with Ordinance
502 “Smoking” includes the use of any tobacco products (including chewing tobacco), electronic
smoking devices, and e-cigarettes.

Smoking is only permitted during break times in designated outdoor areas. Use of smoking
products is authorized in an area at least fifteen (15) feet away from ANY entrance to a public
building or City facility. Employees using these areas are expected to dispose of any smoking
debris safely and properly.
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4.3 Workplace Violence Prevention

The City of Manor is committed to providing a safe, violence-free workplace for our employees.
Due to this commitment, there is ZERO tolerance for employees engaging in any physical
confrontation with a violent or potentially violent individual or from behaving in a threatening or
violent manner. Threats, threatening language, or any other acts of aggression or violence made
toward or by any employee will not be tolerated. A threat may include any verbal or physical
harassment or abuse; attempts to intimidate others; menacing gestures; stalking; or any other
hostile, aggressive, and/or destructive actions taken for the purposes of intimidation. This policy
covers any violent or potentially violent behavior that occurs in the workplace or at company-
sponsored functions.

All City employees bear the responsibility of keeping our work environment free from violence
or potential violence. Any employee who witnesses or is the recipient of violent behavior should
promptly inform their supervisor, manager, or HR department. All threats will be promptly
investigated. No employee will be subject to retaliation, intimidation, or discipline because of
reporting a threat in good faith under this guideline.

Any individual engaging in violence against the City, its employees, its elected officials, or its
property will be prosecuted to the full extent of the law. All acts will be investigated, and the
appropriate action will be taken. Any such act or threatening behavior may result in disciplinary
action up to and including arrest.

Adhering to Penal Code 46 and Texas Labor Code 52.061, the City prohibits employees, other
than a certified licensed police officer, the possession of weapons on its property, or City vehicles.
Additionally, while on duty, employees may not carry a weapon of any type. Weapons include,
but are not limited to, handguns, rifles, automatic weapons, knives that can be used as weapons
(excluding pocketknives, utility knives, and other instruments that are used to open packages or
cut string and for other miscellaneous tasks), martial arts paraphernalia, stun guns, and tear gas.
Any employee violating this policy is subject to discipline up to and including dismissal for the
first offense.

The City reserves the right to inspect all belongings of employees on its premises, including
packages, briefcases, purses and handbags, gym bags, and personal vehicles on City property. In
addition, The City of Manor may inspect the contents of lockers, storage areas, file cabinets,
desks, and workstations at any time and may remove all company property and other items that
are in violation of company rules and policies.

4.4 Commitment to Safety

Protecting the safety of our employees and visitors is the most important aspect of maintaining
continuity of operations.

All employees have the opportunity and responsibility to contribute to a safe work environment
by using commonsense rules and safe practices and by notifying management of any health or
safety issues. All employees are encouraged to partner with management to ensure maximum
safety.
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All on-the-job accident and incident injuries, however slight or seemingly inconsequential, must
be reported immediately by phone or in person as soon as possible but no later than 24 hours
after the accident or incident to the employee’s immediate supervisor and the Human
Resources Department. Failure to report any accident or incident immediately with a follow-up
formal Accident Statement or Incident Statement report provided within 24 hours of its
occurrence without good cause may lead to disciplinary action, including termination of
employment. Such reports are necessary so that the City can comply with applicable laws and
begin workers’ compensation benefit procedures where appropriate.

Employees who violate safety standards, who cause or exacerbate hazardous or dangerous
situations, or who fail to report or, where appropriate, correct such situations, will be subject to
disciplinary action.

Definitions

Incident- An unplanned, undesired event that hinders task completion and may cause injury,
illness, or property damage or some combination of all three in varying degrees from minor to
catastrophic; unable to prevent or prepare for.

Accident-Similar to the incident but supports the mindset that it could have been prevented;
caused by error. Any workplace injury, accident, or illness must be reported to the employee's
supervisor as soon as possible, regardless of the severity of the injury or accident.

Employees involved in an accident while operating a City vehicle or a personal vehicle on City
business must immediately notify the proper law enforcement agency (if applicable) and the
appropriate Supervisor, Department Director, and Human Resources Department. The
employee must file accident reports and any law enforcement report with the Department
Director and the Human Resources Department.

ALL employees will be tested for alcohol and illegal and unauthorized drugs after a workplace
accident or in connection with any required treatment or rehabilitation. An employee who has
an injury incident during his/her official duties is not exempt from mandatory drug and alcohol
testing. An on-duty police officer injured while subduing a suspect is required for drug and
alcohol testing.

Police Department employees are also subject to any applicable departmental rules and
regulations regarding illegal and unauthorized drug and alcohol testing.

All accidents and incident drug and alcohol screening will be done at The City of Manor Police
Department. If the drug screen or alcohol breathalyzer comes back inconclusive, an outside
screen will be required within twenty-four (24) hours.

4.5 Emergency Closings

The City of Manor will always make every attempt to keep facilities open for business. Except
for extraordinary circumstances, City offices MAY CLOSE. All City employees, whether exempt
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or non-exempt, are expected to make a sincere effort to report to work during inclement
weather conditions or other emergency situations.

If an employee determines that the weather conditions constitute a danger to life and/or
property, the employee must notify his/her immediate supervisor and/or Department Director
and decide to report to work if weather conditions improve. Any leave taken due to inclement
weather will be charged to vacation. Part-time non-exempt employees who have no accrued
vacation time available will not be paid for the time missed. The Department Director or
immediate supervisor is responsible for seeing that City services are staffed while City offices
are open for business during inclement weather or emergency conditions. Any City service that
cannot be provided during inclement weather or other emergencies must be immediately
reported to the City Manager’s Office.

When weather or other conditions are such that the City Manager declares certain City
offices/departments officially closed, all affected personnel, i.e., those non-essential employees
who were scheduled to work during the time of closure, will be granted “paid administrative
leave” for the time the office/department is closed. “Paid administrative leave” will NOT be given
to employees when they were previously scheduled off, such as vacation, sick leave, personal
time, FMLA, etc. Specific personnel and first responders must report to work even when other
City departments are officially closed due to weather or other extraordinary circumstances.
Essential personnel required to be on the job regardless of adverse weather or other conditions
are designated by the Department Director and the City Manager. Essential personnel who fail
to report to work will need to use accrued vacation time and may be subject to disciplinary action
up to and including termination of employment. The City Manager MAY authorize emergency
pay at the rate of one and one-half times the employee’s regular rate of pay for non-exempt
essential personnel on a case-by-case basis. Employees are required to sign an acknowledgment
form that they have received notice of their designation of essential or non-essential status and
the requirement to work during inclement weather at the time of employment.

When either the Judge or the Mayor declares a disaster, all non-exempt employees required to
work will be paid one and one-half (1 %) times their regular hourly rate, and all exempt employees
shall accrue compensatory time.

4.6 Visitors

To maintain security and safety for our employees, the City has the following policy with
respect to visitors:

All visitors must check in at the front desk and must be escorted by an employee throughout the
facility. This applies to anyone who is not an active employee or City Councilmember, including
employees on disciplinary or administrative leave, family members, former employees, vendors,
and suppliers. Visits from family members shall have very limited access to other areas of facilities
and be approved by the Department Director on a case-by-case basis.
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When employees have any doubt whether a person can visit, they should contact their
immediate supervisor or the HR department.

4.7 Continuity of Operations

In the event of a wide-scale emergency, the City of Manor must balance a variety of objectives
when determining best to ensure the continuity of operations, reduce the impact on the
workplace, and ensure the safety of all City employees. If an emergency is declared by the City
or Travis County that affects the City, and non-essential employees are forced to evacuate their
worksite due to the pandemic or other unforeseen circumstances, the City Manager reserves
the right to allow for immediate and temporary memorandum changes to certain aspects of the
Personnel Policies and Procedures to ensure the safety of all City employees including but not
limited to leave balances, administration pay, telecommuting , minimalizing or adding to the
workforce in specific departments possible vehicle distribution, temporary shelter for essential
personnel, economic assistance, and tighter guidelines on sick and vacation leave. Please be
placed on notice that in the case of a wide-scale emergency, the situation is fluid and changes
will be made to address the situation as it evolves.

This policy will take immediate effect when an emergency or a potential emergency is imminent
and is declared, as such, by the City or Travis County. This policy will remain in effect until the
City determines that the emergency or potential emergency is no longer a threat to the
organization or its employees. No part of this policy will be effective to the extent it conflicts
with State or Federal law unless exigent documented reasons exist.

Each department director shall develop department specific plans, procedures, and guidelines
regarding determination of essential and non- essential personnel during a state of emergency
to see that departmental functions and services close or remain available to our community.
This will assist the City Manager with prioritizing essential city services.

Definitions

Non-essential: An employee whose presence at work is not required during an emergency and
where the employee is not required to assist the agency and/or division in meeting its
operational needs.

Essential: An employee whose presence at work is required during an emergency and where

the employee is required to assist the agency and/or division in meeting its operational needs.
An essential employee is required to report to their designated work location, to ensure the
operation of essential functions or departments during an emergency or the suspension of
operations.
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CITY COUNCIL
WORKSHOP SESSION MINUTES
NOVEMBER 6, 2024

PRESENT:
Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Emily Hill, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 1
Anne Weir, Place 2

Maria Amezcua, Place 3

Sonia Wallace, Place 4

Aaron Moreno, Place 5

Deja Hill, Place 6

CITY STAFF:

Scott Moore, City Manager
Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary

WORKSHOP SESSION - 6:00 P.M.

With a quorum of the Council Members present, the workshop session of the Manor City
Council was called to order by Mayor Harvey at 6:15 p.m. on Wednesday, November 6, 2024, in
the Manor City Hall, 105 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas.

A. Discussion of the City of Manor Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2022-2023.
Jeremy Myers with Atchley & Associates presented the attached audit report.
The topics of discussion were the following:

» Audit Letter
* Financial Statements
* Management Comment Letter

There was no action taken.

ADJOURNMENT

City of Manor Page 1
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City Council Workshop Minutes
November 6, 2024

The Manor City Council Workshop Session Adjourned at 6:39 p.m. on Wednesday,

November 6, 2024.

The Manor City Council approved these minutes on the 4" day of December 2024.

APPROVED:

Dr. Christopher Harvey
Mayor

ATTEST:

Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC
City Secretary

City of Manor

Page 2
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ATCHLEY & ASSOCIATESu»

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & BUSINESS ADVISORS

City Council

City of Manor, Texas
P.O. Box 387
Manor, Texas 78653

We are pleased to present this report related to our audit of the financial statements of City of Manor (the City)
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023. This report summarizes certain matters required by
professional standards to be communicated to you in your oversight responsibility for the City’s financial
reporting process..

Required Communications

Generally accepted auditing standards (AU-C 260, The Auditor’s Communication With Those Charged With
Governance) require the auditor to promote effective two-way communication between the auditor and those
charged with governance. Consistent with this requirement, the following summarizes our responsibilities
regarding the financial statement audit as well as observations arising from our audit that are significant and
relevant to your responsibility to oversee the financial reporting process.

Our Responsibility With Regard to the Financial Statement Audit

Our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America have been
described to you in our arrangement letter dated February 5, 2024. Our audit of the financial statements does not
relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities, which are also described in that
letter.

Overview of the Planned Scope and Timing of the Financial Statement Audit

We have issued a separate communication dated June 26, 2024, regarding the planned scope and timing of our
audit and identified significant risks.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices
Preferability of Accounting Policies and Practices
Under generally accepted accounting principles, in certain circumstances, management may select among

alternative accounting practices. In our view, in such circumstances, management has selected the preferable
accounting practice.

1005 La Posada Drive ¢ Austin, Texas 78752-3815
T: (512) 346-2086 « (877) 977-6850 « F: (512) 338-9883 « www.atchleycpas.com
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Adoption of, or Change in, Accounting Policies

Management has the ultimate responsibility for the appropriateness of the accounting policies used by the City.
The following is a description of significant accounting policies or their application that were either initially
selected or changed during the year:

e Asdescribed in Note A, the City adopted Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB), Statement
No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates,
Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements, Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, and
Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022 during the current year. No matters have come to our attention that
would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for
significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or
emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

Significant Accounting Policies

We did not identify any significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a
lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

Significant Unusual Transactions
We did not identify any significant unusual transactions.
Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are:

e The allowance for uncollectible receivables is based on past experience with collections of taxes and
other fees.

e Depreciation which is based on useful lives and depreciation methods approved by the City Council.
e Fair value of investments which is based on net asset value.
e Pension and OPEB obligations which are based on actuarial reports.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates in determining that they are
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Audit Adjustments and Uncorrected Misstatements

Audit adjustments, other than those that are clearly trivial, proposed by us and recorded by the City are shown in
the attached list of Recorded Audit Adjustments.

We are not aware of any uncorrected misstatements other than misstatements that are clearly trivial.

73




Iltem 1.

Observations About the Audit Process
Disagreements With Management

We encountered no disagreements with management over the application of significant accounting principles,
the basis for management’s judgments on any significant matters, the scope of the audit or significant
disclosures to be included in financial statements.

Consultations With Other Accountants

We are not aware of any consultations management had with other accountants about accounting or auditing
matters.

Significant Issues Discussed With Management

No significant issues arising from the audit were discussed or the subject of correspondence with management.
Significant Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We did not encounter any significant difficulties in dealing with management during the audit.

Shared Responsibilities: AICPA Independence

The AICPA regularly emphasizes that auditor independence is a joint responsibility and is managed most
effectively when management, audit committees (or their equivalents), and audit firms work together in
considering compliance with American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) independence rules.
For Atchley & Associates (the Firm) to fulfill its professional responsibility to maintain and monitor
independence, management, the City Council, and the Firm each play an important role.

Our Responsibilities

e AICPA rules require independence both of mind and in appearance when providing audit and other
attestation services. The Firm is to ensure that the AICPA’s General Requirements for performing non-attest
services are adhered to and included in all letters of engagement.

e Maintain a system of quality control over compliance with independence rules and firm policies.

Your Responsibilities

e Timely inform the Firm, before the effective date of transactions or other business changes, of the
following:

— New affiliates, directors, officers, or persons in financial reporting oversight roles.
— Change in corporate structure impacting affiliates such as add-on acquisitions or exits.

e Provide necessary affiliate information such as new or updated investment structure charts, as well as
financial information required to perform materiality calculations needed for making affiliate
determinations.

e Understand and conclude on the permissibility, prior to the City and its affiliates, officers, directors, or
persons in a decision-making capacity, engaging in business relationships with the Firm.
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e Not entering into relationships resulting in close family members of the firm covered persons, temporarily
or permanently acting as an officer, director, or person in an accounting or financial reporting oversight role
at the City.

Significant Written Communications Between Management and Our Firm

Copies of significant written communications between our firm and the management of the City, including the
representation letter provided to us by management, is included in an attached letter.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. It will be our pleasure to
respond to any questions you have regarding this report. We appreciate the opportunity to continue to be of
service to City of Manor.

Atehbg st 110

Austin, Texas
October 28, 2024
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October 28, 2024

Atchley & Associates, LLP
1005 La Posada Drive
Austin, TX 78752

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the
governmental activities, business type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Manor (the City), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, the related
notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information, for the purposes of expressing
opinions on whether the basic financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position, results of operations, and cash flows, where applicable, of the various opinion units of the City in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted for governments in the United States of America
(U.S. GAAP).

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves as of the date of this letter:

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit arrangement letter dated
February 5, 2024, including appendices and attachments thereto and subsequent modifications, for
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements referred to above in accordance with
U.S. GAAP.

2. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of controls to
prevent and detect fraud.

4. The methods, data, and significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates and their
related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement, or disclosure that is
reasonable in the context of U.S. GAAP, and reflect our judgment based on our knowledge and
experience about past and current events, and our assumptions about conditions we expect to exist
and courses of action we expect to take.

5. The measurement and fair presentation of the required supplementary information, including
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and additional supplemental schedules accompanying the
basic financial statements that are presented for the purpose of additional analysis of the basic
financial statements, in conformity with U.S. GAAP.

Item 1.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.
16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Related-party transactions have been recorded in accordance with the economic substance
of the transaction and appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the
requirements of U.S. GAAP.

The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, as amended.

With respect to the preparation of the financial statements and related GASB entries necessary for
fair presentation, we have performed the following:

a. Made all management decisions and performed all management functions;
b. Assigned a competent individual to oversee the services;

c. Evaluated the adequacy of the services performed;

d. Evaluated and accepted responsibility for the result of the service performed; and

e. Established and maintained internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities.

The City followed either its established accounting policy regarding which resources (that is,
restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned) are considered to be spent first for expenditures for
which more than one resource classification is available or followed paragraph 18 of GASB
Statement No. 54 to determine the fund balance classifications for financial reporting purposes.

The financial statements include all fiduciary activities required by GASB Statement No. 84,
Fiduciary Activities, as amended.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP requires
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

The effects of all known actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Managerhent has followed applicable laws and regulations in adopting, approving and amending
budgets.

Risk disclosures associated with deposit and investment securities and derivative transactions are
presented in accordance with GASB requirements

Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

Capital assets, including infrastructure, intangible assets, and right of use assets are properly
capitalized, reported and, if applicable, depreciated.

The government properly separated information in debt disclosures related to direct borrowings and
direct placements of debt from other debt and disclosed any unused lines of credit, collateral pledged
to secure debt, terms in the debt agreements related to significant default or termination events with
finance-related consequences and significant subjective acceleration clauses in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings

and Direct Placements.

Components of net position (net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted) and
classifications of fund balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned) are
properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues, general
revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to permanent fund
principal.

Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the
statement of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.
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21

. Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and

reported.

22. The City’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available
and appropriately disclosed and that net position is properly recognized under the policy.

23

24
25

26

. We have no direct or indirect legal or moral obligation for any debt of any organization, public or
private, or to special assessment bond holders, that is not disclosed in the financial statements.

. In all material aspects, all funds and activities are properly classified.

. All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements—and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, GASB
Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements—and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for
State and Local Governments: Omnibus as amended, and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities, for presentation as major are identified and presented as such and
all other funds that are presented as major are considered important to financial statement users.

. In all material aspects, special items and extraordinary items have been properly and reported.

27. In all material aspects, deposit and investment risks have been properly and fully disclosed.

28

29

30

. In all material aspects, all required supplementary information is measured and presented within the
prescribed guidelines.

. In all material aspects, nonexchange and exchange financial guarantees, either written or oral, under
which it is more likely than not that a liability exists have been properly recorded, or if we are
obligated in any manner, are disclosed.

. With regard to pensions and OPEB:

a.

We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension and OPEB
liabilities and costs for financial accounting purposes are appropriate in the circumstances.

We are unable to determine the possibility of a withdrawal liability from the TMRS Plan,
of which we are a sponsor and are not currently contemplating withdrawing from the
TMRS.

Increases in benefits, elimination of benefits and all similar amendments have been
disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP and are included in the most recent actuarial
valuation, or disclosed as a subsequent event.

31. With regard to investments and other instruments reported at fair value:

a.

The underlying assumptions are reasonable and they appropriately reflect management’s
intent and ability to carry out its stated courses of action.

The measurement methods and related assumptions used in determining fair value are
appropriate in the circumstances and have been consistently applied.

The disclosures related to fair values are complete, adequate, and in accordance with U.S.
GAAP.

There are no subsequent events that require adjustments to the fair value measurements
and disclosures included in the financial statements.

32. We have reviewed the GASB Statements effective for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023,
and concluded the implementation of the following Statements did not have a material impact on
the basic financial statements:

a.

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations

b. GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates
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C.

GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability
Payment Arrangements

d. GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements

33. We believe the implementation of the GASB Statements listed below is appropriate:

a.

GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022.
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Information Provided

34,

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements of the various opinion units referred to above, such
as records, documentation, and other matters;

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit;

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the City from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence;

d. Information on where to view minutes of the meetings of the City Council, or provided
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared;

To the best of our knowledge, we are not aware of any transactions that have not been recorded in
the accounting records, nor are we aware of any transactions that have been recorded in the
accounting records that are not reflected in the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may
be materially misstated as a result of fraud;

We have no knowledge of allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the City’s financial
statements involving:

a. Management
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal controls: or
c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements

It is our responsibility to establish and maintain internal control over financial reporting. One of the
components of an entity’s system of internal control is risk assessment. We hereby represent that
our risk assessment process includes identification and assessment of risks of material misstatement
due to fraud. We have shared with you our fraud risk assessment, including a description of the risks,
our assessment of the magnitude and likelihood of misstatements arising from those risks, and the
controls that we have designed and implemented in response to those risks.

We have no knowledge of allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the City’s financial
statements involving:

a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal controls; or
c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any instances, that have occurred or are likely to have occurred, of fraud
and noncompliance with provisions of laws and regulations that have a material effect on the
financial statements or other financial data significant to the audit objectives, and any other instances
that warrant the attention of those charged with governance, whether communicated by employees,
former employees, vendors (contractors), regulators, or others;

We have no knowledge of any instances that have occurred or are likely to have occurred, of
noncompliance with provisions of contracts and grant agreements that has a material effect on the
determination of the financial statement amounts or other financial data significant to the audit
objectives;

We have no knowledge of any instances that have occurred or are likely to have occurred of abuse
that could be quantitatively or qualitatively material to financial statements or other financial data
significant to the audit objectives;
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43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

32.

33.

54.

If necessary, we have taken timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud, noncompliance with
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, or abuse that you have reported to
us;

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments whose

effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements in accordance with U.S.
GAAP;

We have disclosed to you the identity of the City’s related parties and all related party relationships
and transactions of which we are aware;

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with or
deficiencies in accounting, internal control, or financial reporting practices;

The City has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of
assets and liabilities;

We have disclosed to you all guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the City is
contingently liable;

We have disclosed to you all nonexchange financial guarantees, under which we are obligated and
have declared liabilities and disclosed properly in accordance with GASB Statement No. 70,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees, for those guarantees
where it is more likely than not that the entity will make a payment on any guarantee;

We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used by the actuary for funding purposes and
for determining accumulated Plan benefits are appropriate in the circumstances. We did not give
instructions, or cause any instructions to be given, to the actuary with respect to the values or
amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that
have had an impact on the independence or objectivity of the plan’s actuary.

If applicable, for nonexchange financial guarantees where we have declared liabilities, the amount
of the liability recognized is the discounted present value of the best estimate of the future outflows
expected to be incurred as a result of the guarantee. Where there was no best estimate but a range of
estimated future outflows has been established, we have recognized the minimum amount within
the range;

We have disclosed to you all significant estimates and material concentrations known to
management that are required to be disclosed in accordance with GASB Statement No. 62 (GASB-
62), Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30,
1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. Significant estimates are estimates at the balance sheet
date that could change materially within the next year. Concentrations refer to volumes of business,
revenues, available sources of supply, or markets or geographic areas for which events could occur
that would significantly disrupt normal finances within the next year;

We have identified and disclosed to you the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements that could have a direct and material effect on financial statement amounts, including
legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds;

There are no:

a. Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations, or provisions of contracts or grant
agreements whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements
or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, including applicable budget laws and
regulations.

b. Unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised are probable of assertion and
must be disclosed in accordance with GASB-62.

c. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed
by GASB-62.
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55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

d. Continuing disclosure consent decree agreements or filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and we have filed updates on a timely basis in accordance with the
agreements (Rule 240, 15¢2-12).

The City has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such
assets nor has any asset or future revenue been pledged as collateral, except as disclosed to you;

We have complied with all aspects of grant agreements and other contractual agreements that would
have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

We are responsible for determining that significant events or transactions that have occurred since
the date of the financial statements and through the date of this letter have been recognized or
disclosed in the financial statements. We further represent that, as of the date of this letter, the
financial statements were complete in a form and format that complied with U.S. GAAP and U.S.
GASB, and all approvals necessary for issuance of the financial statements had been obtained.

During the course of your audit, you may have accumulated records containing data that should be
reflected in our books and records. If applicable, all such data has been so reflected. Accordingly,
copies of such records in your possession are no longer needed by us. Original records should be
returned to us for our safekeeping.

To the best of our knowledge, tax-exempt bonds have retained their tax-exempt status.

Supplementary Information in relation to the Financial Statements as a Whole

With respect to supplementary information presented in relation to the financial statements as a whole:

60.

61.

62.
63.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of the supplementary information in
accordance with U.S. GAAP.

We believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in
accordance with U.S. GAAP.

The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period.

When supplementary information is not presented with the audited financial statements, we will
make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the supplementary
information as they become available, but no later than the date of issuance by the City of the
supplementary information and the auditors’ report thereon.

Required Supplementary Information

With respect to the required supplementary information accompanying the basic financial statements:

64.

65.

66.
67.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of the required supplementary information
in accordance with U.S. GAAP and U.S. GASB.

We believe the required supplementary information, including its form and content, is measured and
fairly presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP and U.S. GASB.

The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period.

When supplementary information is not presented with the audited financial statements, we will
make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the supplementary
information as they become available, but no later than the date of issuance by the City of the
supplementary information and the auditors’ report thereon.

Compliance Considerations

In connection with your audit, conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we confirm
that management:

68.

Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework.
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69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.
75.

Is responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements applicable to the City.

Has identified and disclosed to the auditor all instances, if any, which have occurred or are likely to
have occurred, of fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws and regulations that have a
material effect on the financial statements or other financial data significant to the audit objectives,
and any other instances that warrant the attention of those charged with governance.

Has identified and disclosed to the auditor all instances, if any, which have occurred or are likely to
have occurred, of noncompliance with provisions of contracts and grant agreements that have a
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts or other financial data significant
to the audit objectives.

Has identified and disclosed to the auditor all instances, if any, that have occurred or are likely to
have occurred of abuse, financial or otherwise, that could be quantitatively or qualitatively material
to the financial statements or other financial data significant to the audit objectives.

If necessary, has taken timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud; noncompliance with provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; or abuse that the auditor reports.

Has a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

If any, have provided views on the auditor’s reported findings, conclusions, and recommendations,
as well as management’s planned corrective actions, for the report.

City of Manor, Texas:

_ October 28, 2024
Scott Moore Date
City Manager
A &/Qﬂ/‘—- 6,:: October 28, 2024
Belen Pena Date

Finance Director

105 E. EGGLESTON STREET ¢ P.O.BOX 387 « MANOR, TEXAS 78653
(T)512.272.5555 « (F)512.272.8636 * WWW.MANORTX.GOV
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ATCHLEY & ASSOCIATESu»

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & BUSINESS ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Manor, Texas

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Manor, Texas (the City),
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City, as of September 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to
be independent of the City, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

1005 La Posada Drive ¢ Austin, Texas 78752-3815
T: (512) 346-2086 « (877) 977-6850 « F: (512) 338-9883 « www.atchleycpas.com
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for
twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

* Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's Discussion
and Analysis on pages 4-11, budgetary comparison information on page 57, schedule of changes in the City's net
pension asset/liability and related ratios - last ten years on page 60-61, Texas Municipal Retirement System
schedule of funding progress on page 63, and Schedule of Changes in the City’s total OPEB asset/liability and
related ratios last ten years on page 64-65 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 28, 2024, on
our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Athlig ¢ Aot 120

Austin, Texas
October 28, 2024
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

This section of the City of Manor's (the City) annual financial report presents management's discussion and
analysis of the City's financial performance during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023. This discussion
and analysis should be read in conjunction with the City's financial statements.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic
financial statements, and the required supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two
types of statements that present different views of the City:

* The first two statements are government-
wide financial statements that provide both
long-term and short-term information
about the City’s overall financial status.

e The remaining statements are fund
financial statements that focus on
individual parts of the government,
reporting the City’s operations in more
detail than  the government-wide
statements.

e Governmental funds statements tell how
general government services were financed
in the short term as well as what remains
for future spending.

e The financial statements also include
notes to the financial statements explaining
some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data.

e The report also contains required
supplementary information in addition to
the basic financial statements themselves.
This contains additional information about
the City's General Fund budget and
information about the City's pension plan.

FIGURE A-1
REQUIRED COMPONENTS OF THE
CITY'S ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

___________________________ 1
[

Management's Basic Required

Discussion Financial Supplementary

and Statements Information
Analysis
Pt
\

Government- Fund Level Notes to the
Wide Financial Financial
Financial Statements Statements

Statements

Summary (‘) Dectail

Figure A-1 shows how the parts of this annual report are arranged and related to one another.

The remainder of this overview explains the structure and contents of each of the statements.
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Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector businesses. The statement of net position includes all of the
government's assets and liabilities. In the statement of activities, all of the current year's revenues and expenses
are accounted for regardless of when cash is received or paid, and all of the City's governmental activities and
city services are combined and show how they are financed.

Both government-wide statements report the City's net position and how it has changed. Net position, the
difference between the City's assets plus deferred outflows and liabilities plus deferred inflows, is one way to
measure the City's financial health or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net position are an
indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's most significant (major) funds -

not the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific revenue
sources and spending for particular purposes.

All cities have at least one major fund:

» Governmental fund — The City’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on (1) how
cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at
year end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent
in the near future to finance the City’s programs. Because these funds do not encompass the additional long-
term focus of the government-wide statements, additional information is provided following each fund statement
that explains the relationship (or difference) between them.

Other common major funds:

* Some common funds are required by State law, such as the debt service fund, special revenues fund, and
capital projects fund.

* Management may establish other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it
is properly using certain revenue resources, such as special revenue, capital project, and grant funds.

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the City's financial statements, including the portion of the city
government they cover, and the types of information they contain.
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Figure A-2 - Major Features of the City's Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Statements

Type of Statements  Government-Wide Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds
Entire City's government | The activities of the City that are |Activities the City operates similar to
(except fiduciary funds) not proprietary or fiduciary. private business: utilities
Scope and the City's component

units.

Required financial statements

Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities

Balance Sheet

Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures & Changes in Fund
Balances

Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenses &
Changes in Net Position

Statement of Cash Flows

Accounting basis and

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Modified accrual accounting and
current financial resources focus

Accrual accounting and economic
resources focus

or soon thereafter

measurement focus
All assets and liabilities, |Only assets expected to be used |All assets and liabilities, both
both financial and capital, |up and liabilities that come due |financial and capital, and short-term
Type of asset/liability short-term and long-term  |during the year or soon and long-term
information thereafter; no capital assets or
long-term debt included
All revenues and expenses |Revenues for which cash is All revenues and expenses during the
during year, regardless of [received during or soon after year|year, regardless of when cash is
when cash is received or  |end; expenditures when goods or [received or paid
Type of inflow/outflow paid services have been received and
information payment is made during the year

THE CITY AS A WHOLE (GOVERNMENT-WIDE)

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

*+ The City’s total combined net position was $67,342,613 at September 30, 2023 (See Figure A-3).

Current year activity resulted in an increase in the City’s net position by $11,188,891 (See Figure A-4).
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CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

Item 1.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

CITY REVENUES

The majority of the City's revenue is generated from charges for water and sewer services (28%), property
taxes (38%), and primary government charges for services (14%). The remaining is obtained from the grants,
contributions, sales taxes, franchise fees, court fees, and other sources (See Figure A-5).

Figure A-5
Revenue Sources

= Water and Sewer

A‘ = Property Taxes
7 = Franchise Fees

= Sales Taxes

= Primary Government Charge for
Services

= Other

GROWTH TRENDS

Governmental Activities

The City's property tax rate for maintenance and operations (M&O) decreased from $0.6034 to $0.5090 in the
current fiscal year generating $8,831,665 in M&O taxes, an increase of $1,392,910 over the previous fiscal
year. While the City's franchise fees increased $359,015, or 15%, and sales taxes increased by $56,684, or
7%. The new M&O tax rate for the year beginning October 1, 2023, is $0.4802.

Business-Type Activities
Water sales increased by $729,161, or 20%, while sewer sales increased by $882,487, or 29%.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
General Fund revenues exceeded expenditures and transfers by $3,132,820 which was $2,117,165 more than
budgeted. See details of budget and actual revenues on page 57.

Capital Assets

During the year ended September 30, 2023, the City invested $5,359,823 in a broad range of capital assets,
including infrastructure, equipment, and buildings (See Figure A-6). These additions were funded from bond
proceeds, capital impact fees, general budgeted expenditures, and notes payables.

-10 -
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CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

Item 1.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Figure A-6
City's Capital Assets
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Land $ 724607 $ 480,607 $ 406816 $ 406,816 $ 1,131,423 $ 887,423
Construction in progress 276,538 676,268 7,687,563 4,428,876 7,964,101 5,105,144
Buildings and equipment 10,307,717 8,297,618 2,124,014 1,633,247 12,431,731 9,930,865
Sidewalks 244,164 244,164 - - 244,164 244,164
Streets and improvements 7,237,043 7,237,043 12,992 12,992 7,250,035 7,250,035
Water system - - 9,474,596 9,474,596 9,474,596 9,474,596
Sewer system - - 26,193,545 26,193,545 26,193,545 26,193,545
Total at historical cost 18,790,069 16,935,700 45,899,526 42,150,072 64,689,595 59,085,772
Accumulated depreciation  (11,318,326)  (9,989,374) (7,946,907)  (7,063,352) (19,265,233)  (17,052,726)
Net capital assets $ 7,471,743 $ 6,946,326 $ 37,952,619 $ 35,086,720 $ 45,424,362 $ 42,033,046
Debt Administration
The City's property tax rate for debt services increased from $0.1793 to $0.2380 in the current fiscal year
generating $4,177,694 in debt service taxes, an increase of $1,983,770 over the previous fiscal year. More
detailed information about the City's debt is presented in the Notes to the Financial Statements. The new debt
service tax rate for the year beginning October 1, 2023, is $0.1988.
Figure A-7
City's Long-Term Debt
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Financed purchases $ 913399 $ 1,162,860 $ 535,605 $ 88,297 $ 1,449,004 $ 1,251,157
Bonds payable 17,482,750 20,266,682 12,657,250 13,425,550 30,140,000 33,692,232
Total $ 18,396,149 $ 21,429,542 $ 13,192,855 § 13,513,847 $ 31,589,004 $ 34,943,389
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES
Next year's proposed General Fund budget is projected to remain consistent with this year's actual revenues.
General fund proposed expenditures are expected to increase by $3,159,233, resulting in a balanced budget.
CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with
a general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the money it
receives. Any questions about this report or need for additional financial information should be addressed to
the City of Manor, Attn: City Manager, P.O. Box 387, Manor, TX 78653.
101
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CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - CONTINUED tem &
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 38,807,895 12,695,243 51,503,138
Receivables, net 657,976 910,921 1,568,897
Due (to) from other funds 2,404,643 (2,404,643) -
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 470,250 8,815,355 9,285,605
Investments 714,584 494,530 1,209,114
Non-current assets:
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 1,001,145 8,094,379 9,095,524
Depreciable, net 6,470,598 29,858,240 36,328,838
Total assets 50,527,091 58,464,025 108,991,116
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
Deferred outflows related to refunding 122,575 - 122,575
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 24,503 4,151 28,654
Deferred outflows related to pensions 1,033,882 130,622 1,164,504
Total deferred outflows 1,180,960 134,773 1,315,733
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Payable from unrestricted assets:
Accounts payable 1,021,852 627,248 1,649,100
Passthrough liabilities 2,270,572 - 2,270,572
Unearned revenue 4,119,488 - 4,119,488
Payable from restricted assets:
Interest payable 51,311 36,231 87,542
Financed purchases, due within one year 441,687 44,838 486,525
Bonds payable, due within one year 2,667,000 788,000 3,455,000
Non-current liabilities:
Payable from unrestricted assets:
Compensated absences 359,574 65,983 425,557
Payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits - 845,494 845,494
Financed purchases, due more than one year 471,712 490,767 962,479
Bonds payable, due more than one year 14,815,750 11,869,250 26,685,000
Net OPEB liability 60,572 10,556 71,128
Net pension liability 1,089,668 174,858 1,264,526
Total liabilities 27,369,186 14,953,225 42,322,411
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 104
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CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION tem &
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

DEFERRED INFLOWS
Deferred inflows related to OPEB $ 59,428 $ 8,374 $ 67,802
Deferred inflows related to pensions 496,278 77,745 574,023
Total deferred inflows 555,706 86,119 641,825

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (10,924,406) 25,295,369 14,370,963
Restricted 1,184,834 9,224,901 10,409,735
Unrestricted 33,522,731 9,039,184 42,561,915
Total net position $ 23,783,159 $ 43,559,454 $ 67,342,613
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 105
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CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Iltem 1.

Charges for
Function/program activities Expenses Services
Primary government:
Government activities:
General government $ 4,840,117 $ 232
Public safety 5,463,281 154,327
Streets 1,950,855 -
Municipal court 480,207 570,493
Development services 1,386,060 2,476,482
Sanitation 1,724,313 1,663,397
Interest on long-term debt 497,294 -
Total government activities 16,342,127 4,864,931
Business-type activities:
Water 4,959,109 4,540,670
Sewer 1,999,614 5,045,413
Interest on long-term debt 341,079 -
Total business-type activities 7,299,802 9,586,083
Total primary government 23,641,929 14,451,014

General revenues:
Taxes:
Property
Sales
Franchise
Other
Interest income
Miscellaneous
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers

Changes in net assets
Net position - beginning of year

Net position - end of year after restatement

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
- 14 -
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Iltem 1.

Program Revenues Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Capital Primary Government
Grants & Grants & Governmental Business-Type
Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

$ - $ - $ (4,839,885 § - $ (4,839,885)
- - (5,308,954) - (5,308,954)
- - (1,950,855) - (1,950,855)

- - 90,286 - 90,286

- - 1,090,422 - 1,090,422
- - (60,916) - (60,916)
- - (497,294) - (497,294)
- - (11,477,196) - (11,477,196)
- - - (418,439) (418,439)

- - - 3,045,799 3,045,799
- - - (341,079) (341,079)

- - - 2,286,281 2,286,281
- - (11,477,196) 2,286,281 (9,190,915)
13,113,638 - 13,113,638

2,804,685 - 2,804,685

895,816 - 895,816

234,409 - 234,409

2,248,649 50,120 2,298,769

1,032,489 - 1,032,489

(1,786,943) 1,786,943 -

18,542,743 1,837,063 20,379,806

7,065,547 4,123,344 11,188,891

16,717,612 39,436,110 56,153,722

$§ 23,783,159 § 43,559,454 $ 67,342,613

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 107
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CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Special

General Fund Revenues Fund

Iltem 1.

ASSETS
Unrestricted
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Due from other funds
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Passthrough liabilities
Unearned revenue
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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$ 22499219 $ 2,114,827
580,230 -

- 147,527
470,250 -

9,414 404,207

$ 23,559,113 $ 2,666,561
$ 964,794 $ -

472,684 1,787,961
4,101,012 _
147,527 -

5,686,017 1,787,961
154,112 -
154,112 -

479,664 878,600
17,239,320 -

17,718,984 878,600

$ 23,559,113 $ 2,666,561
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Total
Debt Service Capital Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
$ (852,484) $ 15,046,333 $ 38,807,895
77,746 - 657,976
2,404,643 - 2,552,170
- - 470,250
300,963 - 714,584
$ 1,930,868 $ 15,046,333 $ 43,202,875
$ - $ 57,058 $ 1,021,852
- 9,927 2,270,572
18,476 - 4,119,488
- - 147,527
18,476 66,985 7,559,439
115,775 - 269,887
115,775 - 269,887
1,796,617 - 3,154,881
- 14,979,348 14,979,348
- - 17,239,320
1,796,617 14,979,348 35,373,549
$ 1,930,868 $ 15,046,333 $ 43,202,875

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

TOTAL FUND BALANCE - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 35,373,549

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different due to the following:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, are not financial
resources, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 7,471,743

Certain receivables are not available to pay current-period
expenditures, therefore, are deferred in the funds. This amount
includes deferred property taxes. 269,887

Deferred outflows and inflows represent the consumption of net
position that is applicable to a future reporting period and are not
reported in the funds. 625,254

Certain liabilities related to long-term debt are not reported in the
funds, such as accrued interest payable. (51,311)

Certain long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (19,905,963)

Iltem 1.

NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 23,783,159

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
-19-
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CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES tem -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Special
General Fund Revenues Fund
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 8,831,665 -
Sales tax 2,804,685 -
Franchise taxes 895.816 -
Other taxes 35,236 199,173
Licenses and permits 2,476,482 -
Charge for services 1,663,397 -
Court and police 570,493 -
Public safety 154,327 -
Interest income 1,731,505 26,809
Interest income - restricted - -
Other 1,031,858 863
Total revenues 20,195,464 226,845
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 5,247,939 66,658
Public safety 5,387,586 -
Streets 2,120,748 -
Municipal court 480,207 -
Development services 1,375,032 -
Sanitation 1,724,313 -
Capital outlay 303,076 -
Debt service:
Principal - -
Interest - -
Total expenditures 16,638,901 66,658
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 3,556,563 160,187
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt issuance proceeds 97,550 -
Debt issuance fees - -
Transfers in - 147,527
Transfers out (521,293) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (423,743) 147,527
Net change in fund balances 3,132,820 307,714
Fund balances - beginning of year 14,586,164 570,886
Fund balances - end of year $ 17,718,984 $ 878,600
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 112
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Debt Services
Fund

Capital Projects
Fund

Total
Governmental
Funds

Iltem 1.

$ 4,177,694

$ 13,009,359
2,804,685
895,816
234,409
2,476,482
1,663,397
570,493
154,327
2,248,649

1,032,721

4,191,024

25,090,338

2,631,700
471,235

5,315,532
5,387,586
2,120,748

480,207
1,375,032
1,724,313

303,076

2,631,700
471,235

3,103,870

19,809,429

1,087,154

477,005

5,280,909

(1,413,177

97,550

147,527

(1,934,470)

(1,413,177

(1,689,393)

1,087,154

709,463

(936,172)

15,915,520

3,591,516

31,782,033

$ 1,796,617

§ 14,979,348

$ 35,373,549

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

Iltem 1.

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 3,591,516

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different due to the following:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation
exceeded capital outlay expenses in the current period. 525,417

The proceeds of debt issuances provide current financial resources
to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment of debt principal
is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the long-term
liabilities in the statement of net assets. This is the amount by which
debt payments exceeded proceeds and changes in accrued interest
and amortization of deferred outflows from refunding. 2,855,102

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds. These expenditures include
changes in accrued compensation and changes in pension and OPEB
benefits and related inflows and outflows. 93,512

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 7,065,547

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 115
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CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - CONTINUED

Iltem 1.

PROPRIETARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Water and Sewer Capital Impact
System Fees Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Unrestricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 12,695,243 - 12,695,243
Accounts receivable, net 910,921 - 910,921
Due from other funds - - -
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 845,494 7,969,861 8,815,355
Investments - 494,530 494,530
Total current assets 14,451,658 8,464,391 22,916,049
Non-current assets:
Non-depreciable assets, net 8,094,379 - 8,094,379
Depreciable assets, net 29,858,240 - 29,858,240
Total non-current assets 37,952,619 - 37,952,619
Total assets 52,404,277 8,464,391 60,868,668
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
Deferred outflow related to OPEB 4,151 - 4,151
Deferred outflow related to pension 130,622 - 130,622
Total deferred outflows 134,773 - 134,773
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 542,264 84,984 627,248
Interest payable 36,231 - 36,231
Passthrough liabilities - - -
Due to other funds 2,404,643 - 2,404,643
Notes payable, due within one year 44,838 - 44,838
Bonds payable, due within one year 788,000 - 788,000
Total current liabilities 3,815,976 84,984 3,900,960
Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences 65,983 - 65,983
Customer deposits 845,494 - 845,494
Notes payable, due after one year 490,767 - 490,767
Bonds payable, due after one year 11,869,250 - 11,869,250
Net OPEB liability 10,556 - 10,556
Net pension liability 174,858 - 174,858
Total non-current liabilities 13,456,908 - 13,456,908
Total liabilities 17,272,884 84,984 17,357,868

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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DEFERRED INFLOWS

Deferred inflow related to OPEB

Deferred inflow related to pensions
Total deferred inflows

NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Water and Sewer Capital Impact

Iltem 1.

System Fees Total
$ 8,374 $ - $ 8,374
77,745 - 77,745
86,119 - 86,119
25,295,369 - 25,295,369
845,494 8,379,407 9,224,901
9,039,184 - 9,039,184
$ 35,180,047 $ 8,379,407 $ 43,559,454
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CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND tem -
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Water and Capital Impact
Sewer System Fees Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Water service $ 3,850,181 - 3,850,181
Sewer service 3,965,641 - 3,965,641
Penalties 119,214 - 119,214
Miscellaneous 1,610 - 1,610
Capital impact fees - 1,649,437 1,649,437
Total operating revenues 7,936,646 1,649,437 9,586,083
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services 942,496 - 942,496
Operations 570,717 315,293 886,010
Utilities 332,340 - 332,340
Insurance 163,171 - 163,171
Materials and supplies 415,082 - 415,082
Maintenance 446,724 79,970 526,694
Water fees 2,319,242 - 2,319,242
Wastewater fees 490,133 - 490,133
Depreciation 883,555 - 883,555
Total operating expenses 6,563,460 395,263 6,958,723
OPERATING INCOME 1,373,186 1,254,174 2,627,360
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income - 50,120 50,120
Interest expense (341,079) - (341,079)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (341,079) 50,120 (290,959)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
CONTRIBUTIONS & TRANSFERS 1,032,107 1,304,294 2,336,401
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Transfers in (out) 900,943 (900,943) -
Transfers from (to) primary government 1,786,943 - 1,786,943
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 3,719,993 403,351 4,123,344
NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 31,460,054 7,976,056 39,436,110
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 35,180,047 8,379,407 43,559,454

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS e
PROPRIETARY FUND
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $ 9,381,812
Payments to suppliers (5,748,814)
Payments to employees and contractors (953,138)
Net cash flows from operating activities 2,679,860
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in customer deposits 48,121
Increase in restricted assets (516,192)
Net cash flows from non-capital financing activities (468,071)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from primary government 3,801,087
Additions to capital assets (1,061,568)
Transfers of capital assets from other funds (2,687,886)
Principal payments on debt (811,759)
Interest payments on debt (343,279)
Net cash flows from capital and related financing activities (1,103,405)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income 50,120
Net cash flows from investing activities 50,120
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,158,504
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 11,045,972
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 12,204,476
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income $ 2,627,360
Adjustments not affecting cash:
Depreciation 883,555
(Increase) decrease in assets and increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts receivable (204,271)
Accounts payable (616,142)
Compensated absences (4,291)
Deferred outflows (95,804)
Deferred inflows 28,313
Net OPEB liability (4,265)
Net pension liability 65,405
Net cash flows from operating activities $ 2,679,860
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 119
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CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Iltem 1.

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Manor, Texas (City) is a Home Rule city in which citizens elect the mayor and six council members at large by
place. The City operates under the Council-Manager form of government and provides such services as are authorized by
its charter to advance the welfare, health, comfort, safety, and convenience of the City and its inhabitants.

The financial statements of the City are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in
the United States of America as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
is the accepted primary standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
GASB periodically updates its codification of the existing Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards,
which along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for
governmental units. The more significant accounting and reporting policies and practices used by the City are described
below.

Reporting Entity

The City's basic financial statements include all activities, organizations, and functions for which the City is considered to
be financially accountable. The criteria considered in determining activities to be reported within the City's basic financial
statements include whether:

the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in its own name)

the City holds the corporate powers of the organization

the City appoints a voting majority of the organization's board

the City is able to impose its will on the organization

the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the City
there is a fiscal dependency by the organization of the City

The above criteria were applied to potential organizations to determine if the entity should be reported as part of the City.
It was determined that the City has no component units or related organizations that should be reported within the City's
basic financial statements.

Implementation of New Standards

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, is effective for the City in fiscal year 2023. This statement provides a
single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminates diversity in practice. The new standard
clarifies the definition of a conduit debt obligation, that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer, establishes
standards for accounting and financial reporting of commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with
conduit debt obligations, and improves required note disclosures. The City does not have conduit debt.

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, (GASB 96) requires recognition of
certain right-to-use subscription assets and corresponding liabilities for subscription-based information technology
arrangements (SBITA) that were previously classified as operating subscriptions and recognized as outflows of resources
based on the payment provisions of the contract. The City did not have any SBITAs that qualified for GASB 96
implementation.
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022, includes certain provisions that were effective for the City in fiscal year 2022
and other provisions that are effective in fiscal year 2023 and 2024. The Statement addresses a variety of topics which
include provisions regarding practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain
GASB Statements as well as accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees. The following provisions were
effective and implemented in fiscal year 2023: Clarification of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended and
clarification of provisions in GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual
basis of accounting. Government-wide financial statements do not provide information by individual fund or fund types,
but distinguish between the City's governmental activities and business-type activities on the Statement of Net Position and
Statement of Activities. The statements report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government
and its component units. The City's Statement of Net Position includes both non-current assets and non-current liabilities
of the City. Accrual accounting reports all of the revenues and cost of providing services each year, not just those received
or paid in the current year or soon thereafter. Additionally, the government-wide Statement of Activities reflects
depreciation expense on the City's capital assets, including infrastructure.

Statement of Net Position

The Statement of Net Position is designed to display the financial position of the primary government (government and
business-type activities). The City reports all capital assets, including infrastructure, in the government-wide Statement of
Net Position and reports depreciation expense - the cost of "using up" capital assets - in the Statement of Activities. The
net position of the City is broken down into three categories: 1) invested in capital assets, net of related debt; 2) restricted;
and 3) unrestricted. Long-term liabilities are reported in two categories: 1) the amount due within one year; and 2) the
amount due in more than one year.

Statement of Activities

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports net revenue (expense) in a format that focuses on the cost of each of
the City's governmental activities and for each of the City's business-type activities. The expense of individual functions is
compared to revenues generated directly by the function (for instance, through user charges or intergovernmental grants).
General revenues (including all taxes), investment earnings, special and extraordinary items, and transfers between
governmental and business-type activities are reported separately after the total net expenses of the government's
functions, ultimately arriving at the change in net position of the period. Program revenues are segregated into three
categories: 1) charges for services; 2) program-specific operating grants and contributions; and 3) program-specific capital
grants and contributions. Indirect costs are allocated amount functions based on use.
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Fund Level Financial Statements

In addition to the government-wide financial statements, the City prepares fund financial statements, which continue to use
the modified accrual basis of accounting and the current financial resources measurement focus. The focus on the fund
financial statements is on the major individual funds of the governmental and business-type activities, as well as any
fiduciary funds (by category) and any component units. Fund financial accounting is designed to demonstrate legal
compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain government functions or
activities.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund
Reports as the primary fund of the City. This fund is used to account for all financial resources not reported in any other
funds.

Special Revenue Fund
Established to account for revenues assessed and collected for specific purposes.

Debt Service Fund

Established to account for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment of principal and interest of the City's
general obligation debt. The City annually levies ad valorem taxes restricted for the retirement of general obligation
bonds and interest. This fund reports ad valorem taxes collected for debt purposes only.

Capital Projects Fund
Bond Management - Established to account for the capital expenditures of general obligation bond proceeds.

Grants Management - Established to account for the City's capital grants and contributions which fund the acquisition,

construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets. These revenues are subject to externally imposed restrictions to these
program uses.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Water and Sewer Fund
Accounts for the operating activities of the City's water and sewer services.

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting, generally including the reclassification or elimination of internal activity (between or within fund).
Proprietary fund level financial statements also report using the same focus and basis of accounting although internal
activity is not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when liability
is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property tax revenues are recognized in the year in which they
are levied while grants are recognized when grantor eligibility requirements are met.
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Governmental fund level financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available. Available
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The City considers revenues
to be available if they are collected within sixty days of the fiscal year end. Expenditures are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred, except for debt principal and interest which are reported expenditures in the year due.

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include sales and property taxes. In general, other revenues are recognized
when cash is received.

Operating income reported in the proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and expenses related to the
primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary funds are charges to customers for
sales or services. Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and included administrative
expenses and depreciation of capital assets.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first,
then unrestricted resources as needed. See Note E for information describing the City's restricted assets.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, highly liquid investments are considered to be cash equivalents if they have a
maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Inventories and Prepaid Items
The City records purchases of supplies as expenditures, utilizing the purchase method of accounting for inventory. Certain
payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items.

Capital Assets

The City's capital assets and infrastructure with useful lives of more than one year are stated at historical cost and
comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial statements. The City maintains infrastructure asset records
consistent with all other capital assets. Proprietary capital assets are also reported in their respective funds. Donated assets
are stated at fair value on the date donated. The City generally capitalizes assets with a cost of $5,000 or more as purchases
and outlays occur. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend
useful lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. When capital assets are
disposed, the cost and applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting
gain or loss is recorded in operations. For information describing capital assets. (see Note F)
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are as follows:

Vehicles 5
Software 5
Machinery and equipment 5-7
Buildings and improvements 10-20
Infrastructure 20-50

Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until that time. Deferred outflows, found on the government-
wide statement of net position, consist of deferred losses on refundings and deferred outflows related to pensions. A
deferred loss on refunding occurs when there is a difference in the carrying value of the refunded debt and its reacquisition
price. The amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded debt or refunding debt. Deferred
outflows related to pensions consist of amounts paid into the retirement system after the prescribed measurement date plus
the net difference between projected and actual earnings.

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Deferred inflows, found on the government-wide statement
of net position, consist of deferred inflows related to pensions and deferred professional prosecutor revenue. On the
governmental funds balance sheet, deferred inflows consist of deferred property tax revenue, deferred special assessment
revenue, and deferred professional prosecutor revenue. All amounts are deferred and recognized as inflows of resources in
the period that the amounts become available.

Long-Term Debt

In the government-wide and proprietary fund level financial statements, outstanding debt is reported as liabilities.
Outstanding debt is reported within governmental activities and business-type activities based on use of proceeds. Bond
issue costs are expensed when incurred.

Fund Balance/Net Position
Fund balances/net position are divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to
observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds. The classifications are as follows:

Non-spendable
The non-spendable fund balance category includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, or

legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The "not in spendable form" criterion includes items that are not
expected to be converted to cash. It also includes the long-term amount of interfund loans.
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Restricted

Fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are either externally imposed by
creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or is
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling legislation authorizes the City to assess,
levy, charge, or otherwise mandate payment of resources (from external resource providers) and includes a legally
enforceable requirement that those resources be used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation. Legal
enforceability means that the City can be compelled by an external party-such as citizens, public interest groups, or the
judiciary to use resources created by enabling legislation only for the purposes specified by the legislation.

Committed

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes imposed by
formal action (ordinance or resolution) of the City Council. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action (ordinance or
resolution) it employed to previously commit those amounts. In contrast to fund balance that is restricted by enabling
legislation, committed fund balance classification may be redeployed for other purposes with appropriate due process.
Constraints imposed on the use of committed amounts are imposed by the City Council, separate from the authorization to
raise the underlying revenue; therefore, compliance with these constraints are not considered to be legally enforceable.
Committed fund balance also incorporates contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have
been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the City for specific purposes but do not
meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In governmental funds other than the General Fund, the
assigned fund balance represents the remaining amount that is not restricted or committed. In the General Fund, assigned
amounts represent intended uses established by the City Council or a city official delegated that authority by City Charter
or ordinance.

Unassigned
Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all spendable amounts not

contained in the other classifications. In other governmental funds, the unassigned classification is used only to report a
deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed, or
assigned.

The City applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which either restricted or
unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) amounts are available. Similarly, within unrestricted fund balance,
committed amounts are reduced first followed by assigned, and then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred
for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

Inter-Fund Activity

Inter-fund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds. Loans are reported as
inter-fund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided,
deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur
when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund, and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All
other inter-fund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers-in and transfers-out are netted and presented as a single
"Transfers" line on the government-wide statement of activities. Similarly, inter-fund receivables and payables, if
applicable, are netted and presented as a single "Internal Balances" line of the government-wide statement of net assets.

Compensated Absences
Compensated absences are reported as accrued in the government-wide financial statements. In the fund level financial
statements, only matured compensated absences payable to currently terminating employees are reported.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported periods. Final
amounts could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events
Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure through the date of the Independent Auditors' Report, the date
the financial statements were available to be issued. See Notes O and P.

B. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The City's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract. The depository bank
deposits for safekeeping and trust with the City's agent bank approved pledged securities in an amount sufficient to protect
City funds on a day-to-day basis during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is waived only to the
extent of the depository bank's dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance.

Cash Deposits

At September 30, 2023, carrying amounts of the City's cash deposits were $60,788,743 and bank balances were
$61,962,470. The City's cash deposits at September 30, 2023, were in excess of FDIC insurance and bank pledges
securities by $31,563,934.

Investments

The City is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Investment Act (Act), to adopt, implement, and
publicize an investment policy. That policy must be written; primarily emphasize safety of principal and liquidity; address
investment diversification, yield, and maturity and the quality and capability of investment management; and include a list
of the types of authorized investments in which the investing entity's funds may be invested and the maximum allowable
stated maturity of any individual investment owned by the entity.
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B. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

The Act requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in this area conducted as a part of the audit of
the general purpose financial statements disclosed that in the areas of investment practices, management reports and
establishment of appropriate policies, the City adhered to the requirements of the Act. Additionally, investment practices
of the City were in accordance with local policies.

The Act determines the types of investments which are allowable for the City. These include, with certain restrictions, (1)
obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the State of Texas, (2) certificates of deposit, (3) certain
municipal securities, (4) money market savings accounts, (5) repurchase agreements, (6) bankers' acceptances, (7) mutual
funds, (8) investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts, and (10) common trust funds.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under GASB 72 are described as follows:
Level 1 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets that the entity has the ability to access.
Level 2 Inputs to the valuation methodology include:
Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and
Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other
means.
Level 3 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant and use the best information available
under the circumstances.

The City's investments at September 30, 2023, are shown below. These investments are not classified in a level hierarchy
as they are recorded at net asset value.

Investment or Investment Type Maturity Fair Value
TexPool Investment N/A $ 1,209,114

GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants (GASB 79). This statement establishes
how certain state and local government external investment pools may measure and report their investments. An external
investment pool may elect to measure, for reporting purposes, all of its investments at amortized cost if it meets certain
criteria. In addition, this statement also establishes additional note disclosures for external investment pools and their
participants.

TexPool operates in a manner consistent with the criteria set forth in GASB 79 and therefore uses amortized cost to report
net assets to compute share prices. The State Comptroller of Public Accounts exercises oversight responsibility over
TexPool. Oversight includes the ability to significantly influence operations, designation of management, and
accountability for fiscal matters. Additionally, the State Comptroller has established an advisory board composed of both
participants in TexPool and other persons who do not have a business relationship with TexPool. The Advisory Board
members review the investment policy and management fee structure. TexPool does not have any restrictions or
limitations on withdrawals.
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B. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

TexPool is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s. As a requirement to maintain the rating, weekly portfolio information must
be submitted to Standard & Poor’s for review. TexPool is also required to send portfolio information to the office of the
State Comptroller of Public Accounts.

Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks

Professional standards require a determination as to whether the City was exposed to the following specific investment
risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The ratings of
securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed to give an indication of credit risk. At year end, the City
was not exposed to a significant amount of credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are
uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities
held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not in the City's name.

Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of
the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparty's trust department or agent but not in the City's
name. At September 30, 2023, the City's investment deposits were entirely covered by depository insurance or
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution in the City's name.

Concentration of Credit Risk
This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single issuer. At year end, the City
was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk
This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the City was
not exposed to interest rate risk.

Foreign Currency Risk
This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the City was not
exposed to foreign currency risk.
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C. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Explanation of differences between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Government-wide Statement of
Net Position:

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between the governmental fund balance on the fund
financial statements and total net position of governmental activities on the government-wide financial statements.

Governmental fund balance $ 35,373,549
Difference due to capital assets

Capital assets 18,790,069
Accumulated depreciation (11,318,326) 7,471,743

Difference due to deferred outflows

Deferred outflows related to pensions 1,033,882
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 24,503
Deferred loss on refunding 122,575 1,180,960

Difference due to current liabilities
Interest payable (51,311)

Difference due to non-current liabilities

Compensated absences (359,574)
Net pension liability (1,089,668)
Net OPEB liability (60,572)
Notes payable (913,399)
Bonds payable (17,482,750) (19,905,963)

Difference due to deferred inflows

Deferred inflows related to property taxes 269,887

Deferred inflows related to pensions (496,278)

Deferred inflows related to OPEB (59,428) (285,819)
Government-wide net position $ 23,783,159
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C. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

Explanation of differences between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances and the Government-wide Statement of Activities:

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a reconciliation
between the change in governmental fund balance on the fund financial statements and change in total net position of
governmental activities on the government-wide financial statements.

Change in governmental fund balance $ 3,591,516

Amount by which depreciation exceeds capital outlay expense

and other capital related transactions

Capital outlay 1,854,369

Depreciation expense (1,328,952) 525,417

Long-term debt and related items

Debt payments 3,264,226

Debt issuances (383,065)

Accrued interest adjustment 3,598

Amortization of loss on refunding (29,657) 2,855,102

Expenses or revenues that do not require the use of current
financial resources or have not matured

Property taxes recorded as deferred inflows 104,279

Changes in pension expense and deferred outflows and inflows 70,510

Changes in OPEB expense and deferred outflows and inflows (23,488)

Compensated absence adjustment (57,789) 93,512
Change in government-wide net position $ 7,065,547

D. RECEIVABLES, UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS, AND DEFERRED REVENUE

Sales Tax Receivable

Sales taxes are collected and remitted to the City by the State Comptroller's Office. All sales taxes are collected within
sixty days of year end. At fiscal year end, the receivables represent taxes collected but not yet received by the City and are
recorded as revenue.

Property Taxes Receivable and Deferred Revenue

Property taxes are assessed and remitted to the City by the Travis County Tax Assessor's Office. Taxes, levied annually on
October 1, are due by January 31. The majority of tax payments are received December through March. Lien dates for real
property are July.
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D. RECEIVABLES, UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS, AND DEFERRED REVENUE - CONTINUED

Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables reported in the General Fund are based upon historical experience in
collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically reviewed and written off when deemed
uncollectible; however, state statutes prohibit writing off real property taxes without specific authority from the Texas
Legislation.

In the governmental fund level financial statements, property taxes receivable are recorded in the General Fund when
assessed (October 1). At fiscal year end, property taxes receivables represent delinquent taxes. If delinquent taxes are not
paid within sixty days of fiscal year end, they are recorded as deferred revenue.

In the government-wide financial statements, property tax receivables and related revenues include all amounts due to the
City regardless of when cash is received.

At September 30, 2023, receivables for governmental activities are summarized in the government-wide financial
statements as follows:

Allowance for

Uncollectible

Receivables Accounts Net Receivables

Sales tax receivable $ 229,427 $ - $ 229,427
Property tax receivable 269,887 (88,858) 181,029
Employee receivable 1,961 - 1,961
Court fines receivable 862,874 (836,988) 25,886
Other 219,673 - 219,673
Total receivables $ 1,583,822 § (925,846) $ 657,976

Business-Type Activities Receivables

Business-type activities receivables represent amounts due from customers for water, wastewater, and sanitation services.
These receivables are due within one month. Receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts and
revenues net of what is estimated to be uncollectible. The allowance is estimated using accounts receivable past due more
than ninety days.

At September 30, 2023, Business-type activities receivables are summarized in the financial statements as follows:

Allowance for

Uncollectible
Receivables Accounts Net Receivables
Customer receivables $ 911,070  $ (1,349) § 909,721
NSF checks 1,200 - 1,200
Total receivables $ 912,270  $ (1,349) § 910,921
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E. RESTRICTED ASSETS

At September 30, 2023, restricted assets consisted of the following:

Cash and cash equivalents:
Other
Parkland project
Rose Hill Public Improvement District
Customer deposits
Capital improvements - water system
Capital improvements - sewer system

Total cash and cash equivalents

Investments:
Parks
Debt service
Tourism
Capital improvements - sewer system
Total investments

F. CAPITAL ASSETS

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2023, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Non-depreciable assets:
Land
Construction in progress
Total non-depreciable assets

Depreciable assets:
Buildings
Equipment
Sidewalks
Streets and improvements
Total depreciable assets
Accumulated depreciation
Depreciable assets, net

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS tem &
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Governmental ~ Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
$ (1,316,354) § - $  (1,316,354)
470,250 - 470,250
1,316,354 - 1,316,354
- 845,494 845,494
- 2,848,376 2,848,376
- 5,121,485 5,121,485
$ 470,250 $ 8,815,355 $ 9,285,605
Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
$ 9,414  § - $ 9,414
300,963 - 300,963
404,207 - 404,207
- 494,530 494,530
$ 714584  $ 494530  $ 1,209,114
Beginning Deletions/
Balance Additions Reclass Ending Balance
$§ 480,607 S 244,000 S - $ 724,607
676,268 - (399,730) 276,538
$ 1,156,875 $ 244,000 $ (399,730) $ 1,001,145
$ 2,626,731 $ - $ - $ 2,626,731
5,670,887 1,610,369 399,730 7,680,986
244,164 - - 244,164
7,237,043 - - 7,237,043
15,778,825 1,610,369 399,730 17,788,924
(9,989,374) (1,328,952) - (11,318,326)
$ 5,789,451 $ 281,417  $ 399,730 § 6,470,598
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F. CAPITAL ASSETS - CONTINUED
Beginning Deletions/
Business-Type Activities: Balance Additions Reclass Ending Balance
Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ 406,816 $ - $ - $ 406,816
Construction in progress 4,428,876 3,258,687 - 7,687,563
Total non-depreciable assets $ 4,835,692 $ 3,258,687 $ - $ 8,094,379
Depreciable assets:
Machinery and equipment $ 1,633,247 $ 490,767  $ - $ 2,124,014
Culverts 12,992 - - 12,992
Infrastructure - water system 9,474,596 - - 9,474,596
Infrastructure - sewer system 26,193,545 - - 26,193,545
Total depreciable assets 37,314,380 490,767 - 37,805,147
Accumulated depreciation (7,063,352) (883,555) - (7,946,907)
Depreciable assets, net $30,251,028 $  (392,788) $ - $ 29,858,240
Depreciation expense was charged to the functions as follows:
Governmental  Business-Type
Function: Activities Activities Total
General government $ 222509 $ - $ 222,509
Public safety 408,566 - 408,566
Streets 686,849 - 686,849
Development services 11,028 - 11,028
Water - 559,060 559,060
Sewer - 324,495 324,495
Total depreciation expense $ 1,328,952 $ 883,555  $ 2,212,507
G. INTER-FUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY
Transfers (To)From Other Funds
Special
Revenues Capital Proprietary Capital Impact
Purpose General Fund Fund Projects Fund Fund Fees
Transfer of capital assets $ (373,766) $ - $ (1,413,177) $§ 2,687,886 $ (900,943)
Tranfer of funds (147,527) 147,527 - - -
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YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
H. LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-Term Debt Activity
Changes in long-term debt obligations for the year ended September 30, 2023, are as follows:
Beginning Ending Amounts Due

Governmental Activities: Balances Increases Decreases Balances Within One Year
Financed purchases $ 1,162,860 $ 383,065 $ (632,526) $ 913,399 $ 441,687
Bonds payable 20,114,450 - (2,631,700) 17,482,750 2,667,000
Loss on refunding 152,232 - (29,657) 122,575 29,657

Total governmental activities $21,429,542 § 383,065 $ (3,293,883) $ 18,518,724 $ 3,138,344

Beginning Ending Amounts Due
Business-Type Activities: Balances Increases Decreases Balances Within One Year
Financed purchases $ 88,297 § 490,767 § (43,459) S 535,605  § 44,838
Bonds payable 13,425,550 - (768,300) 12,657,250 788,000

Total business-type activities $13,513,847 § 490,767 § (811,759) § 13,192,855 § 832,838

Debt Service Requirements

Financed Purchases

On July 26, 2019, the City entered into financing agreements for vehicles and equipment totaling $376,450 at 3.175%
fixed interest rate with yearly payments of $82,611 due in July. The City's balance remaining on the note payable at
September 30, 2023, is $80,068.

On September 17, 2020, the City entered into financing agreements for vehicles totaling $50,302 at 2.77% fixed interest
rate with yearly payments of $10,618 due in October. The City's balance remaining on the note payable at September 30,
2023, 1s $10,331.

On November 18, 2020, the City entered into financing agreements for vehicles totaling $435,599 at 1.942% fixed interest
rate with yearly payments of $92,259 due in December. The City's balance remaining on the note payable at September
30, 2023, is $266,368.

On November 11, 2020, the City entered into financing agreements for tasers totaling $87,169 at 0.00% fixed interest rate
with yearly payments of $17,280 due in November. The City's balance remaining on the note payable at September 30,
2023, is $34,560.

On March 12, 2021, the City entered into financing agreements for equipment totaling $285,515 at 0% fixed interest rate
with annual payments of $57,103, maturing on April 22, 2025. The City's balance remaining on the note payable at
September 30, 2023, is $114,206.
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YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

H. LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED
Financed Purchases - Continued

On May 31, 2022, the City entered into financing agreements for equipment totaling $475,126 at 3.00% fixed interest rate
with monthly payments of $8,547, maturing on May 30, 2027. The City's balance remaining on the note payable at
September 30, 2023, is $355,154.

On March 1, 2023, the City entered into financing agreements for vehicles totaling $588,317 at 5.47% fixed interest rate
with yearly payments of $137,657 due in March. The City's balance remaining on the note payable at September 30, 2023,
is $588,317.

Debt service requirements on long-term notes payable at September 30, 2023, were as follows:

Governmental Activities

For the years ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 450,525 $ 49,561  § 500,086
2025 370,417 36,438 406,855
2026 306,763 25,709 332,472
2027 190,783 14,659 205,442
2028 130,516 7,139 137,655

$ 1,449,004 § 133,506  § 1,582,510

Bonds Payable

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012

On April 1, 2012, the City issued $3,510,000 in general obligation bonds, proceeds to be used to refund Series 2001 and
2004 revenue bonds. The bond interest rate of 2.55% with semi-annual payments due on February 15 and August 15 of
each year until maturity in 2026 or prior redemption.

Certificate of Obligation Bonds, Series 2012

On September 1, 2012, the City issued $1,835,000 in certificate of obligation bonds, proceeds to be used for city
construction. Bond interest rate of 2.49% with semi-annual payments due on February 15 and August 15 of each year until
maturity in 2027 or prior redemption.

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015

On February 15, 2015, the City issued $4,750,000 in general obligation bonds, proceeds to be used to partially refund
Series 2007 revenue bonds. Bond interest rate of 2.29% with semi-annual payments due on February 15 and August 15 of
each year until maturity in 2026 or prior redemption.

Combination Tax and Revenue Certificate of Obligation Bonds, Series 2016

On August 18, 2016, the City issued $18,000,000 in certificate of obligation bonds, proceeds to be used for city street and
drainage improvements ($270,000) and water and waste water improvements ($17,730,000). Bond interest rate of 2.29%
with semi-annual payments due on February 15 and August 15 of each year until maturity in 2031 or prior redemption.
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YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

H. LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED
Bonds Payable - Continued

Combination Tax and Revenue Certificate of Obligation Bonds, Series 2021

On December 1, 2021, the City issued $6,360,000 in combined tax and revenue certificate of obligation bonds, proceeds to
be used for the improvement and expansion of the City's water and sewer system. Bond interest rate of 1.76% with semi-
annual payments due on February 15 and August 15 of each year until maturity in 2036 or prior redemption.

Tax Note, Series 2022

On September 22, 2022, the City issued $10,000,000 in tax notes, proceeds to be used for the improvement and expansion
of the City's water and sewer system. Bond interest rate of 2.97% with semi-annual payments due on February 15 and
August 15 of each year until maturity in 2039 or prior redemption.

Debt service requirements on long-term bond debt at September 30, 2023, were as follows:

Series 2012 - $3,510,000

For the years ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 315,000 S 11,220  $ 326,220
2025 60,000 3,188 63,188
2026 65,000 1,718 66,718
Total $ 440,000 $ 16,126  $ 456,126

Series 2012 - $1,835,000

For the years ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 135,000 $ 13,944  §$ 148,944
2025 140,000 10,583 150,583
2026 140,000 7,097 147,097
2027 145,000 3,611 148,611
Total $ 560,000 $ 35235  $ 595,235

Series 2015 - $4,750,000

For the years ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 485,000 $ 46,487  § 531,487
2025 500,000 35,381 535,381
2026 515,000 23,931 538,931
2027 530,000 12,137 542,137
Total $ 2,030,000 $ 117936  § 2,147,936
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H. LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

Bonds Payable - Continued

For the years ending September 30,
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029-2031
Total

For the years ending September 30,

2024
2025
2026
2027
2028

2029-2033

2034 - 2036
Total

For the years ending September 30,
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029-2031
Total

Deferred Outflow on Refunding

Item 1.
Series 2016 - $18,000,000

Principal Interest Total
$ 800,000 $ 294,265  $ 1,094,265
1,170,000 275,945 1,445,945
1,200,000 249,152 1,449,152
1,290,000 221,672 1,511,672
2,015,000 192,131 2,207,131
6,375,000 294,494 6,669,494
$ 12,850,000 $ 1,527,659 $ 14,377,659

Series 2021 CO - $6,360,000

Principal Interest Total
$ 380,000 S 98,472  § 478,472
390,000 91,784 481,784
395,000 84,920 479,920
405,000 77,968 482,968
410,000 70,840 480,840
2,190,000 242,528 2,432,528
1,425,000 50,512 1,475,512
$ 5595000 § 717,024  § 6,312,024

Series 2022 Tax Notes - $10,000,000

Principal Interest Total
$ 1,340,000 $ 257,351 $ 1,597,351
1,380,000 217,553 1,597,553
1,420,000 176,567 1,596,567
1,465,000 134,393 1,599,393
1,505,000 90,882 1,595,882
1,555,000 46,184 1,601,184
$ 8,665000 § 922,930 § 9,587,930

The City has deferred outflow of $373,180 related to the Series 2015 refunding. This outflow represents the amount of the
new bond principal, less issuance costs, that was greater than the current principal balance of the bonds refunded and will
be amortized, straight-line, over the life of the Series 2015 Bond. The deferred outflow remaining balance at September

30, 2023 was $122,575.

Continuing Disclosure

The City has entered into a continuing disclosure undertaking to provide Annual Reports and Material Event Notices to the
State Information Disclosure Depository of Texas, which is the Municipal Advisory Council. This information is required

under SEC Rule 15¢2-12 to enable investors to analyze the financial condition and operation of the City.
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YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
I. RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
At September 30, 2023, net assets restricted by enabling legislation consisted of the following:
Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Rose Hill Public Improvement District $ 1,316,354 $ - $ 1,316,354
Parkland project 470,250 - 470,250
Tourism 404,207 - 404,207
Debt service 300,963 - 300,963
Other (1,306,940) - (1,306,940)
Capital improvements - 9,224,901 9,224,901
Total restricted net assets $ 1,184,834 $§ 9,224901 $ 10,409,735

J. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts, damage or destruction of assets, error and omissions,
injuries to employees, and natural disasters. During fiscal year 2015, the City obtained general liability coverage at a cost
that is considered to be economically justifiable by joining together with other governmental entities in the State as a
member of the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TML). TML is a self-funded pool operating as a
common risk management and insurance program. The City pays an annual premium to TML for its above insurance
coverage. The agreement for the formation of TML provides that TML will be self-sustaining through member premiums
and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of acceptable risk levels; however, each category of
coverage has its own level of reinsurance. The City continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss. There
were no significant reductions in commercial insurance coverage in the past fiscal year and settled claims resulting from
these risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

K. PENSION PLAN

Plan Description

The City provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees through a non-traditional, joint contributory, hybrid
defined benefit plan in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), an agent multiple-employer public
employee retirement system. The plan provisions that have been adopted by the City are within the options available in the
governing state statutes of TMRS.

TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information (RSI) for TMRS. This report also provides detailed explanations of the contributions, benefits,
and actuarial methods and assumptions used by TMRS. This report may be obtained by writing to TMRS, P.O. Box
149153, Austin, TX 78714-9153, or by calling 800-924-8677; in addition, the report is available on TMRS's website at
www. TMRS.com.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes
governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City are as follows:
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YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

K. PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED

Plan Year 2021  Plan Year 2022

Employee deposit rate 7.0% 7.0%
Matching ratio (city to employee) 2to 1 2to 1
Years required for vesting 5 5
Service retirement eligibility (expressed as age/years of service) 60/5, 0/20 60/5, 0/20
Updated service credit 0% 0%
Annuity increase (to retirees) 0% of CPI 0% of CPI

At December 31, 2022, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 13
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 56
Active employees 82
151
Contributions

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the
Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service
cost contribution rate, which is calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution
rate finances the portion of an active member's projected benefit allocated annually; the prior service contribution rate
amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over the applicable period for that city. Both the normal cost
and prior service contribution rates include recognition of the projected impact of annually repeating benefits, such as
Updated Service Credits and Annuity Increases.

The City contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and the City make
contributions monthly. Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-
year delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into
effect. The actuarially determined required employer contribution rate for calendar years 2022, 2021, and 2020 were
8.16%, 8.85%, and 9.23%, respectively. The required contribution rate payable by the employee members for calendar
years 2022, 2021, and 2020 was 7%.

Net Pension Asset

The City’s net pension asset was measured as of December 31, 2022, and the total pension asset used to calculate the net
pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
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K. PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2022, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial

assumptions:

Actuarial valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Inflation

Salary increases

Investment rate of return
Retirement age

Mortality

Other Information:
Notes

December 31, 2022

Entry Age Normal

Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

22 Years

10 Year smoothed market; 12% soft corridor

2.50%

3.50% to 11.50% including inflation

6.75%

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the
City's plan of benefits. Last updated for the 2019
valuation pursuant to an experience study of the
period 2014 - 2018

Post-retirement: 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas
Mortality Tables. The rates are projected on a fully
generational basis with scale UMP.

Pre-retirement: PUB(10) mortality tables, with the
Public Safety table used for males and the General
Employee table used for females. The rates are

projected on a fully generational basis with scale
UMP.

There were no benefit changes during the year.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2021, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period December 31, 2014 — December 31, 2018.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension asset was 6.75%. System-wide Investment Return Assumption: 6.75%
per year, compounded annually, composed of an assumed 2.50% inflation rate and a 4.25% net real rate of return. This rate

represents the assumed return, net of all investment expenses.
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K. PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED
Change in Net Pension Asset
Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability / (Asset) Net Position  Liability / (Asset)
(a) (b) (a-b)
Balances as of December 31, 2021 $ 7,007,618 $ 6,292,696 $ 714,922
Changes for the year:
Service cost 711,850 - 711,850
Interest on total pension liability 488,011 - 488,011
Change in benefit terms including substantively automatic status - - -
Difference between expected and actual experience (241,140) - (241,140)
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs - - -
Benefit payments (267,511) - (267,511)
Contributions - employer - 471,641 (471,641)
Contributions - employee - 397,681 (397,681)
Net investment income - (460,975) 460,975
Benefit payments - (267,511) 267,511
Administrative expenses - (3,975) 3,975
Other - 4,745 (4,745)
Net changes 691,210 141,606 549,604
Balances as of December 31, 2022 $ 7,698,828 $ 6,434,302 $ 1,264,526

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the
City’s net pension asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or
one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate.

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
5.75% 6.75% 7.75%
Net pension liability / (asset) $ 2,594,774 $§ 1,264,526 $ 202,446

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued TMRS’s
comprehensive annual financial report.
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K. PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED

Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of $448,058. At September 30, 2023,
deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions were reported from the following sources:

Deferred Inflows Deferred Outflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual earnings- actuarial (gains) or losses $ 311,487 $ 59,118
Changes in assumptions 3,013 -
Differences between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments 259,523 708,585
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date - 396,801

$ 574,023  § 1,164,504

The $396,801 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will
be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended September 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Years Ending
September 30,
2024 $ 2,482
2025 53,156
2026 56,310
2027 127,828
2028 (33,892)
Thereafter (12,204)

5 193,680

Funded Status and Funding Process

The fund status as of December 31, 2022, is presented as follows:

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) ®
Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded AAL UAAL as of %
Valuation Actuarial Value of Liability Funded Ratio  (UAAL) (b) - Covered of Covered
Date Assets (AAL) (a)/(b) (a) Payroll Payroll (d)/(e)
12/31/2020  § 5,078,137 $ 6,116,381 83.0% $ 1,038,244 $ 4,724,397 22.0%
12/31/2021 6,292,696 7,007,618 89.8% 714,922 4,773,033 15.0%
12/31/2022 6,434,302 7,698,828 83.6% 1,264,526 5,681,162 22.3%
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K. PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far
into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual amounts are compared to past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Actuarial calculations are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time of
each valuation, and reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that perspective, actuarial methods, and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility actuarial in accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets. The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following the notes
to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability of benefits.

L. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) - SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFITS FUND (SDBF)

Plan Description

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term insurance plan operated by the
Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by
ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The City may terminate
coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any year to be
effective the following January 1.

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the employee's annual salary
(calculated based on the employee's actual earnings, for the 12-month period preceding the month of death); retired
employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an "other postemployment benefit," or OPEB.

At December 31, 2022, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 8
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 12
Active employees 82
102
Contributions

Due to the SDBF being considered an unfunded OPEB plan, benefit payments are treated as being equal to the employer’s
yearly contributions for retirees. During the year ended September 30, 2023, the City has not made any contributions to
the SDBF.
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L. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) - SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFITS FUND (SDBF)

- CONTINUED

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2022, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial

assumptions:

Actuarial valuation date

Inflation

Salary increases

Discount rate*

Retirees' share of benefit-related costs
Administrative expenses

Mortality rates - service retirees

Mortality rates - disabled retirees

Other Information:
Notes

December 31, 2022

2.50%

3.50% to 11.50% including inflation

4.05%

$0

All administrative expenses are paid through the
Pension Trust and accounted for under reporting
requirements under GASB Statement No. 68.

2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables.
The rates are projected on a fully generational basis
with scale UMP.

2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables
with a 4 year set-forward for males and a 3 year set-
forward for females. In addition, a 3.5% and 3%
minimum mortality rate will be applied to reflect the
impairment for younger members who become
disabled for males and females, respectively. The
rates are projected on a fully generational basis by
Scale UMP to account for future mortality
improvements subject to the floor.

No benefit changes during the year.

*The discount rate was based on the Fidelity Index’s “20-Year Municipal GO AA Index” rate as of December

31, 2022.

Note: The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2022 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2018.
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L. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) - SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFITS FUND (SDBF)

- CONTINUED
Change in Net Pension Asset
Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability / (Asset) Net Position  Liability / (Asset)
(a) (b) (a-b)

Balances as of December 31, 2021 $ 106,970  $ - $ 106,970
Changes for the year:
Service cost 16,475 - 16,475
Interest on total pension liability 2,115 - 2,115
Difference between expected and actual experience 2,842 - 2,842
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs (56,706) - (56,706)
Benefit payments (568) - (568)
Administrative expenses - - -
Contributions - employer - - -
Contributions - employee - - -
Benefit payments - - -
Other - - -

Net changes (35,842) - (35,842)
Balances as of December 31, 2022 $ 71,128 $ - $ 71,128

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 4.05%, as well as what the
City’s net pension asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (3.05%) or
one percentage point higher (5.05%) than the current rate.

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
3.05% 4.05% 5.05%
Net pension liability / (asset) $ 91,684  $ 71,128  § 56,158

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued TMRS’s
comprehensive annual financial report.

Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of $26,661. At September 30, 2023, deferred
outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions were reported from the following sources:
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L. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) - SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFITS FUND (SDBF)

- CONTINUED
Deferred Inflows Deferred Outflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 14,696 $ 2,533
Changes in assumptions and other inputs 53,106 26,121
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date - -
$ 67,802 $ 28,654

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized as pension
expense as follows:

Years Ending

September 30,
2024 $ (4,179)
2025 (4,179)
2026 (4,179)
2027 (4,370)
2028 (4,496)
Thereafter (17,745)

S (39,148)
M. HEALTH CARE COVERAGE

During the year ended September 30, 2023, employees of the City were covered by a health insurance plan (the Plan). The
City paid premiums of $695,522 to the Plan. Employees, at their option, authorized payroll withholdings to pay premiums
for dependents. All premiums were paid to a licensed insurer. The Plan was authorized by Article 3.51-2, Texas Insurance
Code and was documented by contractual agreement.

The contract between the City and the licensed insurer is renewable October 1, and terms of coverage and premium costs
are included in the contractual provisions.

N. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Contingencies

The City participates in grant programs which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs
charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the
extent that the City has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received
may be required, and the collectability of any related receivable may be impaired. In the opinion of the City, there are no
significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and regulations governing the respective grants;
therefore, no provision has been recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements for such contingencies.
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N. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - CONTINUED
Litigation
The City is subject to certain legal proceedings in the normal course of operations. In the opinion of management, the

aggregate liability, if any, with respect to potential legal actions will not materially adversely affect the City's financial
position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Arbitrage Rebates

The City invests portions of bond proceeds during construction of related projects and as reserves for debt retirement after
construction is complete. Any interest earned on invested bond proceeds over interest paid on bonds must be paid back to
the federal government every five years. As of September 30, 2023, the City's arbitrage liability was $0.

O. SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS

The City has no direct or contingent liability or moral obligation for the payment of this debt; therefore, this debt is not
recorded as long-term debt of the City.

In January 2020 the City issued $3,120,000 of Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2020 related to the
Lagos Public Improvement District, Major Improvement Area Project. The bonds are special obligations of the City
payable solely from the assessments levied against parcels within the Public Improvement District and other pledged funds
held under the indenture. The bonds do not give rise to a charge against the general credit or taxing powers of the City.
The City is acting as an agent for the property owners within the district in collecting the future assessments, forwarding
collections to trustees, approving bond proceed disbursements, and initiating any future foreclosures. The aggregate
principal outstanding at September 30, 2023, is $2,760,000.

In May 2021, the City issued $7,305,000 of Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2021 related to the Manor
Heights Public Improvement District, Major Improvement Area #1-2 Project. The bonds are special obligations of the City
payable solely from the assessments levied against parcels within the Public Improvement District and other pledged funds
held under the indenture. The bonds do not give rise to a charge against the general credit or taxing powers of the City.
The City is acting as an agent for the property owners within the district in collecting the future assessments, forwarding
collections to trustees, approving bond proceed disbursements, and initiating any future foreclosures. The aggregate
principal outstanding at September 30, 2023, is $7,155,000.

In May 2021, the City issued $8,080,000 of Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2021 related to the Manor
Heights Public Improvement District, Major Improvement Area Project. The bonds are special obligations of the City
payable solely from the assessments levied against parcels within the Public Improvement District and other pledged funds
held under the indenture. The bonds do not give rise to a charge against the general credit or taxing powers of the City.
The City is acting as an agent for the property owners within the district in collecting the future assessments, forwarding
collections to trustees, approving bond proceed disbursements, and initiating any future foreclosures. The aggregate
principal outstanding at September 30, 2023, is $7,930,000.
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YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

O. SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS - CONTINUED

In July 2023, the City issued $4,280,000 of Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2023 related to the Manor
Heights Public Improvement District, Improvement Area #3 Project. The bonds are special obligations of the City payable
solely from the assessments levied against parcels within the Public Improvement District and other pledged funds held
under the indenture. The bonds do not give rise to a charge against the general credit or taxing powers of the City. The
City is acting as an agent for the property owners within the district in collecting the future assessments, forwarding
collections to trustees, approving bond proceed disbursements, and initiating any future foreclosures. The aggregate
principal outstanding at September 30, 2023, is $4,280,000.

In June 2024, the City issued $5,400,000 of Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2024 related to the Manor
Heights Public Improvement District, Improvement Area #4 Project. The bonds are special obligations of the City payable
solely from the assessments levied against parcels within the Public Improvement District and other pledged funds held
under the indenture. The bonds do not give rise to a charge against the general credit or taxing powers of the City. The
City is acting as an agent for the property owners within the district in collecting the future assessments, forwarding
collections to trustees, approving bond proceed disbursements, and initiating any future foreclosures.

P. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Combination Tax and Revenue Certificate of Obligation Bonds, Series 2023

On December 1, 2023, the City issued $36,245,000 in combined tax and revenue certificate of obligation bonds, proceeds
to be used for the improvement and expansion of the City's water and sewer system. Bond interest rate of 5.00% with semi-
annual payments due on February 15 and August 15 of each year until maturity in 2042 or prior redemption.

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2024

On May 22, 2024, the City issued $15,000,000 in general obligation bonds, proceeds to be used for the acquisition of real
property for economic development purposes. Bond interest rates vary from 4.96% to 5.60% with semi-annual payments
due on February 15 and August 15 of each year until maturity in 2042 or prior redemption.
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BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) - GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 9,042,774 $ 9,039,679 $ 8,831,665 (208,014)
Sales taxes 2,134,325 2,134,325 2,804,685 670,360
Franchise taxes 942,511 966,419 895,816 (70,603)
Other taxes 16,705 28,376 35,236 6,860
Licenses and permits 3,106,550 3,112,428 2,476,482 (635,946)
Charge for services 1,120,000 1,120,000 1,663,397 543,397
Court and police 418,298 459,079 570,493 111,414
Public safety 76,850 109,486 154,327 44,841
Interest 50,000 1,537,435 1,731,505 194,070
Other 366,786 579,498 1,031,858 452,360
Total revenues 17,274,799 19,086,725 20,195,464 1,108,739
EXPENDITURES
General government 5,334,031 5,527,574 5,247,939 279,635
Public safety 6,081,667 6,201,725 5,387,586 814,139
Streets 2,197,475 2,629911 2,120,748 509,163
Municipal court 596,512 596,512 480,207 116,305
Development services 1,318,760 1,368,994 1,375,032 (6,038)
Sanitation 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,724,313 (224,313)
Capital outlay 246,354 246,354 303,076 (56,722)
Debt payments - - - -
Interest - - - -
Total expenditures 17,274,799 18,071,070 16,638,901 1,432,169
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES - 1,015,655 3,556,563 2,540,908
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt issuances - - 97,550 97,550
Transfers (to) from other funds: - - (521,293) (521,293)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - (423,743) (423,743)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - 1,015,655 3,132,820 2,117,165
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 14,586,164 14,586,164 14,586,164 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $14,586,164 $15,601,819 $17,718984 § 2,117,165
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YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

A. GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY ANALYSIS

Budgetary Information

The City Council adopts an annual budget prepared on a non-GAAP cash basis. City management may
transfer part or all of any unencumbered appropriation balance within specific categories (i.e., personnel,
operations, supplies, or capital outlay) within programs; however, any revisions that alter the total
expenditures of the categories must be approved by the City Council. The City, for management purposes,
adopts budgets for all funds. Legal budgets are also adopted for all funds, and the legal level of control is the
fund level.

Capital projects are funded through capital grants or general obligation debt authorized for specific purposes.

All unused appropriations, except appropriations for capital expenditures, lapse at the close of the fiscal year
to the extent they have not been expended or encumbered. An appropriation for capital expenditures shall
continue in force until the purpose for which it was made is accomplished or abandoned. No supplemental
budgetary appropriations occurred in the debt service fund or in the general fund. Revised budgets, if any,
are used for budget versus actual comparisons.

B. BUDGET VERSUS ACTUAL RESULTS

Operating revenues in the general fund were greater than budgeted by $1,108,739, and operating expenditures
were less than budgeted by $1,432,169, resulting in an overall favorable operating variance of $2,540,908.
Due to favorable operating results, there was an overall increase in fund balance of $3,132,820 for the City's
general fund.
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CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Iltem 1.

(Unaudited)
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) ()
UAAL as a
Actuarial Percentage of

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Covered

Actuarial Value of Liability Funded Ratio AAL (UAAL)  Covered Payroll
Valuation Date Assets (AAL) (a)/(b) (b) - (a) Payroll (d)/(e)
12/31/2020 § 5,078,137 § 6,116,381 83.0% $ 1,038,244 § 4,724,397 22.0%
12/31/2021 6,292,696 7,007,618 89.8% 714,922 4,773,033 15.0%
12/31/2022 6,434,302 7,698,828 83.6% 1,264,526 5,681,162 22.3%
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CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE CITY'S TOTAL OPEB ASSET/LIABILITY

Iltem 1.

AND RELATED RATIOS
LAST TEN YEARS*
(Unaudited)
2023 2022 2021

Total OPEB Liability (Asset)

Service cost $ 16,475 $ 13,842 $ 10,866

Interest on total OPEB liability 2,115 1,926 2,241

Effect of plan changes - - -

Difference between expected and actual experience 2,842 (2,418) (15,733)

Effect of assumptions changes or inputs (56,706) 4,482 16,427

Benefit payments (568) (477) (472)
Net change in total OPEB liability (asset) (35,842) 17,355 13,329
Total OPEB liability (asset), beginning 106,970 89,615 76,286
Total OPEB liability (asset), ending (a) $ 71,128 § 106,970 $ 89,615
Covered payroll $ 5,681,162 $ 4,773,033 $ 4,724,397
Net OPEB liability (asset) as a % of covered payroll 1.25% 2.24% 1.90%

* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown.
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2020 2019 2018

$ 6,508 $ 6,003 $ 4,813

2,089 1,860 1,648
(1,673) (2,490) -

16,515 (5,293) 5,549
(434) - -

23,005 80 12,010

53,281 53,201 41,191

$ 76286 $ 53281 $ 53,201

$ 4,338,512 $ 3,752,058 $ 3,437,829

1.76% 1.42% 1.55%
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ATCHLEY & ASSOCIATESu»

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & BUSINESS ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Manor, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Manor,
Texas (the City), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated October 28, 2024.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

1005 La Posada Drive ¢ Austin, Texas 78752-3815
T: (512) 346-2086 « (877) 977-6850 « F: (512) 338-9883 « www.atchleycpas.com
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Atehlig ¢ Aot 120

Austin, Texas
October 28, 2024
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Financial Statement Findings

None

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
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Prior Audit Findings

None

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
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ATCHLEY & ASSOCIATES.»

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & BUSINESS ADVISORS

City Council

City of Manor, Texas
P.O. Box 387
Manor, Texas 78653

This letter includes comments and suggestions with respect to matters that came to our attention in connection
with our accounting services engagement related to the audit of the financial statements of the City of Manor,
Texas (the City) for the year ended September 30, 2023. These items are offered as constructive suggestions to
be considered part of the ongoing process of modifying and improving the City's practices and procedures.

During the audit, it was noted that fixed assets were not being tracked. We recommend the City develop
a full fixed asset inventory tracking including the following:

Description of the asset;

Cost, voucher number, and vendor name;

Date placed in service;

Estimated useful life;

Depreciation method;

Depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation for the year;
Date asset was retired and selling price if applicable;

Account the fixed asset was recorded to; and

If the asset was purchased with debt or financing.

Complete information such as the above on all fixed assets would provide enhanced control for the
safeguarding of these assets, which are a significant cost, and can reconcile to the asset listing maintained
for insurance purposes. A better assessment and evaluation could also be made regarding the reliability of
certain fixed assets, and the need for replacements, and so on.

This letter is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management, and others within the
City and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. We
appreciate serving the City of Manor, Texas and would be happy to assist you in addressing and implementing
any of the suggestions in this letter.

Atehbg e Ausocte 17

Austin, Texas
October 28, 2024

1005 La Posada Drive ¢ Austin, Texas 78752-3815
T: (512) 346-2086 « (877) 977-6850 « F: (512) 338-9883 « www.atchleycpas.com
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MANOR

&% TEXAS ©72

CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR SESSION MINUTES
NOVEMBER 6, 2024

This meeting was live-streamed on Manor's YouTube Channel
You can access the meeting at https://www.cityofmanor.org/page/livestream

PRESENT:
Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Emily Hill, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 1
Anne Weir, Place 2

Maria Amezcua, Place 3

Sonia Wallace, Place 4

Aaron Moreno, Place 5

Deja Hill, Place 6

CITY STAFF:

Scott Moore, City Manager

Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police

Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary

Tracey Vasquez, HR Director

Yalondra V. Santana, Heritage & Tourism Manager
Michael Burrell, Interim Development Services Director
Veronica Rivera, Assistant City Attorney

REGULAR SESSION - 7:00 P.M.

With a quorum of the Council Members present, the regular session of the Manor City Council
was called to order by Mayor Harvey at 7:06 p.m. on Wednesday, November 6, 2024, in the
Council Chambers of the Manor City Hall, 105 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas.

INVOCATION

Mayor Harvey gave the invocation.

City of Manor Page 1
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City Council Regular Session Minutes
November 6 2024

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mayor Harvey led the Pledge of Allegiance.
PROCLAMATIONS
A. Declaring the week of November 4-8, 2024, as “Municipal Court Week”
Mayor Harvey read and presented the Proclamation to Court Administrator Sofi Duran.
PUBLIC COMMENTS

Heritage & Tourism Manager Yalondra V. Santana invited the community to attend the
Veteran’s Day Ceremony on Monday, November 11, 2024, at Manor New Tech Football Stadium.

Ruth Taylor Biscoe submitted a speaker card and addressed the matter with Mr. Battaile.
No one else appeared at this time.

CONSENT

1. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution to allocate votes for the
election to the Board of Directors of the Travis Central Appraisal District.

Resolution No. 2024-36: A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Manor, Texas,
Approving the Allocation of Votes for the Board of Directors of the Travis Central Appraisal
District.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Council Member
Amezcua to approve the consent agenda.

There was no further discussion.

Motion to approve carried 7-0
At the direction of Mayor Harvey Item No. 8 was pulled from the agenda.

REGULAR AGENDA

2. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Development Agreement for the
Landmark at Manor East Apartments located at 13119 East US Highway 290 Manor,
TX.

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the development agreement for

the Landmark at Manor East Apartments, located at 13119 East US Highway 290, Manor,
Texas.

City of Manor Page 2
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City Council Regular Session Minutes
November 6 2024

Interim Development Services Director Burrell discussed the proposed agreement.

A discussion was held regarding the changes to the minimum dwelling unit size and
masonry requirements.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member
Wallace to approve the development agreement for the Landmark at Manor East
Apartments, located at 13119 East US Highway 290, Manor, Texas.

There was no further discussion.

Motion to approve carried 6-1 (Council Member Deja Hill voted against)

3. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the acceptance of the City of Manor,
Texas Annual Financial Report and Independent Auditors’ Report Year ended
September 30, 2023.

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve and accept the City of Manor,
Texas Annual Financial Report and Independent Auditors’ Report Year ended September 30,
2023.

Jeremy Myers with Atchley & Associates, LLP discussed the Auditor’s Report for Fiscal
Year 2022-2023.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Weir and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Emily Hill to approve and accept the City of Manor, Texas Annual Financial Report
and Independent Auditors’ Report Year ended September 30, 2023.

There was no further discussion.

Motion to approve carried 7-0

4. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance adopting a covered
Applications and Prohibited Technology Policy.

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve Ordinance No. 765 Adopting a
Covered Applications and Prohibited Technology Policy.

HR Director Vasquez discussed the proposed policy.
Ordinance No. 765: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas, Adopting a Covered

Applications and Prohibited Technology Policy; Repealing all Ordinances in Conflict;
Providing an Open Meetings Clause; and Providing an Effective Date.

City of Manor Page 3
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MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member

Weir to approve Ordinance No. 765 Adopting a Covered Applications and Prohibited
Technology Policy.

There was no further discussion.

Motion to approve carried 7-0

S.

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution amending Resolution No.
2024-20 to adjust the eligibility criteria for the Manor Youth Advisory Commission to
include students in grades eight through ten.

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2024-37
amending Resolution No. 2024-20 to adjust the eligibility criteria for the Manor Youth
Advisory Commission to include students in grades eight through ten.

Heritage & Tourism Manager V. Santana discussed the proposed amendment to the Manor
Youth Advisory Commission.

Resolution No. 2024-37: A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Manor, Texas,
Amending Resolution No. 2024-20 to Adjust the Eligibility Criteria for the Manor Youth
Advisory Commission to Include Students in Grades Eight Through Ten; Providing for
Findings of Fact; Repealing and Conflicting Provisions; and Providing for Related Matters.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Weir and seconded by Council Member

Amezcua to approve Resolution No. 2024-37 amending Resolution No. 2024-20 to
adjust the eligibility criteria for the Manor Youth Advisory Commission to include
students in grades eight through ten.

There was no further discussion.

Motion to approve carried 7-0

6. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an agreement to transfer approximately
35.6 acres from Manville Water Supply Corporation’s certificated water service area to
the City of Manor’s certificated service area.

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the agreement to transfer
approximately 35.6 acres from Manville Water Supply Corporation’s certificated water service
area to the City of Manor’s certificated service area.

Interim Development Services Director Burrell discussed the proposed agreement.

A discussion was held regarding clarification of the agreement.

City of Manor Page 4
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City Council Regular Session Minutes
November 6 2024

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Council Member
Amezcua to approve the agreement to transfer approximately 35.6 acres from
Manville Water Supply Corporation’s certificated water service area to the City of
Manor’s certificated service area.

There was no further discussion.
Motion to approve carried 7-0

7. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a License Agreement with Lennar
Homes of Texas Land and Construction Ltd., and LIT IDV Ranch 130 Phase I, LLC.

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the License Agreement with
Lennar Homes of Texas Land and Construction Ltd., and LIT IDV Ranch 130 Phase I, LLC
for a wastewater force main and authorize the City Manager to execute the license agreement.

Ryan LaMarre with Quiddity Engineering discussed the proposed agreement.

Assistant City Attorney Rivera discussed the license agreements.

Mia Serrato with Lennar Homes submitted a speaker card; however, she did not wish to
speak but was available to answer any questions posed by the City Council.

Bill Barton with Lennar Homes submitted a speaker card; however, he did not wish to
speak but was available to answer any questions posed by the City Council.

A discussion was held regarding the amount of homes that would be built for the project.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Council Member
Amezcua to approve the License Agreement with Lennar Homes of Texas Land and
Construction Ltd., and LIT IDV Ranch 130 Phase I, LLC for a wastewater force main
and authorize the City Manager to execute the license agreement.

There was no further discussion.
Motion to approve carried 7-0
Mayor Harvey adjourned the regular session of the Manor City Council into Executive Session

at 7:43 p.m. on Wednesday, November 6, 2024, in accordance with the requirements of the Open
Meetings Law.
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EXECUTIVE SESSION

The Manor City Council convened into executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter
551 Texas Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in Section 551.071,
Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to
consult with legal counsel regarding the Interlocal Agreement with City of Austin regarding the
Transfer of the Manor Downs/Dalfen property; Section 551.071 Texas Government Code and
Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel
regarding the Hibbs Lane Parcel; Sections 551.071 and 551.072, Texas Government Code, and
Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel and
to deliberate the purchase of real property at 7:43 p.m. on Wednesday, November 6, 2024.

The Executive Session was adjourned at 8:35 p.m. on Wednesday, November 6, 2024.
OPEN SESSION
The City Council reconvened into Open Session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551

Texas Government Code and took action on item(s) discussed during the Closed Executive Session
at 8:35 p.m. on Wednesday, November 6, 2024.

There was no further discussion and no action was taken.

ADJOURNMENT

The Regular Session of the Manor City Council was Adjourned at 8:36 p.m. on Wednesday,
November 6, 2024.

The Manor City Council approved these minutes on the 4" day of December 2024.

APPROVED:

Dr. Christopher Harvey
Mayor

ATTEST:

Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC
City Secretary
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CITY COUNCIL
WORKSHOP SESSION MINUTES
NOVEMBER 16, 2024

PRESENT:
Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Emily Hill, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 1
Anne Weir, Place 2

Maria Amezcua, Place 3 (Absent)

Sonia Wallace, Place 4

Aaron Moreno, Place 5 (Absent)

Deja Hill, Place 6 (Arrived at 10:03 a.m.)

CITY STAFF:

Scott Moore, City Manager
Brittany Lopez, Assistant City Secretary
Tracey Vasquez, HR Director

WORKSHOP SESSION - 9:00 A.M.

With a quorum of the Council Members present, the workshop session of the Manor City
Council was called to order by Mayor Harvey at 9:28 a.m. on Saturday, November 16, 2024, in
the Manor City Hall, 105 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas.

A. Discussion of the City of Manor Policies and Procedures Handbook

HR Director Vasquez discussed the following proposed policies.

* Section 5 — Workplace Guidelines
5.1 Attendance
5.2 Employee Performance
5.3 Outside Employment
5.4 Dress and Grooming
5.5 Social Media
5.6 Solicitation
5.7 Computers, Cell Phones, Internet, E-Mail, and Other Resources
5.8 Conduct and Workplace Rules

City of Manor Page 1

Iltem 1.

172




Iltem 1.

City Council Workshop Minutes
November 16, 2024

* Section 6 — Time Off and Leaves of Absense
6.1 Holidays
6.2 Vacation
6.3 Sick Leave
6.4 Family and Medical Leave
6.5 Military Leave
6.6 Berecavement Leave
6.7 Jury Duty/Court Appearance
6.8 Time Off for Voting
6.9 Mental Health Leave
6.10 Compensatory Time

* Section 7 — Employee Benefits
7.1 Medical, Dental, and Vision Insurance
7.2 Group Life Insurance
7.3 Short-Term Disability
7.4 Long-Term Disability
7.5 Texas Municipal Retirement
7.6 Worker’s Compensation
7.7 Employee Assistance Program
7.8 Car Allowance-Take-Home Vehicles
7.9 Travel
7.10 Education Reimbursement

There was no action taken.
ADJOURNMENT

The Manor City Council Workshop Session Adjourned at 10:27 a.m. on Saturday,
November 16, 2024.

The Manor City Council approved these minutes on December 4, 2024.

APPROVED:

Dr. Christopher Harvey
Mayor

ATTEST:

Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC
City Secretary
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CITY COUNCIL CALLED SPECIAL MEETING
MINUTES
NOVEMBER 19, 2024

PRESENT:
Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Emily Hill, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 1
Anne Weir, Place 2

Maria Amezcua, Place 3

Sonia Wallace, Place 4

Aaron Moreno, Place 5

Deja Hill, Place 6

CITY STAFF:

Scott Moore, City Manager

Brittany Lopez, Assistant City Secretary
Tracey Vasquez